

# KAMPALA CAPITAL CITY AUTHORITY

# Request for Proposals Document for

# Procurement of Consultancy Services under Open Domestic Bidding

Procurement of Consultancy Services for preparation of a detailed Physical Development plan for Kawempe Urban Center and Action Plans for Ten Strategic Road Corridors under GKMA-UDP

Project: The Greater Kampala Metropolitan Area Urban

**Development Program (GKMA-UDP)** 

REF NO. KCCA-GKMA/CONS/2025-2026/00004

Issued on: 29th August 2025

## **PREFACE**

- This Standard Request for Proposals (RFP) document has been prepared by the Public Procurement and Disposal of Public Assets Authority (PPDA) for use by Procuring and Disposing Entities (PDEs) for the procurement of Consultancy Services following publication of a notice of expression of interest. The procedures and practices presented in this RFP have been developed to reflect the requirements of the Public Procurement and Disposal of Public Assets Act, 2003 and the Public Procurement and Disposal of Public Assets, Regulations 2014 and best international procurement practices.
- 2. This RFP can be used with the different selection methods described in the PPDA (Procurement of Consultancy Services) Regulations, 2014 i.e. quality and cost-based selection (QCBS), quality-based selection (QBS), fixed budget selection (FBS), least cost selection (LCS) and consultants qualifications selection (CQS). The User Guide to this RFP further elaborates on how to use these methods of evaluation in the RFP.
- 3. Before using this RFP, the user should be familiar with the PPDA Act, 2003 and Regulations, 2014 and should read the User Guide to this RFP which has been prepared to provide guidance in the correct use of the Standard RFP for Consultancy Services as a model for preparing an individual Request for Proposals Document.

The PPDA welcomes any feedback or comments from the users of this RFP which will assist in improving this document.

The Executive Director,

Public Procurement and Disposal of Public Assets Authority

P.O. Box 3925,

KAMPALA.

info@ppda.go.ug www.ppda.go.ug

# Standard Request for Proposals Document

# **Table of Contents**

| Section 1. Instructions to Consultants         | 3   |
|--|---|
| Section 2. Proposal Data Sheet                 | 24  |
| Section 3. Evaluation Methodology and Criteria | 29  |
| Section 4. Proposal Forms                      | 41  |
| Section 5. Eligible Countries 64               |   |
| Section 6. Statement of Requirements           | Error! Bookmark not defined.                                |
| 4.2.7 Defects Liability Period: Quart          | erly Inspection Reports <b>Error! Bookmark not defined.</b> |
| Section 7. General Conditions of Contract      | 82  |
| Section 8. Special Conditions of Contract      | 104   |
| Section 9. Contract Forms                      | 110   |

## ABRIDGED PROPOSAL NOTICE UNDER OPEN BIDDING



# Kampala Capital City Authority Plot 1 – 3 Apollo Kaggwa Road

## REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

Kampala Capital City Authority invites sealed proposals from eligible consultancy firms for;

| No | Procurement | Subject of Procurement                                   |
|----|-------------|--|
|    | Reference   |  |
|    | Number      |  |
| 1. | KCCA-GKMA/  | Procurement of Consultancy Services for preparation of a |
|    | CONS/2025-  | detailed Physical Development plan for Kawempe Urban     |
|    | 2026/00004  | Center and Action Plans for Ten Strategic Road Corridors |
|    |             | under GKMA-UDP   |

1. The Request for Proposals document(s) shall be inspected and issued at;

Kampala Capital City Authority Procurement and Disposal Department Plot 1 – 3 Apollo Kaggwa Road City Hall, First floor- Room B114

- 2. The deadline for proposals submission shall be at 11:00am on 24th September 2025.
- 3. There shall be a pre-proposal meeting at 10:00 am on 8th September, 2025 at Kampala Capital City Authority, Procurement and Disposal Department, Room B117, 1st Floor, Block B, City Hall
- **4.** The detailed Request for Proposals notice is available at the Entity's website at <a href="www.kcca.go.ug">www.kcca.go.ug</a> and at PPDA's tender portal a <a href="www.ppda.go.ug/tenderportal">www.ppda.go.ug/tenderportal</a>.

**ACCOUNTING OFFICER** 



# KAMPALA CAPITAL CITY AUTHORITY

# **Standard Invitation to Consultants**

29<sup>th</sup> August 2025

Invitation to bid for Procurement of Consultancy Services for preparation of a detailed Physical Development plan for Kawempe Urban Centre and Action Plans for Ten Strategic Road Corridors under GKMA-UDP – KCCA-GKMA/CONS/2025-2026/00004

- 1. The Government of Uganda through the Ministry of Kampala Capital City and Metropolitan Affairs (MKCC&MA) has received funding from the World Bank/International Development Association (IDA) to implement the Greater Kampala Metropolitan Area-Urban Development Program (GKMA-UDP). Kampala Capital City Authority as one of the participating entities has been allocated funds under the program for the Procurement of Consultancy Services for preparation of a detailed Physical Development plan for Kawempe Urban centre and Action Plans for Ten Strategic Road Corridors under GKMA-UDP.
- 2. Kampala Capital City Authority invites sealed proposals from eligible Consultants for the provision of the above Consultancy services.
- 3. Bidding will be conducted in accordance with the Open Domestic Bidding Method contained in the Government of Uganda's Public Procurement and Disposal of Public Assets Act, 2003 Order 2021, the PPDA (Procurement of Consultancy services) Regulations, 2023 and the procedures described in Part 1: Proposal Procedures.
- 4. Interested eligible Consultants may obtain further information and inspect the Request for Proposals document at the address given at 8(a) from 8:00 am to 5:00 pm from Monday to Friday except on Public Holidays
- 5. The Request for proposals document in English may be purchased by interested Consultants up on submission of a written application to the address below at 8(b) and upon payment of a non-refundable fee of UGX. 300,000 (Uganda shillings three hundred thousand Only) to the bank after generating a payment advise form from Kampala Capital City Authority.
- 6. Proposals must be delivered to the address below at 8(c) at or before 11:00 Am on 24<sup>th</sup> September 2025. Late proposals shall be rejected. Proposals will be opened in the presence of the consultants' representatives who choose to attend at the address below at 7(d) at 11:30 Am, on 24<sup>th</sup> September 2025

- 7. There shall be a pre-proposal meeting at the Procurement & Disposal Department, Kampala Capital City Authority, Plot 1-3 Apolo Kaggwa Road, P.O Box 7010, Kampala at 10:00 Am on 8th September 2025
- 8. (a) Documents may be inspected at: Procurement & Disposal Department, Kampala Capital City Authority, Plot 1-3 Apolo Kaggwa Road, P.O Box 7010, Kampala, from 8.00 am to 5.00 pm from Monday to Friday except on Public Holiday
  - (b) Documents will be issued from: Procurement & Disposal Department, Kampala Capital City Authority, Plot 1-3 Apolo Kaggwa Road, P.O Box 7010, Kampala, from 8.00 am to 5.00 pm from Monday to Friday except on Public Holiday
  - (c) Proposals must be delivered to: Procurement & Disposal Department, Kampala Capital City Authority, Plot 1-3 Apolo Kaggwa Road, P.O Box 7010, Kampala, on/or before 24th September 2025 at 11:00 am, from 8.00 am to 5.00 pm from Monday to Friday except on Public Holiday
  - (d) Address of Proposal Opening: Procurement & Disposal Department, Kampala Capital City Authority, Plot 1-3 Apolo Kaggwa Road, P.O Box 7010, Kampala, on 24th September 2025 at 11:30am
- 9. Please inform us, upon receipt:
  - that you received the letter of invitation; and
  - whether you will submit a proposal alone or in association. (b)
- 10. The planned procurement schedule (subject to changes) is as follows:

| Activity   | Date   |
|--|--|
| a. Publication of invitation for Request for Proposals       | 29 <sup>th</sup> August 2025   |
| b. Issue of letter of invitation to Consultants              | 29 <sup>th</sup> August 2025   |
| c. Pre-proposal meeting/ Site visit                          | 8 <sup>th</sup> September 2025 @ 10:00 am  |
| d. Proposal closing date                                     | 24 <sup>th</sup> September 2025 at 11:00 am  |
| e. Evaluation process  | Technical Evaluation from 24 <sup>th</sup> September 2025 to 22 <sup>nd</sup> October 2025 |
|  | Financial Evaluation from 24 <sup>th</sup> October 2025 to 28 <sup>th</sup> October 2025   |
| f. Display and communication of best evaluated bidder notice | 31st October 2025 to 13th November 2025  |
| g. Contract Signature  | 28 <sup>th</sup> November 2025   |

#### **ACCOUNTING OFFICER**

# 1 PART 1 – Proposal Procedures

# **Section 1: Instructions to Consultants**

# **Table of Clauses**

| A.  | General   | 5  |
|-----|---|----|
| 1.  | Scope of Proposal   | 5  |
| 2.  | Source of Funds   | 5  |
| 3.  | Corrupt Practices   | 5  |
| 4.  | Eligible Consultants  | 6  |
| 5.  | Conflict of Interest  | 7  |
| B.  | Request for Proposals Document                              | 8  |
| 6.  | Contents of Request for Proposals Document                  | 8  |
| 7.  | Clarification of Request for Proposals Document             | 9  |
| 8.  | Amendment of Request for Proposals Document                 | 9  |
| C.  | Preparation of Proposals                                    | 10 |
| 9.  | Cost of Proposals   | 10 |
| 10. | Language of Proposal and Communications                     | 10 |
| 11. | Preparation of Proposals                                    | 10 |
| 12. | Joint Ventures, Associations and Sub-contracting            | 10 |
| 13. | Professional Staff  | 11 |
| 14. | Technical Proposal  | 11 |
| 15. | Financial Proposal  | 12 |
| 16. | Proposal Prices   | 13 |
| 17. | Currencies of Proposal                                      | 13 |
| 18. | Documents Establishing the Eligibility of the Consultant    | 14 |
| 19. | Documents Establishing the Qualifications of the Consultant | 14 |
| 20. | Period of Validity of Proposals                             | 14 |
| 21. | Proposal Securing Declaration                               | 14 |
| 22. | Format and Signing of Proposal                              | 15 |
| D.  | Submission and Opening of Proposals                         | 15 |
| 23. | Sealing and Marking of Proposals                            | 15 |
| 24. | Deadline for Submission of Proposals                        | 16 |
| 25. | Late Proposals  | 16 |
| 26. | Withdrawal and Replacement of Proposals                     | 16 |
| 27. | Proposal Opening  | 17 |
| E.  | Evaluation of Proposals                                     | 17 |
| 28. | Confidentiality   | 17 |
| 29. | Clarification of Proposals                                  | 18 |
| 30. | Compliance and Responsiveness of Proposals                  | 18 |

| 31. | Nonconformities, Errors, and Omissions   | 19 |
|-----|--|----|
| 32. | Preliminary Examination of Proposals – Eligibility and Administrative Compliance | 20 |
| 33. | Detailed Evaluation  | 20 |
| 34. | Opening of Financial Proposals   | 20 |
| 35. | Conversion to Single Currency  | 21 |
| 36. | Margin of Preference   | 21 |
| 37. | Financial Comparison of Proposals  | 21 |
| 38. | Determination of Best Evaluated Proposal   | 22 |
| 39. | Post-qualification of the Consultant   | 22 |
| 40. | Negotiations   | 22 |
| F.  | Award of Contract  | 23 |
| 41. | Award Procedure  | 23 |
| 42. | Procuring and Disposing Entity's Right to Accept or Reject Any or All Proposals  | 23 |
| 43. | Signing and effectiveness of the Contract  | 23 |
| 44. | Debriefing   | 23 |
| 45. | Administrative Review  | 23 |

#### **Section 1. Instructions to Consultants**

## A. General

# 1. Scope of Proposal

- 1.1 The Procuring and Disposing Entity indicated in the Proposal Data Sheet (PDS), invites proposals for the provision of the Services specified in Section 6, Statement of Requirements (SOR) to commence on the date indicated in the SOR.
- 1.2 Procurement will be undertaken in compliance with the Public Procurement and Disposal of Public Assets Act, 2003 and Regulations, 2014.
  - 1.3 The Instructions to Consultants (ITC) should be read in conjunction with the PDS. The subject and procurement reference number, and where applicable the number of lots of this Request for Proposals Document are provided in the PDS.
- 1.4 Throughout this Request for Proposals Document:
  - (a) the term "in writing" means communicated in written form with proof of receipt;
  - (b) if the context so requires, singular means plural and vice versa;
  - (c) "day" means working day, and "month" means working month.

#### 2. Source of Funds

- 2.1 The Procuring and Disposing Entity has an approved budget from Government funds towards the cost of the procurement described in the PDS. The Procuring and Disposing Entity intends to use these funds to place a contract for which this Request for Proposals Document is issued.
- 2.2 Payments will be made directly by the Procuring and Disposing Entity and will be subject in all respects to the terms and conditions of the resulting contract placed by the Procuring and Disposing Entity.

# 3. Corrupt Practices

- 3.1 It is the Government of Uganda's policy to require that Procuring and Disposing Entities, as well as Consultants, observe the highest standards of ethics during procurement and the execution of contracts. In pursuit of this policy, the Government of Uganda;
  - (a) defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
    - (i) "corrupt practice" means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value, to influence the action of a public official in the procurement process or in contract execution;
    - 1.1.1.1 (ii) "fraudulent practice" is any act or omission, including a misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an

obligation;

- 1.1.1.2 (iii) "collusive practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;
- 1.1.1.3 (iv) "coercive practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party;
- (b) will reject a recommendation for award if it determines that the Consultant recommended for award has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for the Contract;
- (c) will suspend a Consultant from engaging in any public procurement proceeding for a stated period of time, if it at any time determines that the Consultant has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for, or in executing, a Government Contract.
- 3.2 Furthermore, Consultants shall be aware of the provision stated in Sub Clause 15.1(g)-(h) and Sub Clause 2.2 of the General Conditions of Contract.
- 3.3 In pursuit of the policy defined in Sub-Clause 3.1, the Procuring and Disposing Entity may terminate a contract or be ordered by the Public Procurement and Disposal of Public Assets Appeals Tribunal to cancel a contract if it at any time determines that corrupt, fraudulent, collusive or coercive practices were engaged in by representatives of the Procuring and Disposing Entity or of a Consultant during the procurement or the execution of that contract.
- 3.4 In pursuit of the policy defined in Sub-clause 3.1, the Code of Ethical Conduct for Bidders and Providers as provided in the bidding forms shall be signed by the Bidder and submitted together with the other bidding forms. The Government of Uganda may suspend a Consultant from engaging in any public procurement or disposal process for a period determined by the Public Procurement and Disposal of Public Assets Authority (herein referred to as the Authority), where the Consultant is debarred from the procurement processes of an international agency of which Uganda is a member.
- 3.5 Any communications between a Consultant and the Procuring and Disposing Entity related to matters of alleged fraud or corruption must be made in writing and addressed to the Accounting Officer of the Procuring and Disposing Entity.

## 4. Eligible Consultants

- 4.1 A Consultant, and all parties constituting the Consultant, shall meet the following criteria to be eligible to participate in public procurement:
  - (a) the Consultant has the legal capacity to enter into a contract;
  - (b) the Consultant is not:
    - (i) insolvent;
    - (ii) in receivership;
    - (iii) bankrupt; or
    - (iv) being wound up

- (c) the Consultant's business activities have not been suspended;
- (d) the Consultant is not the subject of legal proceedings for any of the circumstances in (b); and
- (e) the Consultant has fulfilled his or her obligations to pay taxes and social security contributions.
- 4.2 A Consultant may be a natural person, private entity, government-owned entity, subject to ITC Sub-Clause 4.6 or any combination of them with a formal intent to enter into an agreement or under an existing agreement in the form of a joint venture, consortium, or association. In the case of a joint venture, consortium, or association, unless otherwise specified in the PDS, all parties shall be jointly and severally liable. In the case of a consortium or association, the formal intent shall be by way of Memorandum of Understanding which shall be registered with the Registrar of documents if signed in Uganda or if signed outside Uganda, shall be notarized.
- 4.3 A Consultant, and all parties constituting the Consultant including sub-contractors and key professional staff, shall have the nationality of an eligible country, in accordance with Section 5, Eligible Countries. A Consultant shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if the Consultant is a citizen or is constituted, or incorporated, and operates in conformity with the provisions of the laws of that country. This criterion shall also apply to the determination of the nationality of proposed subcontractors for any part of the Contract including related works or supplies.
- 4.4 A Consultant shall not have a conflict of interest, as defined in ITC Clause 5. All Consultants found to be in conflict of interest shall be disgualified.
- 4.5 A firm that is under a declaration of suspension by the Authority in accordance with ITC Clause 3.1 (c) or 3.4, at the date of the deadline for proposal submission or thereafter before contract signature, shall be disqualified.
- 4.6 Government-owned enterprises shall be eligible only if they can establish that they are legally and financially autonomous and operate under commercial law.
- 4.7 Consultants shall provide such evidence of their continued eligibility satisfactory to the Procuring and Disposing Entity, as the Procuring and Disposing Entity shall reasonably request.

#### 5. Conflict of Interest

- 5.1 Government policy requires that Consultants provide professional, objective, and impartial advice and at all times hold the Procuring and Disposing Entity's interests paramount, without any consideration for future work, and strictly avoid conflicts with other assignments or their own corporate interests. Consultants shall not be hired for any assignment that would be in conflict with their prior or current obligations to other Procuring and Disposing Entities, or that may place them in a position of not being able to carry out the assignment in the best interests of the Procuring and Disposing Entity.
- 5.2 A Consultant may be considered to have a conflict of interest with one or more

parties in this procurement process, if they:

- (a) have controlling shareholders in common; or
- (b) receive or have received any direct or indirect subsidy from any of them; or
- (c) have the same legal representative for purposes of this proposal; or
- (d) have a relationship with each other, directly or through common third parties, that puts them in a position to have access to information about or influence on the proposal of another Consultant, or influence the decisions of the Procuring and Disposing Entity regarding this procurement process; or
- (e) submit more than one proposal in this procurement process. However, this does not limit the participation of subcontractors in more than one proposal, or as Consultants and subcontractors simultaneously; or
- (f) have been engaged, or any of their affiliates have been engaged, by the Procuring and Disposing Entity to provide supplies or works for the same project: or
- (g) may be in conflict with another of their, or their affiliates' assignments by performing this assignment.
- 5.3 Consultants hired to provide consultancy services for the preparation or implementation of a project, and any of their affiliates, shall be disqualified from subsequently providing supplies, works or services related to the initial assignment (other than a continuation of the Consultant's earlier consulting services) for the same project.
- 5.4 Consultants may be hired for downstream work, when continuity is essential, in which case this possibility shall be indicated in the PDS and the factors used for the selection of the consultant will take the likelihood of continuation into account. It will be the exclusive decision of the Procuring and Disposing Entity whether or not to have the downstream assignment carried out, and if it is carried out, which consultant will be hired for the purpose.
- 5.5 Any previous or ongoing participation in relation to the assignment by the Consultant, its professional staff, or its affiliates or associates under a contract with the Procuring and Disposing Entity or the Government of Uganda may result in rejection of the proposal. Consultants should clarify their situation in that respect with the Procuring and Disposing Entity before preparing the proposal.

# **B.** Request for Proposals Document

#### 6. Contents of Request for Proposals Document

6.1 This Request for Proposals Document consists of Parts 1, 2, and 3, which include all the Sections indicated below, and should be read in conjunction with any addenda issued in accordance with ITC Clause 8.

#### PART 1 Procurement Procedures

- Section 1. Instructions to Consultants (ITC)
- Section 2. Proposal Data Sheet (PDS)

- Section 3. Evaluation Methodology and Criteria
- Section 4. Proposal Forms
- Section 5. Eligible Countries

# PART 2 Statement of Requirements

Section 6. Statement of Requirements

## PART 3 Contract

- Section 7. General Conditions of Contract (GCC) for the Procurement of Consultancy Services
- Section 8. Special Conditions of Contract (SCC)
- Section 9. Contract Forms
- 6.2 The letter inviting Consultants to submit proposals is not part of the Request for Proposals Document.
- 6.3 Proposals from Consultants who did not obtain the Request for Proposals Document directly from the Procuring and Disposing Entity will be rejected during evaluation. Where the Request for Proposals Document is obtained from the Procuring and Disposing Entity on a Consultant's behalf, the Consultant's name must be registered with the Procuring and Disposing Entity at the time of sale and issue.
- 6.4 The Consultant is expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms, and requirements in the Request for Proposals Document. Failure to furnish all information or documentation required by the Request for Proposals Document may result in the rejection of the proposal.
- 6.5 Where an electronic copy of the Request for Proposals document is issued, the paper or hard copy is the original version. In the event of any discrepancy between the two, the hard copy shall prevail.

# 7. Clarification of Request for Proposals Document

A prospective Consultant requiring any clarification of the Request for Proposals Document shall contact the Procuring and Disposing Entity in writing at the Procuring and Disposing Entity's address indicated in the PDS. The Procuring and Disposing Entity will respond in writing to any request for clarification, provided that such request is received no later than the date indicated in the PDS. The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall forward copies of its response to all Consultants who have acquired the Request for Proposals Document directly from it, including a description of the inquiry but without identifying its source. Should the Procuring and Disposing Entity deem it necessary to amend the Request for Proposals Document as a result of a clarification, it shall do so following the procedure under ITC Clause 8 and Sub-Clause 24.2.

## 8. Amendment of Request for Proposals Document

- 8.1 At any time prior to the deadline for submission of proposals, the Procuring and Disposing Entity may amend the Request for Proposals Document by issuing addenda.
- 8.2 Any addendum issued shall be part of the Request for Proposals Document and

- shall be communicated in writing to all who have obtained the Request for Proposals Document directly from the Procuring and Disposing Entity.
- 8.3 To give prospective Consultants reasonable time in which to take an addendum into account in preparing their proposals, the Procuring and Disposing Entity may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of proposals, pursuant to ITC Sub-Clause 24.2.

# C. Preparation of Proposals

# 9. Cost of Proposals

The Consultant shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of its proposal, including any negotiations with or visits to the Procuring and Disposing Entity, and the Procuring and Disposing Entity shall not be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the procurement process.

## 10. Language of Proposal and Communications

- 10.1 The medium of communication shall be in writing unless otherwise specified in the PDS.
- 10.2 The proposal, as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the proposal exchanged by the Consultant and the Procuring and Disposing Entity, shall be written in English.
- 10.3 Supporting documents and printed literature that are part of the proposal may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages in the language specified in ITC Sub-Clause 10.2, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the proposal, such translation shall govern.

## 11. Preparation of Proposals

- 11.1 Consultants are required to prepare and submit separate technical and financial proposals. The proposal submission method shall be a one stage-two envelope method, unless otherwise specified in the PDS. The one stage-two envelope submission method requires a Consultant to submit a single envelope containing two separately sealed envelopes, labelled technical and financial proposals which are opened on different dates at separate proposal openings.
- 11.2 A pre-proposal meeting will be held where indicated in the PDS. Attendance at the pre-proposal meeting is optional.

## 12. Joint Ventures, Associations and Sub-contracting

- 12.1 If a Consultant considers that it does not have all the expertise for the assignment, it may obtain a full range of expertise by associating with individual consultant(s) or other Consultants or entities in a joint venture or by subcontracting as appropriate, unless otherwise specified in the PDS.
- 12.2 Consultants must obtain the approval of the Procuring and Disposing Entity to enter into a joint venture with Consultants not invited for this assignment or

- other short-listed Consultants.
- 12.3 International Consultants for large contracts are encouraged to seek the participation of national Consultants by entering into a joint venture with, or subcontracting part of the assignment to national Consultants.

#### 13. Professional Staff

- 13.1 For assignments on a staff-time basis, the estimated number of professional staff-months or budget is given in the PDS. The proposal shall, however, be based on the number of professional staff-months estimated by the Consultant.
- 13.2 It is desirable that the majority of the key professional staff proposed are permanent employees of the Consultant or have an extended and stable working relationship with the Consultant.
- 13.3 Proposed professional staff must, as a minimum, have the experience indicated in the Statement of Requirements, preferably working under conditions similar to those prevailing in Uganda.
- 13.4 The consultant and the professional staff shall confirm their availability for the assignment using the Forms included in section 4.
- 13.5 Alternative professional staff shall not be proposed, and only one curriculum vitae (CV) may be submitted for each position.
- 13.6 As the determination of the Best Evaluated Proposal will be based, among other factors, on an evaluation of proposed key professional staff, the Procuring and Disposing Entity expects to award a contract on the basis of the experts and specialists named in the proposal.
- 13.7 The Procuring and Disposing Entity will not consider substitutions unless both parties agree that undue delay in the procurement process makes such substitution unavoidable or that such changes are critical to meet the objectives of the assignment. If this is not the case and if it is established that key staff were offered in the proposal without confirming their availability, the proposal may be rejected.

## 14. Technical Proposal

- 14.1 The technical proposal shall provide the following information using the standard forms contained in Section 4, Proposal Forms:
  - (a) The declarations included in the Technical Proposal Submission Sheet (Section 4.1.1);
  - (b) An outline of recent experience on assignments of a similar nature (Section 4.1.2). For each assignment, the outline should indicate, inter alia, the profiles of the staff proposed, the duration of the assignment, the contract amount and the Consultant's involvement;
  - (c) Any comments or suggestions on the Terms of Reference (Section 4.1.3);
  - (d) A description of the methodology for performing the assignment (Section 4.1.4);
  - (e) The list of the proposed staff team by specialism, the proposed assignment of tasks for each staff team member and their timing (Section 4.1.5);

- (f) CVs of the proposed professional staff, signed by both the staff member and the authorised representative submitting the proposal (Section 4.1.6). Key information should include the number of years working for the Consultant and the degree of responsibility held in various assignments; Confirmation of availability of staff (Section 4.1.7)
- (g) Estimates of the total staff input (professional and support staff time) needed to carry out the assignment, supported by bar chart diagrams showing the time proposed for each professional staff team member (Section 4.1.8);
- (h) A description of the Work or Activity Schedule for performing the assignment (Section 4.1.9)
- (i) A Proposal Securing Declaration, as required by the ITC Clause 21 (Section 4.1.10);
- (j) Written confirmation authorising the signatory of the proposal to commit the Consultant, in accordance with ITC Sub-Clause 22.2;
- (k) Documentary evidence in accordance with ITC Clause 18 establishing the Consultant's eligibility;
- (l) Documentary evidence in accordance with ITC Clause 19 establishing the Consultant's qualifications to perform the contract if its proposal is accepted;
- (m) Any additional information requested in the PDS.
- 14.2 The technical proposal shall not include any financial information.

## 15. Financial Proposal

- 15.1 The financial proposal shall list all costs associated with the assignment, using the following standard forms contained in Section 4, Proposal Forms:
  - (a) Financial Proposal Submission Sheet (Section 4.2.1);
  - (b) Summary of Proposal Price Breakdown of Lump Sum (Section 4.2.2);
  - (c) Breakdown of Fees (Section 4.2.3);
  - (d) Breakdown of Reimbursables (Section 4.2.4) for staff (foreign and national in the field and at headquarters); such as subsistence (per diem, housing), transportation (international and local for mobilisation and demobilisation;
  - (e) Breakdown of Miscellaneous Expenses (Section 4.2.5), printing of documents, etc.;
  - (f) Any additional information requested in the PDS.
- 15.2 The total proposal price shall be broken down into the following cost components using the appropriate forms:
  - (a) Fees
  - (b) Reimbursable expenditure
  - (c) Miscellaneous expenses
- 15.3 Where indicated in the PDS, the total proposal price shall be broken down into the separate activities indicated in Section 6, Statement of Requirements with the

- cost elements in ITC Sub Clause 15.2 expressed for each activity.
- 15.4 The financial proposal should clearly estimate, as a separate amount, the local taxes (including social security), duties, fees, levies, and other charges imposed under the applicable law, on the Consultant and their personnel (other than nationals of or permanent residents in Uganda), unless the PDS specifies otherwise.
- 15.5 The completed financial proposal forms will be used to compile the Breakdown of Contract Price in any resulting Agreement as adjusted if necessary, during evaluation or negotiation. The Breakdown of Contract Price will determine prices for any additional Services or costs.
- 15.6 Where commissions and gratuities have or shall be paid by the Consultant in relation to the assignment these shall be listed in the Financial Proposal Submission Sheet.

#### 16. Proposal Prices

16.1Prices quoted by the Consultant shall be fixed during the Consultant's performance of the Contract and not subject to variation on any account, unless otherwise specified in the PDS. A proposal submitted with an adjustable price quotation shall be treated as non-responsive and shall be rejected, pursuant to ITC Clause 30. However, if in accordance with the PDS, prices quoted by the Consultant shall be subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract, a proposal submitted with a fixed price quotation shall not be rejected, but the price adjustment shall be treated as zero.

# 17. Currencies of Proposal

- 17.1 Unless otherwise specified in the PDS, proposal prices shall be quoted in the following currencies:
  - (a) for Services originating in Uganda, the proposal prices shall be quoted in Uganda Shillings, unless otherwise specified in the PDS; and
  - (b) for Services originating from outside Uganda, the proposal prices shall be quoted in the currency of the expense or in the currency of the Consultant's country.
- 17.2 If a Consultant wishes to be paid in a currency or a combination of currencies different from the one in which it was requested to express its quotation, it shall as part of its offer:
  - (a) indicate its requirement to be paid in other currencies, including the amount in each currency or the percentage of the quoted price corresponding to each currency;
  - (b) justify, to the Procuring and Disposing Entity's satisfaction, the requirement to be paid in the currencies requested; and
  - (c) utilise the rate of exchange specified by the Procuring and Disposing Entity to express its offer in the currency required by the Procuring and Disposing Entity. The source, date, and type of exchange rate to be used is indicated in ITC Clause 35.

## 18. Documents Establishing the Eligibility of the Consultant

18.1 To establish their eligibility in accordance with ITC Clause 4, Consultants shall complete the eligibility declarations in the Technical Proposal Submission Sheet, included in Section 4, Proposal Forms and submit the documents required in Section 3, Evaluation Methodology and Criteria.

# 19. Documents Establishing the Qualifications of the Consultant

To establish its qualifications to perform the Contract, the Consultant shall submit any evidence specified in Section 3, Evaluation Methodology and Criteria.

# 20. Period of Validity of Proposals

- 20.1 Proposals shall remain valid until the date specified in the PDS. A proposal valid for a shorter period shall be rejected by the Procuring and Disposing Entity as non-compliant.
- 20.2 During this period, the Consultant is expected to keep available the professional staff proposed for the assignment. The Procuring and Disposing Entity will make its best effort to complete the procurement process within this period.
- 20.3 In exceptional circumstances, prior to the expiration of the proposal validity period, the Procuring and Disposing Entity may request Consultants to extend the period of validity of their proposals. The request and the responses shall be made in writing. If a Proposal Securing Declaration is requested in accordance with ITC Clause 21, it shall also be extended for a corresponding period. A Consultant may refuse the request without being liable for execution of its Proposal Securing Declaration. A Consultant granting the request shall not be required or permitted to modify its proposal.

## 21. Proposal Securing Declaration

- 21.1 The Consultant shall furnish as part of its proposal a Proposal Securing Declaration, in original form if specified in the PDS.
- 21.2 The Proposal Securing Declaration shall be submitted using the Form included in Section 4, Proposal Forms. The Proposal Securing Declaration shall be valid until the date specified in the PDS.
- 21.3 Any proposal not accompanied by a substantially responsive Proposal Securing Declaration, if one is required in accordance with ITC Clause 21, shall be rejected by the Procuring and Disposing Entity as non-compliant.
- 21.4 The Proposal Securing Declaration of all consultants shall be returned as promptly as possible once the successful consultant has signed the Contract or upon request by the unsuccessful consultant after publication of the notice of best evaluated bidder.
- 21.5 A Consultant may be suspended by the Authority from participating in public procurement and disposal activities:
  - (a) if a Consultant withdraws its proposal during the period of proposal validity

- specified by the Consultant on the Proposal Submission Sheet, except as provided in ITC Sub-Clause 20.3; or
- (b) if the successful Consultant fails to:
  - (i) sign the Contract in accordance with ITC Clause 43;
  - (ii) furnish any Performance Security required in accordance with ITC Clause 45; or

## 22. Format and Signing of Proposal

- 22.1 The Consultant shall prepare one original of each of the documents comprising the technical and the financial proposal as described in ITC Clauses 14 and 15 and clearly mark both "ORIGINAL". In addition, the Consultant shall submit copies of both the technical and financial proposals, in the number specified in the PDS and clearly mark each of them "COPY". In the event of any discrepancy between the original and the copies, the original shall prevail.
- 22.2 The original and all copies of the proposal shall be typed or written in indelible ink and shall be signed by a person duly authorised to sign on behalf of the Consultant The name and position held by each person signing the authorisation must be typed or printed below the signature. All pages of the proposal, except for un amended printed literature, shall be signed or initialled by the person signing the proposal.
- 22.3 Any interlineations, erasures, or overwriting shall be valid only if they are signed or initialled by the person signing the proposal.

# D. Submission and Opening of Proposals

## 23. Sealing and Marking of Proposals

- 23.1 The original and all copies of the technical proposal shall be placed in a sealed envelope clearly marked "Technical Proposal," and the original and all copies of the financial proposal in a separate sealed envelope clearly marked "Financial Proposal". The envelopes shall be securely sealed in such a manner that opening and resealing cannot be achieved undetected.
- 23.2 The envelopes containing the technical and financial proposals shall:
  - (a) bear the name and address of the Consultant;
  - (b) be addressed to the Procuring and Disposing Entity in accordance with ITC Clause 24.1; and
  - (c) bear the Procurement Reference Number of this procurement process.
- 23.3 The financial proposal shall also bear a warning "Do Not Open with the technical proposal".
- 23.4 The two envelopes shall be placed in an outer envelope which shall be securely sealed in such a manner that opening and resealing cannot be achieved undetected.
- 23.5 The outer envelope shall:

- (a) bear the name and address of the Consultant;
- (b) be addressed to the Procuring and Disposing Entity in accordance with ITC Sub-Clause 24.1;
- (c) bear the Procurement Reference number of this procurement process; and
- (d) bear a warning not to open before the time and date for proposal opening, in accordance with ITC Sub-Clause 24.1.
- 23.6 If all envelopes are not sealed and marked as required, the Procuring and Disposing Entity will assume no responsibility for the misplacement or premature opening of the proposal.

## 24. Deadline for Submission of Proposals

- 24.1 Proposals must be received by the Procuring and Disposing Entity at the address and no later than the date and time indicated in the PDS.
- 24.2 The Procuring and Disposing Entity may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of proposals by amending the Request for Proposals Document in accordance with ITC Clause 8, in which case all rights and obligations of the Procuring and Disposing Entity and Consultants previously subject to the deadline shall thereafter be subject to the deadline as extended.

# 25. Late Proposals

The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall not consider any proposal that arrives after the deadline for submission of proposals, in accordance with ITC Clause 24. Any proposal received by the Procuring and Disposing Entity after the deadline for submission of proposals shall be declared late, rejected, and returned unopened to the Consultant.

# 26. Withdrawal and Replacement of Proposals

- 26.1 A Consultant may withdraw or replace its proposal after it has been submitted at any time before the deadline for submission of proposals by sending a written notice, duly signed by an authorised representative, which shall include a copy of the authorisation in accordance with ITC Sub-Clause 22.2. Any corresponding replacement of the proposal must accompany the respective written notice. All notices must be:
  - (a) submitted in accordance with ITC Clauses 22 and 23 (except that withdrawals notices do not require copies), and in addition, the respective envelopes shall be clearly marked "WITHDRAWAL" or "REPLACEMENT"; and
  - (b) received by the Procuring and Disposing Entity prior to the deadline prescribed for submission of proposals, in accordance with ITC Clause 24.
- 26.2 Proposals requested to be withdrawn in accordance with ITC Sub-Clause 26.1 shall be returned unopened to the Consultant.
- 26.3 No proposal may be withdrawn or replaced in the interval between the deadline for submission of proposals and the expiration of the period of proposal validity specified by the Consultant on the Proposal Submission Sheet or any extension

thereof.

26.4 Proposals may only be modified by withdrawal of the original proposal and submission of a replacement proposal in accordance with ITC Sub-Clause 26.1. Modifications submitted in any other way shall not be taken into account in the evaluation of proposals.

#### 27. Proposal Opening

- 27.1 The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall conduct the proposal opening in the presence of Consultants` designated representatives who choose to attend, at the address, date and time specified in the PDS.
- 27.2 First, envelopes marked "WITHDRAWAL" shall be opened and read out and the envelope with the corresponding proposal shall not be opened, but returned to the Consultant. No proposal withdrawal shall be permitted unless the corresponding withdrawal notice contains a valid authorisation to request the withdrawal and is read out at the proposal opening.
- 27.3 All other outer envelopes including those marked "REPLACEMENT" shall be opened and the technical proposals within them opened. Replacement proposals shall be recorded as such on the record of the proposal opening.
- 27.4 All technical proposals shall be opened one at a time, reading out: the name of the Consultant; the presence of a Proposal Securing Declaration, if required; and any other details as the Procuring and Disposing Entity may consider appropriate. No proposal shall be rejected at the proposal opening except for late proposals, in accordance with ITC Sub-Clause 25.1.
- 27.5 Only envelopes that are opened and read out at the proposal opening shall be considered further.
- 27.6 The financial proposals shall remain sealed until the time and date notified for the opening of the financial proposals. Evaluators of technical proposals shall have no access to the financial proposals until the detailed evaluation is concluded and the result established.
- 27.7 The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall prepare a record of the proposal opening that shall include, as a minimum: the name of the Consultant, the presence or absence of a Proposal Securing Declaration where required and any other information that is required to be stated at the public opening as indicated in the request for proposals. The Consultants' representatives who are present shall be requested to sign the record. The omission of a Consultant's signature on the record shall not invalidate the contents and effect of the record. A copy of the record shall be distributed to Consultants upon payment of a fee and displayed on the Procuring and Disposing Entity's Notice Board within one working day from the date of the Proposal Opening.

# E. Evaluation of Proposals

# 28. Confidentiality

28.1 Information relating to the examination, evaluation, comparison, and post-

- qualification of proposals, and recommendation of contract award, shall not be disclosed to Consultants or any other persons not officially concerned with such process until information detailing the Best Evaluated Bidder is communicated to all Consultants.
- 28.2 Any effort by a Consultant to influence the Procuring and Disposing Entity in the examination, evaluation, comparison, and post-qualification of the proposals or contract award decisions may result in the rejection of its proposal.
- 28.3 Notwithstanding ITC Clause 28.2, from the time of proposal opening to the time of Contract award, if any Consultant wishes to contact the Procuring and Disposing Entity on any matter related to the procurement process, it should do so in writing.

# 29. Clarification of Proposals

To assist in the examination, evaluation, comparison and post-qualification of the proposals, the Procuring and Disposing Entity may, at its discretion, ask any Consultant for a clarification of its proposal. Any clarification submitted by a Consultant that is not in response to a request by the Procuring and Disposing Entity shall not be considered. The Procuring and Disposing Entity's request for clarification and the response shall be in writing. The request for clarification shall be copied to all Consultants for information purposes. No change in the price or substance of the proposal shall be sought, offered, or permitted, except to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors discovered by the Procuring and Disposing Entity in the evaluation of the financial proposals, in accordance with ITC Clause 31.4.

# 30. Compliance and Responsiveness of Proposals

- 30.1 The Procuring and Disposing Entity's determination of a proposal's compliance and responsiveness shall be based on the contents of the proposal itself.
- 30.2 A substantially compliant and responsive proposal is one that conforms to all the terms, conditions, and requirements of the Request for Proposals Document without material deviation, reservation, or omission. A material deviation, reservation, or omission is one that:
  - (a) is inconsistent with the request for proposal and which may limit in any substantial way, the rights of the procuring and disposing entity or the obligations of the consultant under the contract;
  - (b) if corrected would unfairly affect the competitive position of the other consultants whose proposals are administratively compliant; or
  - (c) impacts the key factors of a procurement including cost, risk, time and quality and causes unacceptable -
    - (i) time schedules, where it is stated in the request for proposals that time is of the essence;

- (ii) alternative technical details, such as design, materials, workmanship, specifications, standards or methodologies; or
- (iii) counter proposals with respect to key contract terms and conditions, such as payment terms, price adjustment, liquidated damages, subcontracting or warranty.
- 30.3 If a proposal is not substantially compliant and responsive to the Request for Proposals Document, it shall be rejected by the Procuring and Disposing Entity and may not subsequently be made compliant and responsive by the Consultant by correction of the material deviation, reservation, or omission.

## 31. Nonconformities, Errors, and Omissions

- 31.1 Provided that a proposal is substantially compliant and responsive, the Procuring and Disposing Entity may waive any non-conformity or omission in the proposal that does not constitute a material deviation.
- 31.2 Provided that a proposal is substantially compliant and responsive, the Procuring and Disposing Entity may request that the Consultant submit the necessary information or documentation, within a reasonable period of time, to rectify nonmaterial nonconformities or omissions in the proposal related to documentation requirements. Such omission shall not be related to any aspect of the price of the proposal. Failure of the Consultant to comply with the request may result in the rejection of its proposal.
- 31.3 Provided that a proposal is substantially compliant and responsive, the Procuring and Disposing Entity shall rectify nonmaterial nonconformities or omissions. To this effect, the proposal price may be adjusted, for comparison purposes only, to reflect the price of the missing or non-conforming item or component.
- 31.4 Provided that the proposal is substantially compliant and responsive, the Procuring and Disposing Entity shall correct arithmetic errors on the following basis:
  - (a) if there is a discrepancy between the unit price and the total price that is obtained by multiplying the unit price and quantity, the unit price shall prevail and the total price shall be corrected, unless in the opinion of the Procuring and Disposing Entity there is an obvious misplacement of the decimal point in the unit price, in which case the total price as quoted shall govern and the unit price shall be corrected;
  - (b) if there is an error in a total corresponding to the addition or subtraction of subtotals, the subtotals shall prevail and the total shall be corrected; and
  - (c) if there is a discrepancy between words and figures, the amount in words shall prevail, unless the amount expressed in words is related to an arithmetic error, in which case the amount in figures shall prevail subject to (a) and (b) above.
- 31.5 If the Consultant that submitted the best evaluated bid does not accept the correction of errors, its proposal shall be rejected and it may be suspended by

the Authority from participating in public procurement and disposal activities.

# 32. Preliminary Examination of Proposals – Eligibility and Administrative Compliance

- 32.1 The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall examine the legal documentation and other information submitted by Consultants to verify the eligibility of Consultants in accordance with ITC Clause 4.
- 32.2 If after the examination of eligibility, the Procuring and Disposing Entity determines that the Consultant is not eligible, it shall reject the proposal.
- 32.3 The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall examine the technical proposals to confirm that all documents and technical documentation requested in ITC Clause 14 has been provided, and to determine the completeness of each document submitted.
- 32.4 The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall confirm that the following documents and information have been provided in the technical proposal. If any of these documents or information is missing, the offer shall be rejected.
  - (a) Technical Proposal Submission Sheet, including:
    - (i) a brief description of the services offered; and
    - (ii) the correct validity date of the proposal
  - (b) separately sealed financial proposal;
  - (c) written confirmation of authorisation to commit the Consultant; and
  - (d) a Proposal Securing Declaration, if required.

#### 33. Detailed Evaluation

- 33.1 The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall technically evaluate the proposals on the basis of the Consultant's responsiveness to the Terms of Reference, applying the evaluation criteria, sub-criteria, and methodology specified in Section 3. A proposal shall be rejected at this stage if it does not respond to important aspects of the Terms of Reference or if it fails to achieve any minimum technical score indicated in Section 3.
- 33.2 The Procuring and Disposing Entity may, where so indicated in the PDS, conduct interviews with the key staff stated in the PDS. The expected method and date of interview shall be as indicated in the PDS. All costs associated with any interviews shall be for the account of the consultant(s) concerned. Consultants shall be provided with adequate notice of any interviews planned.
- 33.3 The proposals proceeding to the financial evaluation shall be determined in accordance with the methodology and criteria specified in Section 3.

## 34. Opening of Financial Proposals

34.1 After the detailed evaluation is completed, the Procuring and Disposing Entity shall notify those Consultants whose proposals did not qualify for the financial opening, indicating reasons why their proposal was disqualified and that their financial proposals will be returned unopened after of at least 10 working days from display of the best evaluated bidder notice.

- 34.2 The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall simultaneously notify the Consultant(s) whose proposals passed the technical evaluation stage, indicating the date and time set for the opening of financial proposal(s). The opening date shall not be sooner than one week after the notification date. The notification will be sent in writing.
- 34.3The financial proposal(s) shall be opened in the presence of the Consultants' representatives who choose to attend. The name of the Consultant, the technical score, and the proposal price(s) shall be read out and recorded when the financial proposal(s) are opened. The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall prepare minutes of the public opening.

## 35. Conversion to Single Currency

For evaluation and comparison purposes, the Procuring and Disposing Entity shall convert all proposal prices expressed in the amounts in various currencies into a single currency, using the selling exchange rate established by the source and on the date twenty-one days prior to the deadline for closing of proposals. Should this date be a non-working day the selling exchange rate on the date prior to this non-working day shall be used for currency conversion or as otherwise specified in the PDS.

# **36.** Margin of Preference

- 36.1 Unless otherwise specified in the PDS, a margin of preference shall apply. Where a Margin of Preference applies, its application and detail shall be specified in Section 3, Evaluation Methodology and Criteria.
- 36.2 For the purpose of granting a margin of domestic preference, proposals will be classified in one of three groups, as follows:
  - (a) Group A: proposals from consultants incorporated or registered in Uganda where more than fifty percent of the consultant's capital is owned by Ugandan citizens or by the Government or a procuring and disposing entity of Uganda;
  - (b) Group B: proposals from joint ventures or associations registered in Uganda and including a consultant qualifying under the conditions in paragraph (a) which holds more than fifty percent beneficiary interest in the joint venture or association; and
  - (c) Group C: all other proposals which do not qualify for preference under paragraphs (a) or (b).
- 36.3 Consultants claiming eligibility for a Margin of Preference must complete the declarations in the Financial Proposal Submission Sheet and provide documentary evidence of their eligibility in accordance with paragraphs 36.2 (a) or (b) above.

# 37. Financial Comparison of Proposals

37.1 The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall financially compare each financial

proposal that has been opened.

- 37.2 To financially evaluate a proposal, the Procuring and Disposing Entity shall only use the criteria and methodologies defined in this Clause and in Section 3, Evaluation Methodology and Criteria. No other criteria or methodology shall be permitted.
- 37.3 In the calculation of the evaluated price of each proposal, the Procuring and Disposing Entity shall include the costs stated in Section 3, Evaluation Methodology and Criteria.
- 37.4 To determine the evaluated price, the Procuring and Disposing Entity shall consider the following:
  - (a) the proposal price;
  - (b) price adjustment for correction of arithmetic errors in accordance with ITC Sub-Clause 31.4;
  - (c) adjustment for nonconformities and omissions in accordance with ITC Sub-Clause 31.3; and
  - (d) adjustments due to the application of a margin of preference, in accordance with ITC Clause 36.

# 38. Determination of Best Evaluated Proposal

The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall compare all substantially compliant and responsive proposals to determine the best evaluated bid/proposal, in accordance with Section 3, Evaluation Methodology and Criteria.

# 39. Post-qualification of the Consultant

- 39.1 If so stated in Section 3, the Procuring and Disposing Entity shall determine to its satisfaction whether the Consultant that is selected as having submitted the best evaluated proposal is qualified to perform the Contract satisfactorily.
- 39.2 The determination shall be based upon an examination of the documentary evidence of the Consultant's qualifications submitted by the Consultant, pursuant to ITC Clause 19, to clarifications in accordance with ITC Clause 29 and the qualification criteria indicated in Section 3, Evaluation Methodology and Criteria. Factors not included in Section 3 shall not be used in the evaluation of the Consultant's qualifications.
- 39.3 An affirmative determination shall be a prerequisite for award of the Contract to the Consultant. A negative determination shall result in disqualification of the proposal, in which event the Procuring and Disposing Entity shall proceed to the next best evaluated proposal to make a similar determination of that Consultant's capabilities to perform satisfactorily.
- 39.4 If pre-qualification has been conducted, no post-qualification will be conducted but pre-qualification information shall be verified.

#### 40. Negotiations

40.1 Negotiations may be held with the best evaluated Consultant following the

evaluation of proposals.

40.2 The cost of any negotiations or technical discussions shall be borne by the respective parties themselves.

## F. Award of Contract

## 41. Award Procedure

- 41.1 The Procuring Entity shall issue a Notice of Best Evaluated Bidder within five working days after a decision of the contracts committee to award a contract, place such Notice on its notice board for a prescribed period, copy the Notice to all Consultants and the Authority for publication on its website.
- 41.2 A procuring and disposing entity shall not award a contract to the best evaluated bidder until the lapse of ten days after the date of display of the notice of the best evaluated bidder.
- 41.3 The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall award the Contract to the Consultant whose offer has been determined to be the best evaluated proposal, provided that the Consultant is determined to be qualified to perform the Contract satisfactorily and subject to satisfactory negotiations.

# 42. Procuring and Disposing Entity's Right to Accept or Reject Any or All Proposals

The Procuring and Disposing Entity reserves the right to accept or reject any proposal, and to annul the procurement process and reject all proposals at any time prior to contract signature and issue by the Procuring and Disposing Entity, without thereby incurring any liability to Consultants.

## 43. Signing and effectiveness of the Contract

- 43.1 On expiry of the ten working days after the date of display of the notice of the best evaluated bidder and upon approval of the Attorney General where applicable, the Procuring and Disposing Entity shall sign a contract with the successful Consultant.
- 43.2 Failure by the successful Consultant to sign the contract shall constitute sufficient ground for annulment of the contract award.
- 43.3 Effectiveness of the Contract shall be subject any conditions specified in the Contract.

# 44. Debriefing

Where a Consultant requests information on the reasons for their success or failure of their proposal, the Procuring and Disposing Entity shall give the Consultant a written debrief after the signing of the contract.

#### 45. Administrative Review

Consultants may seek an Administrative Review by the Accounting Officer in accordance with the Public Procurement and Disposal of Public Assets Act, 2003 if they are aggrieved with the decision of the Procuring and Disposing Entity.

# Section 2: Proposal Data Sheet

| Instructions to<br>Consultants<br>Reference | Data relevant to the ITC   |
|---|--|
|   | A. General   |
| ITC 1.1                                     | The Procuring and Disposing Entity is: Kampala Capital City Authority  |
| ITC 1.3                                     | Subject: The subject of the procurement is: Procurement of Consultancy Services for preparation of a detailed Physical Development plan for Kawempe Urban Center and Action Plans for Ten Strategic Road Corridors under GKMA-UDP  |
| ITC 1.3                                     | Reference: The Procurement Reference Number is: KCCA-GKMA/CONS/2025-2026/00004   |
| ITC 1.3                                     | <b>Lots:</b> The number and identification of lots comprising this Request for Proposals Document is: <b>N/A</b> The minimum and maximum number of Lots a Consultant may bid for is: <b>N/A</b>  |
| ITC 4.2                                     | Joint Ventures: The individuals or firms in a joint venture, consortium or association SHALL be jointly and severally liable.  Where a Joint Venture is proposed, a copy of the Joint Venture Agreement  |
|   | entered into by all partners should be submitted; In the case of Proposals submitted by a JV, a Power of Attorney from each member of the JV nominating a Representative in the JV and a Power of Attorney from the JV nominating a representative who shall have the authority to conduct all business for and on behalf of any and all the parties of the JV |
| ITC 5.4                                     | <b>Downstream work:</b> The Procuring and Disposing Entity <b>DOES NOT</b> envisage the need for continuity for downstream work.   |
|   | B. Request for Proposals Document  |
| ITC 7                                       | <b>Clarification:</b> For clarification purposes only the Procuring and Disposing Entity's address is:   |
|   | Attention: Head Procurement & Disposal Department, Kampala Capital City Authority Street Address: Plot 1-3 Apole Kaggwa Bood   |
|   | Street Address: Plot 1-3, Apolo Kaggwa Road Town/City: Kampala PO Box No: 7010, Kampala, Uganda Electronic mail address: procurement@kcca.go.ug  |
|   | The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall respond to any request for clarification provided that such request is received no later than 17 <sup>th</sup> September 2025.  |

| Instructions to<br>Consultants<br>Reference                                    | Data relevant to the ITC   |   |  |
|--|--|---|--|
|  | C. Preparation of Proposals  |   |  |
| ITC 10.1   | Medium: The medium of c  | ommunication shall be in writing.   |  |
| ITC 11.1   | Submission Method: The p   | roposal submission method shall be:   |  |
|  | (a) the one stage-two envelope method where the proposal is submitted in sealed envelope containing two separately sealed envelopes labelled proposal" and "financial proposal"                |   |  |
|  | •  | ed to arrange their proposals with a table of contents and iments in sequential chronology of submissions |  |
| ITC 11.2   | Pre-Proposal meeting: A Pre-Proposal meeting SHALL be held.  |   |  |
|  | Date: 8 <sup>th</sup> September 2025   | Time: <b>10:00 Am</b>   |  |
| Address for Pre-Proposal meeting: Procurement & Dispose Capital City Authority |  | meeting: Procurement & Disposal Department, Kampala   |  |
|  | Street Address:  | Plot 1-3 Apolo Kaggwa Road  |  |
|  | Floor/Room number:   | First Floor, Block B – Room B117  |  |
|  | Town/City:   | Kampala   |  |
|  | Country:   | Uganda  |  |
|  | The contact details of the Procuring and Disposing Entity's official(s) are:  Name and position:  Ronald Emeru, Program Procurement Officer  Street Address:  Plot 1-3, Apolo Kaggwa Road      |   |  |
|  |  |   |  |
|  |  |   |  |
|  | Floor/Room number:   | First Floor, Bock B, Room B117  |  |
|  | Town/City:   | Kampala   |  |
|  | Country:   | Uganda  |  |
|  | Telephone:   | +256 761007100  |  |
|  | E mail:  | procurement@kcca.go.ug / remeru@kcca.go.ug  |  |
| ITC 12.1   | <b>Association:</b> Consultants <b>shall</b> be permitted to associate with individual Consultants or other Consultants or entities in a joint venture.  |   |  |
| ITC 12.2   | Prior to granting approval to enter into a joint venture, the Procuring and Disposing Entityconduct an assessment of Consultants not invited for this assignment. N/A                          |   |  |
| ITC 13.1   | Estimated Man Months: The estimated number of professional staff-months required for the assignment is: Ten man-months  or  Budget for the Assignment: The allocated budget for the Assignment |   |  |

# Part 2: Section 2. Proposal Data Sheet

| Instructions to<br>Consultants<br>Reference | Data relevant to the ITC   |  |
|---|--|--|
|   | is(N/A)  |  |
| ITC 14.1(m)                                 | Additional information in Technical Proposal: Additional information required in the Technical Proposal includes: Information relating to the Consultant's previous performance and contracts  |  |
| ITC 15.1 (f)                                | Additional information in Financial Proposal: Additional information required in the Financial Proposal includes: A written Authorization for KCCA to seek information from the Consultant's Bank  |  |
| ITC 15.3                                    | <b>Price Breakdown:</b> The Financial Proposal <b>SHALL</b> be broken down into the price for each Activity.   |  |
| ITC 15.4                                    | Taxes: The Financial Proposal SHALL indicate taxes as a separate amount. However the Taxes under this contract shall be deemed paid by the Entity  |  |
| ITC 16.1                                    | <b>Prices:</b> The prices quoted by the Consultant shall be: <b>Fixed for the entire Contract</b> duration   |  |
| ITC 17.1 (a)                                | Currency: For Services originating in Uganda the currency of the proposal shall be: Uganda Shillings   |  |
| ITC 17.1 (b)                                | <b>Currency:</b> For Services originating from outside of Uganda the currency of the proposal shall be: <b>Uganda Shillings</b>  |  |
| ITC 20.1                                    | Validity: Proposals must remain valid until 17 <sup>th</sup> March 2026  |  |
| ITC 21.1                                    | Proposal Securing Declaratio: A Proposal Securing Declaration shall be required.   |  |
|   | The Proposal security shall be in the form of an on-Demand Bank Guarantee from a reputable Commercial Bank recognized by Bank of Uganda. Bid securities from Banks outside Uganda shall be issued through a Local Corresponding Bank   |  |
|   | The amount and currency of Proposal Security shall be as: N/A  |  |
| ITC 21.2                                    | Validity of Proposal Securing Declaration: The Proposal Securing Declaration shall be valid until: 13 <sup>th</sup> April 2026   |  |
| ITC 22.1                                    | Number of Copies: In addition to the original of the technical and financial proposal, the number of copies of each required is: Five (5) bound and 1 (one) soft copy of the entire proposal on a USB drive or Flash disc  |  |
| ITC 22.2                                    | Form of Authorisation:  (a) A Registered Power of Attorney specific to this procurement, If drawn and signed in Uganda; or a notarized Power of Attorney also specific to this procurement, if drawn and signed outside Uganda should be provided; and  (b) In the case of Bids submitted by a Venture, Consortium or Association (JVCA) an undertaking signed by all parties shall: |  |

| Instructions to<br>Consultants<br>Reference | Data relevant to the ITC   |  |
|---|--|--|
|   | (i) state that all parties shall be jointly and severally liable, if so required in accordance with ITB 4.1(a), and  |  |
|   | (ii) nominate a Representative who shall have the authority to conduct all business for and on behalf of any and all the parties of the Joint Venture, Consortium or Association (JVCA) during the bidding process and, in the event the Joint Venture, Consortium or Association (JVCA) is awarded the Contract, during contract execution. |  |
| D. Submis                                   | sion and Opening of Proposals  |  |
| ITC 24.1                                    | <b>Proposal Submission:</b> For proposal submission purposes only, the Procuring and Disposing Entity's address is:  |  |
|   | The Procurement & Disposal Department, Kampala Capital City Authority  |  |
|   | Street Address: Plot 1-3, Apolo Kaggwa Road  |  |
|   | Town/City: Kampala   |  |
|   | P. O Box No <b>7010, Kampala, Uganda</b>   |  |
|   | The deadline for proposal submission is:  Date: 24 <sup>th</sup> September 2025 Time (local time): 11:00 am  |  |
| ITC 27.1                                    | <b>Proposal Opening:</b> The proposal opening for the technical proposal shall take place at:  |  |
|   | The Procurement & Disposal Department, Kampala Capital City Authority  |  |
|   | Street Address: Plot 1-3, Apolo Kaggwa Road  |  |
|   | Floor/Room number: First Floor, Block B, Room B117   |  |
|   | Town/City: Kampala   |  |
|   | Country: <b>Uganda</b> Date: <b>24</b> <sup>th</sup> <b>September 2025</b> Time (local time): <b>11:30 am</b> .  |  |
| ITC 32.4                                    | The following documents and information <b>SHALL</b> be provided in the technical proposal. If any of these documents or information is missing, the offer shall be rejected.  |  |
|   | a) Technical Proposal Submission Sheet, including:   |  |
|   | i. a brief description of the services offered; and  |  |
|   | ii. the correct validity date of the proposal  |  |
|   | b)separately sealed financial proposal;  |  |
|   | c) written confirmation of authorisation to commit the Consultant; and   |  |
|   | d)a Proposal Security with the correct validity date   |  |
|   | AND ANY OTHER DOCUMENT AND INFORMATION THAT MAY BE REQUESTED FOR   |  |

# Part 2: Section 2. Proposal Data Sheet

| Instructions to<br>Consultants<br>Reference | Data relevant to the ITC  |  |
|---|---|--|
|   | UNDER SECTION 3 AND OTHER PARTS OF THIS BIDDING DOCUMENT  |  |
| ITC 33.2                                    | Interviews: Interviews shall not be held.  Key Staff/staff to be interviewed:   |  |
| E. Evaluation of Proposals                  |   |  |
| ITC 35                                      | Exchange Rate: The currency that shall be used for financial comparison purposes convert all proposal prices expressed in various currencies into a single currency Uganda shillings. Proposals expressed in other currencies shall be rejected |  |
|   | The source of exchange rate shall be: Bank of Uganda. N/A   |  |
|   | The date for the exchange rate shall be: N/A  |  |
| ITC 36.1                                    | Margin of Preference: A margin of preference <i>Shall not</i> apply.  |  |
|   | If a margin of preference applies, the application methodology and the level of margin shall be as stated in Section 3, Evaluation Methodology and Criteria.  |  |

# Section 3. Evaluation Methodology and Criteria

# Part 2: Section 3. Evaluation Methodology and Criteria

# Procurement Reference Number: KCCA-GKMA/CONS/2025-2026/00004

<u>Evaluation of Proposals:</u> The evaluation of Proposals will use the **Quality and Cost Based Selection (QCBS)** methodology as detailed below:

- 1. Preliminary examination to determine eligibility (as defined below) and administrative compliance to this Request for Proposals on a pass/fail basis;
- Detailed evaluation to compare the details of the proposal with the criteria stated below;
- 3. Financial comparison to examine and compare the financial proposals and to determine the best evaluated bid.

Proposals failing any stage will be eliminated and not considered in subsequent stages.

<u>Eligibility Criteria</u>: You are required to meet the following criteria to be eligible to participate in public procurement:

- 1. have the legal capacity to enter into a contract;
- 2. not be insolvent, in receivership, bankrupt or being wound up or subject to legal proceedings for any of these circumstances;
- 3. not have had your business activities suspended;
- 4. have fulfilled your obligations to pay taxes and social security contributions;
- 5. have the nationality of an eligible country, as defined in the Special Conditions of Contract;
- 6. not to have a conflict of interest in relation to this procurement requirement; and
- 7. not to be subject to suspension by the Public Procurement and Disposal of Public Assets Authority.

<u>Documents Evidencing Eligibility</u>: Consultants are requested to submit copies of the following documents as evidence of your eligibility and sign the declaration in the Technical Proposal Submission Sheet:

- (a) a certificate of registration issued by the Authority for bidders currently registered with the Authority or a copy of the Bidder's valid Trading licence for the year 2025 or equivalent and a copy of the Bidder's Certificate of Registration or equivalent for bidders not currently registered with the Authority;
- (b) Fulfilment of obligations to pay Social Security contributions in Uganda where applicable or its equivalent. This shall be evidenced by a valid National Social Security Fund Certificate for the month of June 2025.
- (c) Fulfilment of obligations to pay taxes evidenced by a valid tax clearance certificate for the tax period ending 30<sup>th</sup> June 2025 or equivalent;
- (d) The Beneficial Ownership Declaration Form. The bidder shall submit an official Beneficial Ownership Declaration form issued by a Competent Authority in the country of domicile. This form should indicate the directors and beneficial owners of the firm.
- (e) a statement in the Bid Submission Sheet that the bidder meets the eligibility criteria stated in ITB 4.1;
- (f) a declaration in the Bid Submission Sheet of nationality of the Bidder;
- (g) a statement in the Bid Submission Sheet that the Bidder has no conflict of interest;
- (h) a declaration in the Bid Submission Sheet that the Bidder is not under suspension by the Public Procurement and Disposal of Public Assets Authority;
  - (i) a statement in the Bid Submission Sheet on the validity period for

- For a Joint Venture or consortium, the documentation in Section 3.2 shall be required for each member of the Joint Venture and the following additional documentation shall also be required:
- (a) a certified copy of the Joint Venture or consortium Agreement, which is legally binding on all partners, showing that:
  - (i) all partners shall be jointly and severally liable for the execution of the Contract in accordance with the Contract terms:
  - (ii) one of the partners will be nominated as being in charge, authorised to incur liabilities, and receive instructions for and on behalf of any and all partners of the joint venture; and
  - (iii) the execution of the entire Contract, including payment, shall be done exclusively with the partner in charge.
- (b) Registered Power of Attorney of the signatory(ies) of the proposal authorising signature of the bid on behalf of the joint venture/consortium;

# 4 Administrative Compliance Criteria

- 4.1 The evaluation of Administrative Compliance criteria shall be conducted in accordance with ITB Clause 30.3
  - (a) Copy of the receipt of purchase of solicitation documents.
  - (b) Proposal Security valid up to 25<sup>th</sup> March 2026 in the standard format
  - (c) Registered or notarised Power of Attorney of the signatory to the proposal specific to the project.
  - (d) Code of ethical conduct in business for bidders and providers
  - (e) Separately sealed technical and financial proposals.
  - (f) The number of copies of the proposal to be submitted are five (5) in addition to the original and a soft copy.
  - (g) Submission of audited books of accounts or other financial statements acceptable to the Employer, for the last Three years (2021-2022, 2022-2023, 2023-2024) to demonstrate the current soundness of the Consultant's financial position and its prospective long term profitability. The books of accounts should have been audited by a certified accountant/firm.

<u>Nationality of Personnel</u>: All personnel employed under any resulting contract shall have the nationality of an eligible country as defined in the Special Conditions of Contract. Any related services purchased under any resulting contract shall have as their country of origin an eligible country, as defined in the Special Conditions of Contract.

<u>Technical Criteria</u>: Proposals shall be awarded scores out of the maximum number of points indicated below for each of the following criteria:

# Part 2: Section 3. Evaluation Methodology and Criteria

#### **Technical Criteria**:

The technical Proposal will be evaluated on the basis of the following criteria

- (a) A brief description of the Bidder's organisation and an outline of recent experience on assignments of a similar nature (Section 4.1.2). For each assignment, the outline should indicate, inter alia, the profiles of the staff proposed, the duration of the assignment, the contract amount and the Bidder's involvement;
- (b) Any comments or suggestions on the Terms of Reference (Section 4.1.3);
- (c) A description of the methodology for performing the assignment (Section 4.1.4);
- (d) The list of the proposed staff/team by specialism, the proposed assignment of tasks for each staff team member and their timing (Section 4.1.5);
- (e) CVs of the proposed professional staff, signed by both the staff member and the authorised representative submitting the proposal (Section 4.1.6). Key information should include the number of years working for the Bidder and the degree of responsibility held in various assignments during the last ten years; Should also attach copies of academic qualifications.
- (f) Estimates of the total staff input (professional and support staff time) needed to carry out the assignment, supported by bar chart diagrams showing the time proposed for each professional staff team member (Section 4.1.7);
- (g) A description of the provision of consultancy services or Activity Plan for performing the assignment (Section 4.1.8)
- (h) Documentary evidence in accordance with ITB Clause 19 establishing the Bidder's qualifications to perform the contract if its bid is accepted

<u>Technical Criteria</u>: Proposals shall be awarded scores out of the maximum number of points indicated below for each of the following criteria:

| General Experience   | 10 points        |
|----------------------|------------------|
| Specific Experience  | <b>10</b> points |
| Methodology Proposed | <b>30</b> points |
| Key Personnel        | <b>50</b> points |
| Total:               | 100 points       |

The minimum technical score required to pass the technical evaluation is 80 points.

| CRITERIA  | MAXIMUM<br>MARKS (%) |
|---|----------------------|
| METHODOLOGY PROPOSED  | 30                   |
| a) Adequacy of the proposed Methodology in responding to the Terms of<br>Reference (TORs) {Notes to Consultant: The Client will assess whether<br>the proposed methodology is clear, responds to the TORs, work plan is<br>realistic and implementable; overall team composition is balanced and<br>has an appropriate skills mix; and the work plan has right input of<br>Experts} | 15                   |
| b) Clear understanding of the TOR for the assignment and comments on<br>the TOR. Scores shall be given for clear sequencing of work,<br>chronology, risk identification and management, innovative approaches<br>in work-planning.  | 8                    |
| <ul> <li>c) Adequacy of the proposed detailed Work plan which includes<br/>understanding of the key elements of the proposed road works. Scores<br/>shall be given for clear sequencing of work, chronology, risk<br/>identification and management,</li> </ul>   | 7                    |
| General and Specific Experience relevant to the Assignment  | 20                   |

| Genera  | al Firm Experience  |                |
|---------|---|----------------|
| The fir | m must have a minimum of 15 years of demonstrable experience in the ing areas:  |                |
| b)      | Preparation of physical development plans and detailed local plans within GKMA or comparable urban environments.  Design and implementation of slum upgrading interventions in high-density urban settlements.  Formulation of eco-sensitive and climate-responsive physical development plans (e.g., wetland buffers, green corridors, climate-adaptive zoning). | <mark>6</mark> |
|         | Development of urban planning regulations, bylaws, and development control frameworks.  Preparation of action plans for strategic road and infrastructure corridors, including Bus Rapid Transit (BRT), non-motorized transport   |                |
| The fi  | networks, and integrated utilities.  m must demonstrate specific capacity to deliver integrated, inclusive,   |                |
| and c   | imate-resilient urban spatial solutions with a focus on the Kawempe Center and strategic corridors. This includes:  Climate Resilience in GKMA Context  |                |
|         | <ul> <li>Proven experience with flood mitigation and urban stormwater<br/>management systems in informal settlements.</li> </ul>  |                |
|         | - Integration of heat-reduction and urban cooling strategies (e.g., reflective surfaces, urban greening) in dense neighborhoods.  |                |
| ii.     | Strategic Urban Intensification   |                |
|         | <ul> <li>Application of compact, smart, mixed-use urban development<br/>principles aligned with the KPDP prescriptions.</li> </ul>  | 4              |
|         | - Preservation of ecological zones within urban growth frameworks.  | <u>4</u>       |
|         | - Design of slum upgrading frameworks integrating tenure security, disaster risk reduction, and green infrastructure.   |                |
| iii.    | Smart and Green Corridor Development  |                |
|         | - Development of low-carbon, transit-oriented corridor action plans.  |                |
|         | <ul> <li>Inclusion of EV-ready infrastructure, pedestrian and cycling facilities.</li> </ul>  |                |
|         | - Application of nature-based solutions (e.g., bioswales, linear parks, urban forests) along transport corridors.   |                |
| iv.     | Inclusive and Participatory Planning Approaches   |                |

| - Use of community co-design processes, especially in informal settlements and among vulnerable groups (women, youth, and persons with disabilities).  - Experience in applying climate-adaptive standards for incremental and self-built housing.  v. Eco-Sensitive zoning frameworks  - Drafting of enforceable regulations promoting:  • Mandatory greening, rainwater harvesting systems, and sustainable drainage.  • Setbacks from wetlands and urban agriculture zones.  • Energy-efficient and climate-smart zoning codes.  Specific Firm Experience  Firms must submit documentation for at least two (2) relevant projects implemented within the past 10 years that demonstrate:  a) Integration of flood resilience and climate adaptation in detailed urban development plans within GKMA or similar contexts. b) Participatory slum upgrading initiatives with measurable climate and social outcomes (e.g., reduced flooding, enhanced thermal comfort, improved tenure). c) Corridor development strategies featuring integrated green infrastructure, non-motorized transport systems, and modal shift interventions.  The firm must demonstrate a multi-disciplinary approach and advanced technical competencies in the following domains:  - Assessment of land-use efficiency, densification strategies (including TOD), and mixed-use zoning models.  - Analysis of informality, regularization pathways, and affordable housing strategies.  - Evaluation of municipal finance and land value capture (LVC) tools linked to densification and infrastructure governance.  - Review of tenure systems and their impact on urban form and development.  - Integration of green infrastructure, nature-based solutions (NBS), and urban ecosystem services.  - Analysis of smart governance frameworks and opportunities for digital integration in planning.  b) Integrated Urban Assessments  - Assessment of housing needs, socio-economic vulnerabilities, spatial disparities, and informality dynamics.  - Evaluation of climate risks (flooding, heat stress) and |   |   |
|--|---|---|
| v. Eco-Sensitive zoning frameworks  - Drafting of enforceable regulations promoting:  • Mandatory greening, rainwater harvesting systems, and sustainable drainage.  • Setbacks from wetlands and urban agriculture zones.  • Energy-efficient and climate-smart zoning codes.  Specific Firm Experience  Firms must submit documentation for at least two (2) relevant projects implemented within the past 10 years that demonstrate:  a) Integration of flood resilience and climate adaptation in detailed urban development plans within GKMA or similar contexts. b) Participatory slum upgrading initiatives with measurable climate and social outcomes (e.g., reduced flooding, enhanced thermal comfort, improved tenure). c) Corridor development strategies featuring integrated green infrastructure, non-motorized transport systems, and modal shift interventions.  The firm must demonstrate a multi-disciplinary approach and advanced technical competencies in the following domains: a) Comprehensive Policy & Gap Analysis:  - Assessment of land-use efficiency, densification strategies (including TOD), and mixed-use zoning models Analysis of informality, regularization pathways, and affordable housing strategies Evaluation of municipal finance and land value capture (LVC) tools linked to densification and infrastructure governance Review of tenure systems and their impact on urban form and development Integration of green infrastructure, nature-based solutions (NBS), and urban ecosystem services Analysis of smart governance frameworks and opportunities for digital integration in planning. b) Integrated Urban Assessments - Assessment of housing needs, socio-economic vulnerabilities, spatial disparities, and informality dynamics.  | settlements and among vulnerable groups (women, youth, and  |   |
| - Drafting of enforceable regulations promoting:  - Mandatory greening, rainwater harvesting systems, and sustainable drainage.  - Setbacks from wetlands and urban agriculture zones.  - Energy-efficient and climate-smart zoning codes.  Specific Firm Experience  Firms must submit documentation for at least two (2) relevant projects implemented within the past 10 years that demonstrate:  a) Integration of flood resilience and climate adaptation in detailed urban development plans within GKMA or similar contexts.  b) Participatory slum upgrading initiatives with measurable climate and social outcomes (e.g., reduced flooding, enhanced thermal comfort, improved tenure).  c) Corridor development strategies featuring integrated green infrastructure, non-motorized transport systems, and modal shift interventions.  The firm must demonstrate a multi-disciplinary approach and advanced technical competencies in the following domains:  a) Comprehensive Policy & Gap Analysis:  - Assessment of land-use efficiency, densification strategies (including TOD), and mixed-use zoning models.  - Analysis of informality, regularization pathways, and affordable housing strategies.  - Evaluation of municipal finance and land value capture (LVC) tools linked to densification and infrastructure governance.  - Review of tenure systems and their impact on urban form and development.  - Integration of green infrastructure, nature-based solutions (NBS), and urban ecosystem services.  - Analysis of smart governance frameworks and opportunities for digital integration in planning.  b) Integrated Urban Assessments  - Assessment of housing needs, socio-economic vulnerabilities, spatial disparities, and informality dynamics.   |   |   |
| Mandatory greening, rainwater harvesting systems, and sustainable drainage.  Setbacks from wetlands and urban agriculture zones.  Energy-efficient and climate-smart zoning codes.  Specific Firm Experience  Firms must submit documentation for at least two (2) relevant projects implemented within the past 10 years that demonstrate:  a) Integration of flood resilience and climate adaptation in detailed urban development plans within GKMA or similar contexts.  b) Participatory slum upgrading initiatives with measurable climate and social outcomes (e.g., reduced flooding, enhanced thermal comfort, improved tenure).  c) Corridor development strategies featuring integrated green infrastructure, non-motorized transport systems, and modal shift interventions.  The firm must demonstrate a multi-disciplinary approach and advanced technical competencies in the following domains:  a) Comprehensive Policy & Gap Analysis:  Assessment of land-use efficiency, densification strategies (including TOD), and mixed-use zoning models.  Analysis of informality, regularization pathways, and affordable housing strategies.  Evaluation of municipal finance and land value capture (LVC) tools linked to densification and infrastructure governance.  Review of tenure systems and their impact on urban form and development.  Integration of green infrastructure, nature-based solutions (NBS), and urban ecosystem services.  Analysis of smart governance frameworks and opportunities for digital integration in planning.  b) Integrated Urban Assessments  Assessment of housing needs, socio-economic vulnerabilities, spatial disparities, and informality dynamics.   | v. Eco-Sensitive zoning frameworks  |   |
| sustainable drainage.  Setbacks from wetlands and urban agriculture zones.  Energy-efficient and climate-smart zoning codes.  Specific Firm Experience  Firms must submit documentation for at least two (2) relevant projects implemented within the past 10 years that demonstrate:  a) Integration of flood resilience and climate adaptation in detailed urban development plans within GKMA or similar contexts. b) Participatory slum upgrading initiatives with measurable climate and social outcomes (e.g., reduced flooding, enhanced thermal comfort, improved tenure). c) Corridor development strategies featuring integrated green infrastructure, non-motorized transport systems, and modal shift interventions.  The firm must demonstrate a multi-disciplinary approach and advanced technical competencies in the following domains: a) Comprehensive Policy & Gap Analysis:  - Assessment of land-use efficiency, densification strategies (including TOD), and mixed-use zoning models Analysis of informality, regularization pathways, and affordable housing strategies Evaluation of municipal finance and land value capture (LVC) tools linked to densification and infrastructure governance Review of tenure systems and their impact on urban form and development Integration of green infrastructure, nature-based solutions (NBS), and urban ecosystem services Analysis of smart governance frameworks and opportunities for digital integration in planning.  b) Integrated Urban Assessments - Assessment of housing needs, socio-economic vulnerabilities, spatial disparities, and informality dynamics.   | - Drafting of enforceable regulations promoting:  |   |
| Firms must submit documentation for at least two (2) relevant projects implemented within the past 10 years that demonstrate:  a) Integration of flood resilience and climate adaptation in detailed urban development plans within GKMA or similar contexts. b) Participatory slum upgrading initiatives with measurable climate and social outcomes (e.g., reduced flooding, enhanced thermal comfort, improved tenure). c) Corridor development strategies featuring integrated green infrastructure, non-motorized transport systems, and modal shift interventions.  The firm must demonstrate a multi-disciplinary approach and advanced technical competencies in the following domains: a) Comprehensive Policy & Gap Analysis:  - Assessment of land-use efficiency, densification strategies (including TOD), and mixed-use zoning models Analysis of informality, regularization pathways, and affordable housing strategies Evaluation of municipal finance and land value capture (LVC) tools linked to densification and infrastructure governance Review of tenure systems and their impact on urban form and development Integration of green infrastructure, nature-based solutions (NBS), and urban ecosystem services Analysis of smart governance frameworks and opportunities for digital integration in planning. b) Integrated Urban Assessments - Assessment of housing needs, socio-economic vulnerabilities, spatial disparities, and informality dynamics.  | ,   |   |
| Firms must submit documentation for at least two (2) relevant projects implemented within the past 10 years that demonstrate:  a) Integration of flood resilience and climate adaptation in detailed urban development plans within GKMA or similar contexts.  b) Participatory slum upgrading initiatives with measurable climate and social outcomes (e.g., reduced flooding, enhanced thermal comfort, improved tenure).  c) Corridor development strategies featuring integrated green infrastructure, non-motorized transport systems, and modal shift interventions.  The firm must demonstrate a multi-disciplinary approach and advanced technical competencies in the following domains:  a) Comprehensive Policy & Gap Analysis:  - Assessment of land-use efficiency, densification strategies (including TOD), and mixed-use zoning models.  - Analysis of informality, regularization pathways, and affordable housing strategies.  - Evaluation of municipal finance and land value capture (LVC) tools linked to densification and infrastructure governance.  - Review of tenure systems and their impact on urban form and development.  - Integration of green infrastructure, nature-based solutions (NBS), and urban ecosystem services.  - Analysis of smart governance frameworks and opportunities for digital integration in planning.  b) Integrated Urban Assessments  - Assessment of housing needs, socio-economic vulnerabilities, spatial disparities, and informality dynamics.   | <ul> <li>Setbacks from wetlands and urban agriculture zones.</li> </ul>   |   |
| Firms must submit documentation for at least two (2) relevant projects implemented within the past 10 years that demonstrate:  a) Integration of flood resilience and climate adaptation in detailed urban development plans within GKMA or similar contexts.  b) Participatory slum upgrading initiatives with measurable climate and social outcomes (e.g., reduced flooding, enhanced thermal comfort, improved tenure).  c) Corridor development strategies featuring integrated green infrastructure, non-motorized transport systems, and modal shift interventions.  The firm must demonstrate a multi-disciplinary approach and advanced technical competencies in the following domains:  a) Comprehensive Policy & Gap Analysis:  - Assessment of land-use efficiency, densification strategies (including TOD), and mixed-use zoning models.  - Analysis of informality, regularization pathways, and affordable housing strategies.  - Evaluation of municipal finance and land value capture (LVC) tools linked to densification and infrastructure governance.  - Review of tenure systems and their impact on urban form and development.  - Integration of green infrastructure, nature-based solutions (NBS), and urban ecosystem services.  - Analysis of smart governance frameworks and opportunities for digital integration in planning.  b) Integrated Urban Assessments  - Assessment of housing needs, socio-economic vulnerabilities, spatial disparities, and informality dynamics.   | <ul> <li>Energy-efficient and climate-smart zoning codes.</li> </ul>  |   |
| a) Integration of flood resilience and climate adaptation in detailed urban development plans within GKMA or similar contexts. b) Participatory slum upgrading initiatives with measurable climate and social outcomes (e.g., reduced flooding, enhanced thermal comfort, improved tenure). c) Corridor development strategies featuring integrated green infrastructure, non-motorized transport systems, and modal shift interventions.  The firm must demonstrate a multi-disciplinary approach and advanced technical competencies in the following domains: a) Comprehensive Policy & Gap Analysis:  - Assessment of land-use efficiency, densification strategies (including TOD), and mixed-use zoning models.  - Analysis of informality, regularization pathways, and affordable housing strategies Evaluation of municipal finance and land value capture (LVC) tools linked to densification and infrastructure governance Review of tenure systems and their impact on urban form and development Integration of green infrastructure, nature-based solutions (NBS), and urban ecosystem services Analysis of smart governance frameworks and opportunities for digital integration in planning. b) Integrated Urban Assessments - Assessment of housing needs, socio-economic vulnerabilities, spatial disparities, and informality dynamics.   | Specific Firm Experience  |   |
| urban development plans within GKMA or similar contexts. b) Participatory slum upgrading initiatives with measurable climate and social outcomes (e.g., reduced flooding, enhanced thermal comfort, improved tenure). c) Corridor development strategies featuring integrated green infrastructure, non-motorized transport systems, and modal shift interventions.  The firm must demonstrate a multi-disciplinary approach and advanced technical competencies in the following domains: a) Comprehensive Policy & Gap Analysis: - Assessment of land-use efficiency, densification strategies (including TOD), and mixed-use zoning models Analysis of informality, regularization pathways, and affordable housing strategies Evaluation of municipal finance and land value capture (LVC) tools linked to densification and infrastructure governance Review of tenure systems and their impact on urban form and development Integration of green infrastructure, nature-based solutions (NBS), and urban ecosystem services Analysis of smart governance frameworks and opportunities for digital integration in planning. b) Integrated Urban Assessments - Assessment of housing needs, socio-economic vulnerabilities, spatial disparities, and informality dynamics.  |   |   |
| c) Corridor development strategies featuring integrated green infrastructure, non-motorized transport systems, and modal shift interventions.  The firm must demonstrate a multi-disciplinary approach and advanced technical competencies in the following domains:  a) Comprehensive Policy & Gap Analysis:  - Assessment of land-use efficiency, densification strategies (including TOD), and mixed-use zoning models.  - Analysis of informality, regularization pathways, and affordable housing strategies.  - Evaluation of municipal finance and land value capture (LVC) tools linked to densification and infrastructure governance.  - Review of tenure systems and their impact on urban form and development.  - Integration of green infrastructure, nature-based solutions (NBS), and urban ecosystem services.  - Analysis of smart governance frameworks and opportunities for digital integration in planning.  b) Integrated Urban Assessments  - Assessment of housing needs, socio-economic vulnerabilities, spatial disparities, and informality dynamics.  | urban development plans within GKMA or similar contexts. b) Participatory slum upgrading initiatives with measurable climate and social outcomes (e.g., reduced flooding, enhanced thermal  | 6 |
| technical competencies in the following domains:  a) Comprehensive Policy & Gap Analysis:  - Assessment of land-use efficiency, densification strategies (including TOD), and mixed-use zoning models.  - Analysis of informality, regularization pathways, and affordable housing strategies.  - Evaluation of municipal finance and land value capture (LVC) tools linked to densification and infrastructure governance.  - Review of tenure systems and their impact on urban form and development.  - Integration of green infrastructure, nature-based solutions (NBS), and urban ecosystem services.  - Analysis of smart governance frameworks and opportunities for digital integration in planning.  b) Integrated Urban Assessments  - Assessment of housing needs, socio-economic vulnerabilities, spatial disparities, and informality dynamics.  | c) Corridor development strategies featuring integrated green infrastructure, non-motorized transport systems, and modal shift  |   |
| - Evaluation of climate risks (flooding, heat stress) and  | technical competencies in the following domains:  a) Comprehensive Policy & Gap Analysis:  - Assessment of land-use efficiency, densification strategies (including TOD), and mixed-use zoning models.  - Analysis of informality, regularization pathways, and affordable housing strategies.  - Evaluation of municipal finance and land value capture (LVC) tools linked to densification and infrastructure governance.  - Review of tenure systems and their impact on urban form and development.  - Integration of green infrastructure, nature-based solutions (NBS), and urban ecosystem services.  - Analysis of smart governance frameworks and opportunities for digital integration in planning.  b) Integrated Urban Assessments  - Assessment of housing needs, socio-economic vulnerabilities, spatial disparities, and informality | 4 |
|  | · ·   |   |

- disaster resilience at the neighborhood scale.
- Identification of opportunities for sustainable densification and improved land-use efficiency.
- Resource flow analysis (energy, water, waste) and circular economy potential within urban systems.

### c) Advanced Analytics and Feasibility Analysis

- Cost-benefit and return on investment (ROI) analysis for proposed interventions.
- Spatial-economic modeling incorporating climate change scenarios, demographic trends, and corridor dynamics.
- Urban investment feasibility studies emphasizing green, resilient, and smart infrastructure.
- Application of Al-based predictive modeling for densification impacts, land value shifts, infrastructure stress, and climate risk exposure.

### d) Inclusive and Collaborative Planning

- Facilitation of multi-stakeholder consultations and policy dialogues.
- Implementation of community-based urban planning and participatory design approaches.
- Integration of community feedback on densification, land use, and green space allocation.
- Use of digital participatory tools (e.g., mobile platforms, geo-surveys) for inclusive engagement.

#### e) Technical and Policy Alignment

- Deep familiarity with Ugandan planning processes, legal frameworks, and institutional arrangements.
- Application of international best practices and toolkits (e.g., UN-Habitat, C40 Cities).
- Integration of concepts such as the 15-Minute City, biophilic design, and nature-based urban cooling strategies.

### f) Use of Digital Tools and Data

- Advanced capacity in GIS, remote sensing, and spatial data analytics.
- Deployment of Al-powered tools for urban growth simulation, land value prediction, traffic modeling, and climate vulnerability mapping.
- Use of digital twins, IoT integration, and smart infrastructure monitoring tools.
- Optimization of land use, mixed-use compatibility, and green network planning through data-driven approaches.

In the event of a Joint Venture or Association, the Lead Member must have at least one (01) project that qualifies. The projects presented must have been carried out by the firm presenting the experience, either solely or through a Joint Venture or Association. Experience carried out

| by parent companies (for subsidiaries) or acquired companies (in the case of mergers and acquisitions) shall not be accepted. Evidence (in form of copies of signed contract pages or equivalent) shall be adduced to show this experience.   |    |
|---|----|
| KEY PERSONNEL - Relevant Formal Qualifications and Competencies of the proposed consultants for the Assignment {Notes to Consultant: each position number corresponds to the same for the Key Experts in Form 4.1.6 to be prepared by the Consultant}. CVs of all Key and Non-Key staff must be Signed. | 50 |
| K-1: Team Leader/Physical Planning Expert   | 12 |
| Bachelor's Degree in Urban Planning   | 4  |
| Msc. in related field.  | 5  |
| Must be registered with a relevant professional body Must be registered with a relevant professional body   | 3  |
| K-2: Physical Planner   | 8  |
| Bachelor's Degree in Urban Planning with specialty in Urban Design and  | 2  |
| Msc. in related field.  | 4  |
| Must be registered with a relevant professional body  | 2  |
| K-3: Urban Transport Planner  | 8  |
| Post Graduate Degree / Two Year Postgraduate Diploma in Planning (with Specialization in Transport Planning or equivalent).   | 5  |
| Must be registered with a relevant professional body  | 3  |

| K-4 Infrastructure Planner   | 5 |
|--|---|
| Post Graduate Degree / Two Year Postgraduate Diploma in Planning (with Specialization in Infrastructure Planning) or Equivalent. | 3 |
| Must be registered with a relevant professional body   | 2 |
| K-5 Environmental and Climate Resilient Planner  | 4 |
| Bachelor's Degree in Environment and Natural Resource or Environmental Engineering or Environmental Planning                     | 1 |
| Post Graduate Degree in Environmental Engineering,   | 1 |
| Msc. Environmental Planning  | 2 |
| K-6 Municipal Land Based Finance Specialist & Land Value Capture Specialist  | 4 |
| Bachelor's Degree in Land Economics,   | - |
| Master's in Business Administration (MBA),   | 1 |
| Professional Certification in Management, Business or economics or equivalent.   | 1 |
| K-7 Social Development and community Engagement Expert   | 2 |
| Post Graduate Degree in Social Development/ Sociology / Social sciences  | 2 |
| K-8 Information, Education and Communication (IEC) Expert  | 3 |
| Bachelor's Degree in Mass Communication and  | 1 |
| Masters in Mass Communication  | 2 |
| K-9 GIS and Land Surveying Expert  | 4 |
| Bachelor's Degree in Land Surveying/Geomatics  | 1 |
| Masters in GIS, Geodesy, Land Management or Physical Planning.   | 2 |
| Must be registered with a relevant professional body   | 1 |

### **Financial Criteria:**

Costs to be included, in the evaluated price are:

- -Fees, reimbursable expenses and miscellaneous costs, for each activity
- -Taxes, duties and levies. (However, these are deemed paid by the Client under this contract);

### **Determination of Financial Score**

To determine financial scores for each bid, the lowest priced proposal shall be given a financial score of 100, and other proposals shall, by application of the following formulae be given a score proportionate to this:

 $Sf = 100 \times Fm/F$ 

#### in which:

Sf denotes the financial score of the proposal under consideration;

Fm is the price of the lowest price proposal that passed the technical evaluation;

F denotes the price of the proposal under consideration.

#### **Determination of Combined Technical and Financial Scores**

Proposals will be ranked according to their combined technical (St) and financial (Sf) scores using the weightings.

 $S = (St \times T\%) + (Sf \times P\%)$  where S is the combined technical and financial score

The weights given to the scores of the Technical and Financial proposals are:

T = 80 (denotes the weight given to the Technical Proposal); and

P = 20 (denotes the weight given to the Financial Proposal);

<u>Currency</u>: Proposals be priced in Uganda Shillings. The currency of evaluation will be **Uganda** Shillings. Proposals in other currencies shall be rejected

### **Best Evaluated Consultant:**

The best evaluated bid shall be the one with the highest weighted financial and technical score and shall be recommended for award of contract.

The weighted average of the technical and financial scores shall be the basis of determining the best evaluated bid. The technical bid will account for 80% of the weighting for the overall evaluation and the financial bid will account for 20%.

The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall issue a Notice of Best Evaluated Bidder within 5 working days from the decision of the contracts committee to award a contract, place such Notice on its notice board for the prescribed period, copy the Notice to all Consultants and to the Authority for publication on its website, prior to proceeding with contract award.

Award of contract: Award of contract shall be by placement of an Agreement in accordance

with Part 3: Contract. A Procuring and Disposing Entity shall not award a contract to the best evaluated bidder until the lapse of ten days after the date of display of the Notice of Best Evaluated Bidder.

<u>Right to Review</u>: Consultants may seek administrative review by the Accounting Officer in accordance with the Public Procurement and Disposal of Public Assets Act, 2003 if they are aggrieved with the decision of the Procuring and Disposing Entity.

<u>Right to Reject</u>: The Procuring and Disposing Entity reserves the right to accept or reject any proposal or to cancel the procurement process and reject all proposals at any time prior to contract signature and issue by the Procuring and Disposing Entity, without incurring any liability to Consultants.

# Section 4. Proposal Forms

## **Table of Contents**

| 4.1 | Technical | Proposal - | - Standard | <b>Forms</b> |
|-----|-----------|------------|------------|--------------|
|-----|-----------|------------|------------|--------------|

- 4.1.1 Technical Proposal Submission Sheet.
- 4.1.1.1 Code of ethical conduct in business for bidders and providers
- 4.1.2 Consultant's References.
- 4.1.3 Comments and Suggestions on the Terms of Reference.
- 4.1.4 Description of the Methodology for performing the Assignment.
- 4.1.5 Team Composition and Task Assignments.
- 4.1.6 Format of Curriculum Vitae for Proposed Professional Staff.
- 4. 1.7 Confirmation of availability of professional staff
- 4.1.8 Estimated Time Schedule for Professional Staff.
- 4.1.9 Activity (Work) Schedule.
- 4.1.10 Proposal Securing Declaration

#### 4.2 Financial Proposal - Standard Forms

- 4.2.1 Financial Proposal Submission Sheet.
- 4.2.2 Summary of Proposal Price (Breakdown of Lump Sum).
- 4.2.3 Breakdown of Fees.
- 4.2.4 Breakdown of Reimbursables.
- 4.2.5 Breakdown of Miscellaneous Expenses.

[This Proposal Submission Sheet should be on the letterhead of the Consultant and should be signed by a person with the proper authority to sign documents that are binding on the Consultant. It should be included by the Consultant in its technical proposal]

# 4.1.1 Technical Proposal Submission Sheet

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of proposal submission]
Procurement Reference No: [insert Procurement Reference number]

To: [insert complete name of Procuring and Disposing Entity]

We, the undersigned, declare that:

- (a) We have examined and have no reservations to the Request for Proposals Document, including Addenda No.: [insert the number and issuing date of each Addenda];
- (b) We offer to provide the services in conformity with the Request for Proposals Document for the *[insert a brief description of the Services]*;
- (c) We hereby submit our proposal which includes this technical proposal, and a financial proposal sealed under a separate envelope;
- (d) Our proposal shall be valid until the date specified in ITC Clause 20.1 and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before and including that date;
- (e) We, including any subcontractors or consultants for any part of the contract resulting from this procurement process, are eligible to participate in public procurement in accordance with ITC Clause 4.1;
- (f) We, including any subcontractors or consultants for any part of the contract resulting from this procurement process are registered with the Authority Registration Number [insert registration number]. [Consultants who are not registered or whose subcontractors are not registered should amend the statement to reflect their status];
- (g) We, including any associates, Joint Venture partners or Sub contractors for any part of the contract, have nationals from eligible countries [insert the nationality of the Consultant, including that of all parties that comprise the Consultant, if the Consultant is a Joint Venture, consortium or association, and the nationality of each subcontractor];
- (h) We have signed and undertake to abide by the Code of Ethical Conduct for Consultants attached during the procurement process and the execution of any resulting contract;
- (i) We are not participating, as Consultants, in more than one proposal in this procurement process;
- (j) We, including any subcontractors or consultants, do not have any conflict of interest and have not participated in the preparation of the original project for the Procuring and Disposing Entity;
- (k) We, our affiliates or subsidiaries—including any subcontractors for any part of the contract—have not been suspended by the Public Procurement and Disposal of Public Assets Authority in Uganda from participating in public procurement;

- (I) Our Proposal is binding upon us, subject to modifications agreed during any contract negotiations, and we undertake to negotiate on the basis of the staff proposed in our Proposal;
- (m) We understand that this Proposal, shall not be binding on the Entity until a formal contract is prepared and executed;
- (n) We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest proposal or any other proposal that you may receive;

Signed: [signature of person whose name and capacity are shown below]

Name: [insert complete name of person signing the Proposal]

In the capacity of [insert legal capacity of person signing the proposal]

Duly authorised to sign the proposal for and on behalf of: [insert complete name of Consultant]

Dated on \_\_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_\_, \_\_\_\_ [insert date of signing]

# 4.1.1.1 CODE OF ETHICAL CONDUCT IN BUSINESS FOR BIDDERS AND PROVIDERS

(Under Section 93 of the Public Procurement and Disposal of Public Assets Act, 2003)

### 1. Ethical Principles

Bidders and providers shall at all times-

- (a) maintain integrity and independence in their professional judgement and conduct;
- (b) comply with both the letter and the spirit of
  - i. the laws of Uganda; and
  - ii. any contract awarded.
- (c) avoid associations with businesses and organisations which are in conflict with this code.

#### 2. Standards

Bidders and providers shall-

- (a) strive to provide works, services and supplies of high quality and accept full responsibility for all works, services or supplies provided;
- (b) comply with the professional standards of their industry or of any professional body of which they are members.

#### 3. Conflict of Interest

Bidders and providers shall not accept contracts which would constitute a conflict of interest with, any prior or current contract with any procuring and disposing entity. Bidders and providers shall disclose to all concerned parties those conflicts of interest that cannot reasonably be avoided or escaped.

### 4. Confidentiality and Accuracy of Information

- (1) Information given by bidders and providers in the course of procurement processes or the performance of contracts shall be true, fair and not designed to mislead.
- (2) Providers shall respect the confidentiality of information received in the course of performance of a contract and shall not use such information for personal gain.

### 5. Gifts and Hospitality

Bidders and providers shall not offer gifts or hospitality directly or indirectly, to staff of a procuring and disposing entity that might be viewed by others as having an influence on a government procurement decision.

### 6. Inducements

- (1) Bidders and providers shall not offer or give anything of value to influence the action of a public official in the procurement process or in contract execution.
- (2) Bidders and providers shall not ask a public official to do anything which is inconsistent with the Act, Regulations, Guidelines or the Code of Ethical Conduct in Business.

#### 7. Fraudulent Practices

Bidders and providers shall not-

- (a) collude with other businesses and organisations with the intention of depriving a procuring and disposing entity of the benefits of free and open competition;
- (b) enter into business arrangements that might prevent the effective operation of fair competition;
- (c) engage in deceptive financial practices, such as bribery, double billing or other improper financial practices;
- (d) misrepresent facts in order to influence a procurement process or the execution of a contract to the detriment of the Procuring and Disposing Entity; or utter false documents;
- (e) unlawfully obtain information relating to a procurement process in order to influence the process or execution of a contract to the detriment of the PDE;
- (f) withholding information from the PDE during contract execution to the detriment of the PDE.

| iness.            | agree to | comply | with the | above o | code of e | thical | conduct in |
|-------------------|----------|--------|----------|---------|-----------|--------|------------|
|                   |          |        |          |         |           |        |            |
| AUTHORISED SIGNAT | ΓORY     | N/     | AMF      | 0       | F         | co     | NSUI TANT  |

[The information requested is required in the format provided below and should be included by the Consultant in its proposal]

# 4.1.2 Consultant's References

| Relevant services carried out   | in the last | years ( <i>Insert</i> | number of ye | ears required) |
|---------------------------------|-------------|-----------------------|--------------|----------------|
| that best illustrate experience | •           |                       |              |                |

Using the format below, provide information on each assignment for which the Consultant, either individually as a corporate entity or as one of the major companies within an association, was legally contracted.

|   | _   |  |
|---|---|--|
| Assignment name:                        |   |  |
| Location within country:                |   |  |
| Name of client:                         |   |  |
| Address:                                |   |  |
| Completion da (Month/Year):             | te Approx. Value of services (ir Current US\$):                   |  |
| Name of Associated Consultants, if any: |   |  |
| oject Director/Coordinator, Tea         | am Leader) involved and functions                                 |  |
| roject:                                 |   |  |
| ces provided by your Staff:             |   |  |
|   | (Month/Year):  ultants, if any:  pject Director/Coordinator, Tear |  |

[The information requested is required in the format provided below and should be included by the Consultant in its proposal. If none, include form and state "None"]

# 4.1.3 Comments and Suggestions on the Terms of Reference

[Comments and suggestions on the Terms of Reference that could improve the quality/effectiveness of the assignment; and on requirements for counterpart staff and facilities, which are provided by the Client, including: administrative support, office space, local transportation, equipment, data, etc.]

#### A - On the Terms of Reference

{Improvements to the Terms of Reference, if any}

### **B** - On Counterpart Staff and Facilities

{Comments on counterpart staff and facilities to be provided by the Client. For example, administrative support, office space, local transportation, equipment, data, background reports, etc., if any}

[The information requested is required in the format provided below and should be included by the Consultant in its proposal]

# 4.1.4 Description of the Methodology for performing the Assignment

A description of the approach, methodology and work plan for performing the assignment, including a detailed description of the proposed methodology and staffing for training, if the Terms of Reference specify training as a specific component of the assignment.

{Suggested structure of your Technical Proposal}:

- a) Technical Approach and Methodology
- b) Work Plan
- c) Organization and Staffing}
- a) <u>Technical Approach and Methodology:</u> This explains your understanding of the objectives of the assignment as outlined in the Terms of Reference (TORs), the technical approach, and the methodology you would adopt for implementing the tasks to deliver the expected output(s), and the degree of detail of such output. <u>Please do not repeat/copy the TORs in here.</u>}
- b) <u>Work Plan.</u>{Please outline the plan for the implementation of the main activities/tasks of the assignment, their content and duration, phasing and interrelations, milestones (including interim approvals by the Client), and tentative delivery dates of the reports. The proposed work plan should be consistent with the technical approach and methodology, showing your understanding of the TOR and ability to translate them into a feasible working plan. A list of the final documents (including reports) to be delivered as final output(s) should be included here. The work plan should be consistent with the Work Schedule Form.}
- c) <u>Organization and Staffing:</u> {Please describe the structure and composition of your team, including the list of the Key Experts, Non-Key Experts and relevant technical and administrative support staff.}

[The information requested is required in the format provided below and should be included by the Consultant in its proposal]

# 4.1.5. Team Composition and Task Assignments

| 1. Technical/Managerial Staff |          |         |  |
|-------------------------------|----------|---------|--|
| Name                          | Position | Task(s) |  |
|                               |          |         |  |
|                               |          |         |  |
|                               |          |         |  |
|                               |          |         |  |

| 2. Support Staff |          |         |  |
|------------------|----------|---------|--|
| Name             | Position | Task(s) |  |
|                  |          |         |  |
|                  |          |         |  |
|                  |          |         |  |
|                  |          |         |  |

[The information requested is required in the format provided below and should be included by the Consultant in its proposal]

# 4.1.6 Format of Curriculum Vitae for Proposed Professional Staff

# **CURRICULUM VITAE (CV)**

| Position Title and No.           | {e.g., A-1, TEAM LEADER} |
|----------------------------------|--------------------------|
| Name of Expert:                  | {Insert full name}       |
| Date of Birth:                   | {day/month/year}         |
| Country of Citizenship/Residence |                          |

| Education:  | {List    | college/university   | or   | other  | specialized   | education,   | giving | names | of |
|-------------|----------|----------------------|------|--------|---------------|--------------|--------|-------|----|
| educational | l instit | utions, dates attend | ded, | degree | e(s)/diploma( | s) obtained} |        |       |    |
|             |          |                      |      |        |               |              |        |       |    |
|             |          | <del></del>          |      |        |               | <del> </del> |        |       |    |
|             |          |                      |      |        |               |              |        |       |    |
|             |          |                      |      |        |               |              |        |       |    |

**Employment record relevant to the assignment:** {Starting with present position, list in reverse order. Please provide dates, name of employing organization, titles of positions held, types of activities performed and location of the assignment, and contact information of previous clients and employing organization(s) who can be contacted for references. Past employment that is not relevant to the assignment does not need to be included.}

| Period                          | Employing organization and your title/position. Contact information for references               | Country | Summary of activities performed relevant to the Assignment |
|---------------------------------|--|---------|--|
| [e.g., May<br>2005-<br>present] | [e.g., Ministry of, advisor/consultant to  For references: Tel/e-mail; Mr. A2 , Project manager] |         |  |
|                                 |  |         |  |

Page: 50

| Membership      | in        | Professional        | Associations        | and<br>— | Publications |
|-----------------|-----------|---------------------|---------------------|----------|--------------|
| Language Skills | (indicate | only languages in v | vhich you can work) | :        |              |

(the same who signs the Proposal)

| Adequacy for the Assignment:  |  |
|---|--|
| Detailed Tasks Assigned on Consultant's Team of Experts:  | Reference to Prior Work/Assignments that<br>Best Illustrates Capability to Handle th<br>Assigned Tasks |
| {List all deliverables/tasks in which the Expert will be involved)  |  |
|   |  |
|   |  |
| I, the undersigned, certify that to the best of describes myself, my qualifications, and my exassignment in case of an award. I understand described herein may lead to my disqual sanctions by the Bank. | xperience, and I am available to undertake th<br>d that any misstatement or misrepresentatio           |
|   | {day/month/year}   |
| Name of Expert<br>Date  | Signature  |
| {day/month/year}  |  |
| Name of authorized S  | Signature  |
| Representative of the Consultant  |  |

| 4.1.7 Format f               | or confirmati  | on of availab | ility of Key F        | Professional | Staff                               |
|------------------------------|----------------|---------------|-----------------------|--------------|-------------------------------------|
| Subject of procurement :     |                |               | Procurement<br>number | reference    |                                     |
|                              |                |               |                       |              |                                     |
| Consultant                   |                |               |                       |              |                                     |
|                              |                |               |                       |              |                                     |
| List of key<br>staff         | professional   | Competence    | ies of key<br>I staff |              | ge of time for<br>ey staff shall be |
|                              |                |               |                       |              |                                     |
|                              |                |               |                       |              |                                     |
|                              |                |               |                       |              |                                     |
|                              |                |               |                       |              |                                     |
| Confirmation                 |                |               |                       | •            |                                     |
| Icertify that the Signature: | staff describe | ed above sha  |                       | e as indicat |                                     |
|                              |                |               |                       |              |                                     |

[The information requested is required in the format provided below and should be included by the Consultant in its proposal. Consultants may reproduce this format in landscape format if more practical but are responsible for its accurate reproduction.]

# 4.1.8 Estimated Time Schedule for Professional Staff

|          |          |                        | Months (in the Form of a Bar Chart) |   |   |      |      |     |   |   |   |   |   |     |                     |  |
|----------|----------|------------------------|-------------------------------------|---|---|------|------|-----|---|---|---|---|---|-----|---------------------|--|
| Name     | Position | Reports Due/Activities | 1                                   | 2 | 3 | 4    | 5    | 6   | 7 | 8 | 9 | 1 | 1 | 1 2 | Number of<br>Months |  |
|          |          |                        |                                     |   |   |      |      |     |   |   |   |   |   |     | Subtotal (1)        |  |
|          |          |                        |                                     |   |   |      |      |     |   |   |   |   |   |     | Subtotal (2)        |  |
|          |          |                        |                                     |   |   |      |      |     |   |   |   |   |   |     | Subtotal (3)        |  |
|          |          |                        |                                     |   |   |      |      |     |   |   |   |   |   |     | Subtotal (4)        |  |
|          |          |                        |                                     |   |   |      |      |     |   |   |   |   |   |     |                     |  |
| Full-tin | ne:      |                        |                                     |   |   | Part | -tim | ne: |   |   |   |   |   |     |                     |  |

| Full-time:                  | Part-time: |
|-----------------------------|------------|
|                             |            |
| Signature:                  |            |
| (Authorised Representative) |            |
| Full Name:                  | Title:     |
| Consultant:                 |            |

[The information requested is required in the format provided below and should be included by the Consultant in its proposal. Consultants may reproduce this format in landscape format if more practical but are responsible for its accurate reproduction]

# 4.1.9 Activity (Work) Schedule

## A. Technical Input

|                 | [1st, 2nd, etc. are months from the start of assignment.] |                 |  |   |                     |                         |                             |                                 |                  |                  |                  |
|-----------------|---|-----------------|--|---|---------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------------|---------------------------------|------------------|------------------|------------------|
| 1 <sup>st</sup> | 2 <sup>nd</sup>   | 3 <sup>rd</sup> | 4 <sup>th</sup>                                | 5 <sup>th</sup>   | 6 <sup>th</sup>     | 7 <sup>th</sup>         | 8 <sup>th</sup>             | 9 <sup>th</sup>                 | 10 <sup>th</sup> | 11 <sup>th</sup> | 12 <sup>th</sup> |
|                 |   |                 |  |   |                     |                         |                             |                                 |                  |                  |                  |
|                 |   |                 |  |   |                     |                         |                             |                                 |                  |                  |                  |
|                 |   |                 |  |   |                     |                         |                             |                                 |                  |                  |                  |
|                 |   |                 |  |   |                     |                         |                             |                                 |                  |                  |                  |
|                 |   |                 |  |   |                     |                         |                             |                                 |                  |                  |                  |
|                 |   |                 |  |   |                     |                         |                             |                                 |                  |                  |                  |
|                 |   |                 |  |   |                     |                         |                             |                                 |                  |                  |                  |
|                 | 131   | 131 2114        | 1 <sup>51</sup> 2 <sup>11</sup> 3 <sup>1</sup> | 1 <sup>st</sup> 2 <sup>st</sup> 3 <sup>st</sup> 4 <sup>st</sup> | 1st 2nd 3nd 4nn 5nn | 1st 2nd 3nd 4nn 5nn 6nn | 1st 2nd 3nd 4nn 5nn 6nn 7nn | 1st 2nd 3nd 4nn 5nn 6nn 7nn 8nn |                  |                  |                  |

## B. Completion and Submission of Reports and other Deliverables

|    | Reports  | Date |
|----|--|------|
| 1. | Inception Report   |      |
| 2. | Monthly Report   |      |
|    | <ul><li>(a) Incident logs</li><li>(b) Grievance logs</li></ul> |      |
| 3. | Quarterly Reports  |      |
| 4. | Annual Reports   |      |
| 5. | Other Deliverables   |      |

# 4.1.10 Proposal Securing Declaration

[The Consultant shall fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated. If the Consultant is a Joint Venture, Consortium or Association the Proposal Securing Declaration must be in the name of the Joint Venture, Consortium or Association that submits the proposal. If the Joint Venture has not been legally constituted at the time of bidding, the Proposal Securing Declaration shall be in the names of all future partners as named in the letter of intent]

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Proposal Submission]

Procurement Reference No.: [insert reference number of selection process]

To: [insert complete name of Procuring and Disposing Entity]

I/We, the undersigned, declare that:

- 1. I/We understand that, according to your conditions, proposals must be supported by a Proposal Securing Declaration.
- 2. I/We accept that I/we may be suspended for three years by the Authority from being eligible for bidding in any contract with the Government of Uganda, if we are in breach of our obligation(s) under the Request for Proposals conditions, because we:
  - (a) have withdrawn our proposal during the period of proposal validity specified by us in the Technical Proposal Submission Sheet, except as provided in ITC Sub-Clause 20.3; or
  - (b) having been notified of the acceptance of our proposal by the Procuring and Disposing Entity, during the period of proposal validity, fail or refuse to:
    - (i) sign the Contract in accordance with ITC Clause 43;
    - (ii) furnish the Performance Security, in accordance with the ITC Clause 50; or
    - (iii) accept the correction of our bid by the Procuring and Disposing Entity, pursuat to ITC sub Clause 31.4.
- 3. I/We understand this Proposal Securing Declaration shall expire on [Insert date as per ITC Clause 21].

| Signed: [insert signature of person whose name and capacity are shown] In the capacity of [insert legal capacity of person signing the Proposal Securing Declaration] |
|---|
| Name: [insert complete name of person signing the Proposal Securing Declaration]  |
| Duly authorized to sign the proposal for and on behalf of: [insert complete name of Consultant]   |
| Dated on day of, [insert date of signing]   |

# **Performance Security**

[The Performance Security should be on the letterhead of the issuing Financial Institution and should be signed by a person with the proper authority to sign documents that are binding on the Financial Institution.

| Beneficiary:   |   |
|--|---|
| Date: [insert date (as o   | day, month and year) of Performance Security]   |
| Performance Security   | Guarantee No: [insert Guarantee Reference Number]   |
| Guarantor:   |   |
| contract<br>number   | ed thathereinafter called "the Consultant") has entered into a forcontrac datedwith the employer for the execution (hereinafter called "the Contract"); |
| Furthermore, we und<br>guarantee is required.  | derstand that according to the conditions of the contract, a performance  |
| Employer any sum or<br>such sums being paya<br>payable, upon receipt<br>statement, whether<br>identifying the dema | e consultant we as a Guarantor, hereby irrevocably undertake to pay The sums not exceeding in total an amount of  |
| •  | expire, no later than the Day of2. And any demand for payment ived by us at this office indicated above on or before that date.                         |
| _  | oject to Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees (URDG) 2010 Revision, ICC except that the supporting statement under Article 15(a) is hereby excluded.     |
| Signature(s)   |   |
| Note: All italized tex   | t (including footnotes) is for use in preparing this form and shall deleted form<br>the final product   |

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> The Guarantor shall insert an amount representing the percentage of the Accepted Contract Amount specified in the Contract and denominated either in the currency(ies) of the Contract or freely convertible currency acceptable to the Beneficiary

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Insert the date twenty-eight days after the expected completion date. The Employer should note that in the event of an extension of this date of completion of the contract, the Employer would need to request an extension of this guarantee by the consultant from the Guarantor. Such a request must be in writing and must be made prior to expiration date established in the guarantee.

[This Proposal Submission Sheet should be on the letterhead of the Consultant and should be signed by a person with the proper authority to sign documents that are binding on the Consultant. It should be included by the Consultant in its financial proposal]

# 4.2.1 Financial Proposal Submission Sheet

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of proposal submission]
Procurement Reference No: [insert Procurement Reference number]

To: [insert complete name of Procuring and Disposing Entity]

We, the undersigned, declare that:

- (a) The total price of our Proposal is: [insert the total proposal price in words and figures, indicating the various amounts and the respective currencies], inclusive of local taxes;
- (b) We are eligible for a Margin of Preference in accordance with ITC Clause 36 and are eligible for inclusion in *[insert Group A or Group B as appropriate]* and enclose documentary evidence of our eligibility;

[or]

We are not eligible for a Margin of Preference in accordance with ITC Clause 36;

(c) The following commissions, gratuities, or fees have been paid or are to be paid with respect to this procurement process or execution of the Contract: [insert complete name of each Recipient, its full address, the reason for which each commission or gratuity was paid and the amount and currency of each such commission or gratuity. If none has been paid or is to be paid, indicate "none"];

| Name and address of Recipient | Purpose Reason | Currency and Amount |
|-------------------------------|----------------|---------------------|
|                               |                |                     |
|                               |                |                     |
|                               |                |                     |
|                               |                |                     |
|                               |                |                     |
|                               |                |                     |

| Name:                          | [insert             | [insert complete name of person signing the proposal]         |                          |  |  |
|--------------------------------|---------------------|---|--------------------------|--|--|
| In the capacity                | of                  | [insert legal capacity of person signing the proposal]        |                          |  |  |
| Signed:                        | [signature (        | [signature of person whose name and capacity are shown above] |                          |  |  |
| Duly authorised<br>Consultant] | I to sign the propo | osal for and on behalf of:                                    | [insert complete name of |  |  |
| Dated on                       | day of              | , [insert date  | of signing]              |  |  |

[Consultants may reproduce this sheet in landscape format if more practical but are responsible for its accurate reproduction. State currency or currencies of proposal. If three currencies are not used state "nil" as appropriate. If the PDS requires the proposal price to be quoted separately for different Activities, complete this form as a "Summary of Proposal Price" for each activity and complete one overall Summary of prices.]

# 4.2.2 Summary of Proposal Price (Breakdown of Lump Sum)

| Cost item                                 | Currency | Amount(s) |
|---|----------|-----------|
| Fees – currency 1                         |          |           |
| Fees – currency 2                         |          |           |
| Fees – currency 3                         |          |           |
|   |          |           |
| Reimbursables – currency 1                |          |           |
| Reimbursables – currency 2                |          |           |
| Reimbursables – currency 3                |          |           |
|   |          |           |
| Miscellaneous Expenses –currency 1        |          |           |
| Miscellaneous Expenses –currency 2        |          |           |
| Miscellaneous Expenses –currency 3        |          |           |
|   |          |           |
| Local taxes                               |          |           |
|   |          |           |
| Total Lump Sum/Cost Estimate – currency 1 |          |           |
| Total Lump Sum/Cost Estimate – currency 2 |          |           |
| Total Lump Sum/Cost Estimate – currency 3 |          |           |

# 4.2.3 Breakdown of Fees

[Consultants may reproduce this sheet in landscape format if more practical but are responsible for its accurate reproduction. The Consultant should complete a separate form for each currency or add currency columns and show up to three totals. Complete this form for the total proposal or for each activity as indicated in the ITC]

State activity name or total proposal:\_\_\_\_\_\_

| Name        | Position | Input<br>Qty | Unit<br>(Days/month<br>s etc.) | Rate | Total |
|-------------|----------|--------------|--------------------------------|------|-------|
|             |          |              |                                |      |       |
|             |          |              |                                |      |       |
|             |          |              |                                |      |       |
|             |          |              |                                |      |       |
|             |          |              |                                |      |       |
|             |          |              |                                |      |       |
|             |          |              |                                |      |       |
|             |          |              |                                |      |       |
|             |          |              |                                |      |       |
|             |          |              |                                |      |       |
| Grand Total |          |              |                                |      |       |

### 4.2.4 Breakdown of Reimbursables

[Consultants may reproduce this sheet in landscape format if more practical but are responsible for its accurate reproduction. The Consultant should complete a separate form for each currency or add currency column and show up to three totals. Complete this form for the total proposal or for each activity as indicated in the ITC]

| State activity name or total proposal: |          | Currency:       |            |             |  |
|--|----------|-----------------|------------|-------------|--|
| Description of Cost                    | Quantity | Unit of Measure | Unit Price | Total Price |  |
|  |          |                 |            |             |  |
|  |          |                 |            |             |  |
|  |          |                 |            |             |  |
|  |          |                 |            |             |  |
|  |          |                 |            |             |  |
|  |          |                 |            |             |  |
|  |          |                 |            |             |  |
| Grand Total                            |          |                 |            |             |  |

Notes: Local transportation costs are not to be included if local transportation is being made available by the Procuring and Disposing Entity. Similarly, the project site, office rent/accommodations/clerical assistance costs are not to be included if being made available by the Procuring and Disposing Entity.

# 4.2.5 Breakdown of Miscellaneous Expenses

[Consultants may reproduce this sheet in landscape format if more practical but are responsible for its accurate reproduction. The Consultant should complete a separate form for each currency or add currency column and show up to three totals. Complete this form for the total proposal or for each activity as indicated in the ITC].

| State activity name or total proposal: |          |                 | irrency:   |             |
|--|----------|-----------------|------------|-------------|
| Description of Cost                    | Quantity | Unit of Measure | Unit Price | Total Price |
|  |          |                 |            |             |
|  |          |                 |            |             |
|  |          |                 |            |             |
|  |          |                 |            |             |
|  |          |                 |            |             |
|  |          |                 |            |             |
|  |          |                 |            |             |
|  |          |                 |            |             |
|  |          |                 |            |             |
| Grand Total                            |          |                 |            |             |

## **Section 5. Eligible Countries**

Procurement Reference Number: KCCA-GKMA/CONS/2025-2026/00004

All countries are eligible except countries subject to the following provisions.

A country shall not be eligible if:

- (a) as a matter of law or official regulation, the Government of Uganda prohibits commercial relations with that country, provided that the Government of Uganda is satisfied that such exclusion does not preclude effective competition for the provision of services required; or
- (b) by an act of compliance with a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations, the Government of Uganda prohibits the provision of Services from that country or any payments to persons or entities in that country.

# **PART 2 - Statement of Requirement**

TERMS OF REFERENCE (ToR): CONSULTANCY SERVICES FOR THE PREPARATION OF A DETAILED PHYSICAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR KAWEMPE URBAN CENTER AND ACTION PLANS FOR STRATEGIC ROAD CORRIDORS UNDER THE GKMA URBAN DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM (GKMA-UDP)

#### 1. Introduction

The Government of Uganda, with support from the World Bank through the Greater Kampala Metropolitan Area (GKMA) Urban Development Program, seeks to undertake transformative urban planning to address growing urbanization pressures. Kawempe, one of the city's most complex urban nodes, has been prioritized for a Detailed Plan (DP) to enable integrated, inclusive, and climate-resilient urban development. The assignment is central to operationalizing national urban policies and the Kampala Physical Development Plan while unlocking land value for reinvestment.

In addition to preparing the Kawempe DP, the assignment includes the development of Action Plans for Road Corridors that are/have been rehabilitated. These action plans will provide land use and development control guidelines to guide orderly development and optimize the benefits of infrastructure investments along key corridors within and/ beyond Kawempe. The overall assignment is pivotal in optimizing investment returns by aligning transport interventions with land use planning, operationalizing national urban policies and the Kampala Physical Development Plan, and unlocking land value for reinvestment through structured, climate-resilient urban growth.

#### 2. Strategic Context and Justification

Kawempe is a rapidly urbanizing area marked by over 70% informal settlements, widespread housing deficits, and insecure land tenure, and an underutilized economic potential despite rising land values. It is one of the city's divisions with limited infrastructure and service delivery. It experiences significant climate vulnerability, including flooding and urban heat. This project will catalyze inclusive urban transformation by delivering an implementable, climate-smart, and financially viable Detailed PDP. The plan will incorporate land value capture (LVC) mechanisms to raise KCCA revenues required to fund strategic infrastructure, slum upgrading, and nature-based solutions. Furthermore, the assignment will develop Corridor-Based Action Plans for Road Corridors identified for upgrade or rehabilitation, providing a framework for regulating land use and guiding public and private development along these critical urban arteries. This dual approach ensures that both localized planning and city-wide mobility and investment priorities are addressed cohesively.

### 3. Objectives of the Assignment

The primary objective is to prepare a climate-resilient, inclusive, and implementable Detailed Plan for the Kawempe Urban Center covering approximately 1.14 square kilometers (114)

## Part 1: Section 5 Eligible Countries

Hectares), aligned with the Kampala Physical Development Plan and other statutory and policy frameworks, and incorporating robust financing through land value capture and innovative delivery models.

### **Specific Objectives:**

- I. Prepare and deliver an integrated detailed plan for Kawempe Urban Center, including finalized zoning maps, development codes, and regulations, approved by KCCA within the consultancy timeframe.
- II. Formalize over 100 hectares of informal settlements, co-developed with residents and stakeholders, resulting in actionable regularization strategies integrated into the DP.
- III. Increase designated green cover by 30% within the Kawempe DP area compared to baseline, through mapped proposals for nature-based solutions (NbS) and eco-infrastructure integrated into land use and infrastructure plans.
- IV. Develop and deliver a functional digital Smart Implementation Toolkit, compatible with KCCA's GIS/IRAS platform, for monitoring DP compliance, managing development permits, and supporting decision-making within Kawempe.
- V. Produce Corridor-Based Action Plans with land use and development control guidelines for Key Road Corridors under rehabilitation and/upgrade to guide orderly growth, optimize infrastructure investments, and promote transit-supportive development
- VI. Unlock land values through LVC tools, corridor planning and TOD to fund infrastructure and basic services.

#### 4. Scope of Services

### Task 1: Inception and Mobilization Phase

- Conduct an inception meeting to clarify the scope, expectations, deliverables, timelines and finalize the workplan.
- Develop a Digital Twin base model (GIS + IoT) integrating satellite imagery, cadastral data, infrastructure assets, socio-economic indicators, and mobility patterns.
- Review relevant legal, policy, spatial, and infrastructure frameworks relevant to planning, TOD, Tenure, environmental management and infrastructure delivery
- Prepare a stakeholder engagement and Digital IEC (Information, Education, Communication) roadmap to guide co-creation and transparency.

#### Task 2: Situational Analysis and Climate Risk Profiling

- Undertake Topographic and cadaster surveys; develop high-resolution base maps.
- Undertake slum profiling and develop a spatial database on land rights/tenure, socio-economic activities, and vulnerabilities.

## Part 1: Section 5 Eligible Countries

- Carry out flood and heat island modeling at 1m resolution to identify climate risks and adaptation needs.
- Map urban form, land use patterns, heritage sites, environmental assets, and degradation trends
- Assess existing infrastructure (roads, drainage, sewerage, water, energy), mobility systems (including NMT), and social services
- Undertake a SWOT and carrying capacity assessment, including future growth projections (10 years) for land, housing, infrastructure, and population dynamics.

#### Task 3: Planning, Urban Design and Typology Development

- Prepare climate-responsive and transit-supportive Detailed Plans including informal settlements regularization, wetlands protection, and development strategies for key growth centres.
- Define Terminal Area and Growth Centre Typologies based on function, land use mix, FAR, density/infill development, infrastructure, and TOD potential.
- Apply zoning tools (e.g., density bonuses, mixed-use overlays) for compact, walkable, and inclusive neighborhoods.
- Propose EDGE-certified zoning regulations, and context-sensitive urban design guidelines for redevelopment, infill, and new development
- Integrate tenure security strategies, including land re-adjustment, block reconstitution, and regularization.

### Task 4: Stakeholder Engagement and Visioning

- Facilitate multi-level stakeholder consultations including Community Action Groups (CAGs), landowners, local leaders, government agencies, developers, and utility providers.
- Conduct collaborative design charrettes and thematic workshops on TOD, resilience, housing, and infrastructure.
- Articulate a shared development vision supported by transit-first, inclusive, and climate-smart principles.
- Validate SWOC findings and prioritize interventions into short-, medium-, and long-term packages.

### Task 5: Infrastructure and Resilience Planning

- Assess and propose upgrades for water, sanitation, mobility, stormwater, solid waste, power, and communication networks.
- Conduct geo-technical, traffic, ESIA/SEA, and hydrological assessments as required.
- Develop resilience strategies for adaptive planning, including land use planning for emergencies and post-disaster recovery.

## Part 1: Section 5 Eligible Countries

- Propose nature-based solutions, green corridors, flood buffers, and wetland-sensitive planning approaches.
- Develop Action Plans for Key Road Corridors prioritized under rehabilitation/upgrade focusing on:
  - a. Corridor-specific land use guidelines
  - b. Zoning and density parameters
  - c. Building typologies and frontage controls
  - d. Development control measures to guide public and private investment along the corridors

### Task 6: Financial Structuring and Land Value Capture

- Evaluate land economics, real estate trends, and market demand along corridors and nodes.
- Identify, simulate, and prioritize Land Value Capture (LVC) tools applicable to the planning area for policy development and implementation
- Generate at least 10 GIS/AI-based revenue model scenarios, aligned with spatial plans and implementation phasing.
- Prepare financial recovery frameworks and draft enabling ordinances.

### Task 7: TOD Demonstration Projects and PPP Strategy

- Identify high-potential TOD terminal areas and structure them as demonstration projects.
- Develop a Capital Investment Strategy including PPP-ready pipeline projects and value chain linkages for slum upgrade, densification, infill, revelopment and TOD.
- Assess institutional and technical capacity needs for KCCA and partners and propose a Capacity Strengthening Roadmap for plan implementation, implementation monitoring.

### Task 8: Implementation, Monitoring and Phasing Toolkit

- Prepare a phased Implementation Strategy, linking regulatory changes, priority investments, community development for plan implementation, and infrastructure delivery.
- Draft zoning by-laws, LVC ordinances, TOD investment guidelines, and a Climate Adaptation Toolkit.
- Establish an open digital monitoring portal for tracking implementation progress, investments, and compliance.
- Align proposals with the KPDP Zoning Regulations (2024) and global standards including UN-Habitat, Cities Alliance and ITDP for Urban Expansion Planning, Affordable housing and slum prevention.

### 5. Key Deliverables and Outputs

## Part 1: Section 5 Eligible Countries

The consultant shall be responsible for delivering the following key outputs:

#### 1. Inception Phase

Inception report with:

- I. Detailed work plan and methodology
- II. Stakeholder engagement roadmap
- III. Digital Information, Education and Communication (IEC) strategy
- IV. Legal, policy and institutional review
- V. Digital Twin base model (GIS + IoT integrated with KCCA systems)

#### 2. Situational Analysis and Climate Risk Profiling:

- I. Topographic and cadastral survey report and digital base maps
- II. Slum profiling report and spatial database on land rights and socio-economic profiles
- III. Environmental risk mapping including but not limited to 1m resolution flood and heat island models)
- IV. SWOT analysis and carrying capacity assessment
- V. Infrastructure and services assessment report (mobility, drainage, WASH, energy)
- VI. Land use and zoning diagnostics (existing and proposed)
- VII. Heritage and environmental asset mapping

#### 3. Planning, Urban Design and TOD Typologies:

- I. Draft climate-responsive Detailed Physical Development Plans (DPDPs) aligned with KPDP goals and zoning regulations
- II. TOD typology matrix for terminal areas and growth nodes
- III. Draft zoning strategies and land use regulations (including for informal settlements)
- IV. Urban design guidelines and block typologies
- V. Draft spatial plan overlays for wetlands, green corridors, and risk-prone areas

#### 4. Financial Structuring and Land Value Capture (LVC)

- I. Land economics and real estate market diagnostic report
- II. Simulation of 10 GIS/AI-based LVC revenue model scenarios
- III. Draft ordinances for land readjustment, TIF, impact fees, TDR, etc.
- IV. Cost-benefit and ROI analysis of proposed LVC tools and partnerships

#### 5. Stakeholder Engagement and Visioning

I. Stakeholder engagement logs and workshop proceedings

## Part 1: Section 5 Eligible Countries

- II. Community feedback report from CAGs and other groups
- III. Consolidated SWOC analysis with stakeholder inputs
- IV. Draft participatory visioning document for project area

#### 6. Feasibility and Regulatory Alignment

- I. Geotechnical, hydrological, traffic, environment and socio-economic studies,
- II. Validation report of proposed zoning and infrastructure standards
- III. Regulatory compliance brief (aligned with KPDP Zoning Regulations 2024 and UN-Habitat)

#### 7. Implementation Toolkit and Final Outputs

- I. Final Detailed Plan (DP)
- II. Zoning standards and regulations
- III. Climate Adaptation Toolkit
- IV. Essential Infrastructure and Social Services investment proposals
- V. Implementation roadmap and phased development strategy including a capital investment strategy/ essential infrastructure and social service strategy and PPP-ready project pipeline
- VI. Capacity building roadmap for KCCA in plan implementation monitoring and evaluation
- VII. Digital monitoring and open-data portal linked to KCCA GIS (beta version)
- VIII. The Consultant shall prepare Action Plans for Road Corridors within the KCCA that are earmarked for upgrade or rehabilitation. The Action Plans shall include:
  - a. Land use and development control guidelines for each corridor, including interface with adjoining parcels, public spaces, and critical land uses
  - b. Corridor zoning overlays with FAR, height, and density controls supporting TOD and compact urban form
  - c. Urban design and building typologies (e.g., for commercial frontages, mixed-use infill, and street-edge housing)
  - d. Phased implementation strategies linked to road upgrade timelines and investment priorities
  - e. GIS-based spatial mapping of corridor land use patterns and proposed intervention

#### 8. Completion Report

- I. Summary of methodology, challenges, and lessons learned
- II. Sustainability strategy and post-project recommendations
- III. Final IEC and stakeholder engagement evaluation

#### **Deliverables Schedule and Payment Structure**

Part 1: Section 5 Eligible Countries

| No. | Deliverable  | Weeks after<br>Commencement | Payment in % |
|-----|--|-----------------------------|--------------|
| 1   | Inception Report: A comprehensive report including the Digital Twin Model (GIS + IoT), aligned with KCCA systems. The report will outline the detailed methodology, legal/policy review, stakeholder engagement plan, and a realistic implementation schedule.   | Week 4                      | 20%          |
| 2   | Situational Analysis and Draft Plans: This includes topographic and cadastral surveys, slum profiling, 1m-resolution climate risk maps (flood and heat island), infrastructure and land use diagnostics, TOD typologies, and draft parametric development plans. Also includes 10 Al-generated LVC revenue scenarios and Corridor-Based Action Plans for Ten Road Corridors, with land use guidelines, zoning overlays, and development control measures                                 | Week 20                     | 40%          |
| 3   | Final Detailed Plan, Action Plans for 10 road corridors and Completion Report: This deliverable comprises the Final Detailed Physical Development Plan with zoning by-laws, proposed LVC ordinances, and a climate adaptation toolkit. It also includes an open-source data portal linked to KCCA GIS, final feasibility validation, and a Completion Report summarizing methodology, challenges, stakeholder contributions, and a roadmap for phased implementation and sustainability. | 40                          | 40%          |

#### 6. Expertise Required by the Consultancy Firm

The selected consulting firm must demonstrate extensive technical capacity and contextual understanding to undertake the assignment. The required expertise is structured into three main categories:

#### A. Mandatory Baseline Experience

The firm must have a minimum of 15 years of demonstrable experience in the following areas:

- i. Preparation of physical development plans and detailed local plans within GKMA or comparable urban environments.
- ii. Design and implementation of slum upgrading interventions in high-density urban settlements.

## Part 1: Section 5 Eligible Countries

- iii. Formulation of eco-sensitive and climate-responsive physical development plans (e.g., wetland buffers, green corridors, climate-adaptive zoning).
- iv. Development of urban planning regulations, bylaws, and development control frameworks.
- v. Preparation of action plans for strategic road and infrastructure corridors, including Bus Rapid Transit (BRT), non-motorized transport networks, and integrated utilities.

#### B. Thematic Expertise for Kawempe Urban Center and Priority Corridors

The firm must demonstrate specific capacity to deliver **integrated**, **inclusive**, **and climate-resilient urban spatial solutions** with a focus on the Kawempe Urban Center and strategic corridors. This includes:

#### vi. Climate Resilience in GKMA Context

- Proven experience with flood mitigation and urban stormwater management systems in informal settlements.
- Integration of heat-reduction and urban cooling strategies (e.g., reflective surfaces, urban greening) in dense neighborhoods.

#### vii. Strategic Urban Intensification

- Application of compact, smart, mixed-use urban development principles aligned with the KPDP prescriptions.
- Preservation of ecological zones within urban growth frameworks.
- Design of slum upgrading frameworks integrating tenure security, disaster risk reduction, and green infrastructure.

#### viii. Smart and Green Corridor Development

- Development of low-carbon, transit-oriented corridor action plans.
- Inclusion of EV-ready infrastructure, pedestrian and cycling facilities.
- Application of nature-based solutions (e.g., bioswales, linear parks, urban forests) along transport corridors.

#### ix. Inclusive and Participatory Planning Approaches

- Use of community co-design processes, especially in informal settlements and among vulnerable groups (women, youth, and persons with disabilities).
- Experience in applying climate-adaptive standards for incremental and self-built housing.

#### x. Eco-Sensitive zoning frameworks

- Drafting of enforceable regulations promoting:
  - Mandatory greening, rainwater harvesting systems, and sustainable drainage.

- Setbacks from wetlands and urban agriculture zones.
- Energy-efficient and climate-smart zoning codes.

#### C. Verification of Firm's Capacity

Firms must submit documentation for at least two (2) relevant projects implemented within the past 10 years that demonstrate:

- Integration of flood resilience and climate adaptation in detailed urban development plans within GKMA or similar contexts.
- Participatory slum upgrading initiatives with measurable climate and social outcomes (e.g., reduced flooding, enhanced thermal comfort, improved tenure).
- Corridor development strategies featuring integrated green infrastructure, non-motorized transport systems, and modal shift interventions.

#### Additional Functional Capabilities Required

The firm must demonstrate a multi-disciplinary approach and advanced technical competencies in the following domains:

#### g) Comprehensive Policy & Gap Analysis:

- Assessment of land-use efficiency, densification strategies (including TOD), and mixed-use zoning models.
- Analysis of informality, regularization pathways, and affordable housing strategies.
- Evaluation of municipal finance and land value capture (LVC) tools linked to densification and infrastructure governance.
- Review of tenure systems and their impact on urban form and development.
- Integration of green infrastructure, nature-based solutions (NBS), and urban ecosystem services.
- Analysis of smart governance frameworks and opportunities for digital integration in planning.

#### h) Integrated Urban Assessments

- Assessment of housing needs, socio-economic vulnerabilities, spatial disparities, and informality dynamics.
- Evaluation of climate risks (flooding, heat stress) and disaster resilience at the neighborhood scale.
- Identification of opportunities for sustainable densification and improved land-use efficiency.
- Resource flow analysis (energy, water, waste) and circular economy potential within urban systems.

#### i) Advanced Analytics and Feasibility Analysis

- Cost-benefit and return on investment (ROI) analysis for proposed interventions.
- Spatial-economic modeling incorporating climate change scenarios, demographic trends, and corridor dynamics.
- Urban investment feasibility studies emphasizing green, resilient, and smart infrastructure.
- Application of Al-based predictive modeling for densification impacts, land value shifts, infrastructure stress, and climate risk exposure.

#### j) Inclusive and Collaborative Planning

- Facilitation of multi-stakeholder consultations and policy dialogues.
- Implementation of community-based urban planning and participatory design approaches.
- Integration of community feedback on densification, land use, and green space allocation.
- Use of digital participatory tools (e.g., mobile platforms, geo-surveys) for inclusive engagement.

#### k) Technical and Policy Alignment

- Deep familiarity with Ugandan planning processes, legal frameworks, and institutional arrangements.
- Application of international best practices and toolkits (e.g., UN-Habitat, C40 Cities).
- Integration of concepts such as the 15-Minute City, biophilic design, and nature-based urban cooling strategies.

#### I) Use of Digital Tools and Data

- Advanced capacity in GIS, remote sensing, and spatial data analytics.
- Deployment of Al-powered tools for urban growth simulation, land value prediction, traffic modeling, and climate vulnerability mapping.
- Use of digital twins, IoT integration, and smart infrastructure monitoring tools.
- Optimization of land use, mixed-use compatibility, and green network planning through data-driven approaches.

#### 7. Key Expertise required.

All key experts should possess at least a Master's degree in a relevant field and a minimum of 5–15 years of professional experience in their domain. Professional registration with relevant national/international bodies is mandatory where applicable.

| No. | Key Experts  | Minimum<br>Professional<br>Experience | Role and Justification   |
|-----|--|---------------------------------------|--|
| 1   | Team Leader cum Physical Planning Expert Under Graduate Degree in Urban Planning, and Msc. in related field. Must be registered with a relevant professional body Must be registered with a relevant professional body | 15 years                              | Provides overall leadership; ensures coordination, and quality assurance. Leads regulatory design, slum upgrading strategy, and supervises TOD integration. Must have demonstrable experience in planning and spatial design for informal settlements.                       |
| 2   | Physical Planner  Under Graduate Degree in Urban Planning with specialty in Urban Design and Msc. in related field. Must be registered with a relevant professional body   | 10 years                              | Supports spatial diagnostics, zoning overlays, slum profiling, and land use modeling for both formal and informal areas. Leads site design, neighborhood layouts, public space planning, and inclusive design strategies, especially for high-density informal environments. |
| 3   | Urban Transport Planner  Post Graduate Degree / Two Year Postgraduate Diploma in Planning (with Specialization in Transport Planning or equivalent). Must be registered with a relevant professional body              | 10 years                              | Designs inclusive mobility strategies with emphasis on NMT, last-mile access, and public transport integration. Aligns transport with TOD, KMMTMP and climate adaptation needs.  |
| 4   | Infrastructure Planner  Post Graduate Degree / Two Year Postgraduate Diploma in Planning (with Specialization in Infrastructure Planning) or Equivalent. Must be registered with a relevant professional body          | 10- YEARS                             | Plans integrated, incremental, and resilient infrastructure including drainage, WASH, and roads suitable for low-income settlements.   |
| 5   | Environmental and Climate  | 5-10 years                            | Leads flood risk modeling, climate vulnerability   |

|    | Resilient Planner  Under Graduate Degree in Environment and Natural Resource or Environmental Engineering or Environmental Planning and Post Graduate Degree in Environmental Engineering, Msc. Environmental Planning |          | assessments, and sustainable land use frameworks. Designs green infrastructure and adaptation strategies.                                      |
|----|--|----------|--|
| 6. | Municipal Land Based Finance<br>Specialist & Land Value Capture<br>Specialist  Hon. Land Economics, MBA,<br>Professional Certification in<br>Management, Business or<br>economics or equivalent.                       | 10 years | Conducts ROI and land value capture modeling using AI and GIS. Leads fiscal feasibility and design of development rights instruments.          |
| 7. | Social Development and Community Engagement Expert  Post Graduate Degree in Social Development/ Sociology / Social sciences  | 10 years | Manages participatory planning, community needs assessments, gender-responsive programming, and stakeholder inclusion in informal settlements. |
| 8. | Information, Education and Communication (IEC) Expert  Under Graduate Degree in Mass Communication and Masters in Mass Communication   | 10 years | Drives awareness campaigns, behavior change strategies, and communication materials tailored to slum communities and youth/women groups.       |
| 9. | GIS and Land Surveying Expert  Under Graduate Degree in Land Surveying/Geomatics with Masters in GIS, Geodesy, Land Management or Physical Planning. Must be registered with a relevant professional body              | 10 years | Conducts high-resolution spatial mapping, boundary verification, cadastral alignment, and Al-driven data visualization for planning support.   |

**Note:** The Team Leader will be the primary point of contact with KCCA, responsible for reporting, deliverables coordination, and technical oversight of all components.

## 8. Responsibilities of The Client

## Part 1: Section 5 Eligible Countries

The Client will provide the Consultant with the following resources and support to facilitate detailed spatial planning for the selected areas in Kampala:

Access to Relevant Planning Documents: Provide access to key documents related to spatial planning, including:

- I. The Kampala Physical Development Plan (KPDP), 2013.
- II. The Integrated Urban Development Master Plan for the Greater Kampala Metropolitan Area (IUDM-GKMA) and KCC-PDP (Reviewed 2024)
- III. Guidelines for development of detailed plans in the GKMA
- IV. KCCA Climate Change Action Plan, 2016
- V. KCCA Strategic Plan, 2025
- VI. The KCC ACT, 2010
- VII. The Physical Planning Act, CAP 142
- VIII. The National Housing Policy, 2016
  - IX. The National Urban Policy, 2017
  - X. National Environment Act, 2019
- XI. National Physical Planning Standards and Guidelines
- XII. National Physical Planning Regulations
- XIII. The National Physical Development Plan
- XIV. The National Land Use Policy, 2011
- XV. The National Urban Policy, Strategy and Action Plan
- XVI. The National Condominium Act
- XVII. The National Land Policy
- XVIII. The Land Act
- XIX. The GKMA-UDP Project Appraisal Document (PAD).

Government Access: Facilitate the Consultant's access to relevant government departments at both the National and City levels to ensure effective coordination and information exchange.

**Approval Support:** Assist the Consultant in obtaining the necessary approvals for the detailed spatial plans from relevant approval bodies and authorities to ensure regulatory compliance and alignment with planning standards.

#### 9. Responsibilities of The Consultant

The Consultant shall be responsible for the provision of all the necessary resources to carry out the Services such, project transportation for visits in city divisions, subsistence allowances, accommodation, information technology, and means for communications, organization of the workshops, reporting materials, insurance and any other required resources.

#### 10. Proposal Submission Requirements

Consultants interested in this assignment should submit:

## Part 1: Section 5 Eligible Countries

- Technical Proposal: Outline of the approach, methodology, work plan, and team composition, Information, Education and Communication strategy, stakeholder engagement plan
- Financial Proposal: Detailed budget breakdown.
- Company Profile: Including relevant experience and qualifications.
- CVs of the proposed team members.

#### 10. Evaluation Criteria

Proposals will be evaluated based on:

- Understanding of the project objectives and scope.
- Methodology and approach.
- Relevant experience and qualifications of the team.
- Cost-effectiveness of the financial proposal.



| Part 1: Section 5 Eligible Countries |  |  |  |  |
|--------------------------------------|--|--|--|--|
|                                      |  |  |  |  |
|                                      |  |  |  |  |
|                                      |  |  |  |  |
|                                      |  |  |  |  |
|                                      |  |  |  |  |
|                                      |  |  |  |  |
|                                      |  |  |  |  |
|                                      |  |  |  |  |
|                                      |  |  |  |  |
|                                      |  |  |  |  |
|                                      |  |  |  |  |
|                                      |  |  |  |  |

| <br>Part 2: | Section 6. | Statement of Requirements |
|-------------|------------|---------------------------|
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |
|             |            |                           |

## 2 PART 3 - Contract

# 3 Section 7: General Conditions of Contract for the Procurement of Consultancy Services

# **Table of Clauses**

| A  | General Provisions   | 84 |
|----|--|----|
| 1  | Definitions  | 84 |
| 2  | Corrupt Practices  | 85 |
| 3  | Confidential Information   | 86 |
| В  | The Contract   | 87 |
| 4  | Contract Documents   | 87 |
| 5  | Governing Law  | 87 |
| 6  | Language   | 87 |
| 7  | Notices  | 88 |
| 8  | Commencement of Services   | 88 |
| 9  | Assignment   | 88 |
| 10 | Subcontracting   | 88 |
| 11 | Contract Amendments  | 88 |
| 12 | Change in Laws   | 89 |
| 13 | Force Majeure  | 89 |
| 14 | Suspension of Assignment   | 90 |
| 15 | Termination  | 90 |
| 16 | Cessation of Rights and Obligations or Services                    | 91 |
| 17 | Settlement of Disputes   | 92 |
| 18 | Completion Period of the Services                                  | 92 |
| C  | Obligations of the Procuring and Disposing Entity                  | 92 |
| 19 | Provision of Information and Assistance                            | 92 |
| 20 | Provision of Counterpart Staff                                     | 93 |
| D  | Payment  | 93 |
| 21 | Contract Price and Currency  | 93 |
| 22 | General Payment Procedure  | 94 |
| 23 | Invoice Procedure  | 94 |
| 24 | Documentation to Support Invoices                                  | 94 |
| 25 | Payment Schedule   | 94 |
| 26 | Advance Payment Guarantee  | 94 |
| 27 | Payment Terms  | 95 |
| 28 | Final Statement and Payment  | 95 |
| 29 | Accounts   | 95 |
| 30 | Option 1 - Payments in respect of Lump Sum remunerated Contracts   | 95 |
| 31 | Option 2 - Payments in respect of Time Based remunerated Contracts | 96 |

# Part 3: Section 8 Special Conditions of Contract

| 32 | Price Adjustments                           |     |
|----|---|-----|
| 33 | Taxes and Duties                            | 96  |
| E  | Obligations of the Consultant               | 97  |
| 34 | Obligations of the Consultant               | 97  |
| 35 | Eligibility                                 | 97  |
| 36 | Joint Venture, Consortium or Association    | 97  |
| 37 | Code of Conduct                             | 98  |
| 38 | Conflict of Interests                       | 98  |
| 39 | Indemnification                             | 99  |
| 40 | Insurance to be taken out by the Consultant | 99  |
| 41 | Accounting, Inspection and Auditing         | 100 |
| F  | Performance of the Services                 | 100 |
| 42 | Scope of Services                           | 100 |
| 43 | Specifications and Designs                  | 100 |
| 44 | Property of Deliverables                    | 100 |
| 45 | Extensions of Time                          | 100 |
| 46 | Consultant's Personnel                      | 101 |
| 47 | Working Hours of the Personnel              | 101 |
| 48 | Replacement of Personnel                    | 102 |
| 49 | Medical and Insurance arrangements          | 102 |

# Section 7: General Conditions of Contract for the Procurement of Consultancy Services

#### **A** General Provisions

#### 1 Definitions

- 1.1 The headings and titles of these General Conditions of Contract shall not limit, alter or affect the meaning of the Contract.
- 1.2 Unless the context otherwise requires, the following words and terms shall have the meanings assigned to them:
  - (a) "Consultant" means the natural person, private or government entity, or a combination of the above, whose proposal to perform the Contract has been accepted by the Procuring and Disposing Entity and is named as such in the Agreement, and includes the legal successors or permitted assigns of the Consultant.
  - (b) "Contract" means the Agreement entered into between the Parties and includes the Contract Documents.
  - (c) "Contract Documents" means the documents listed in GCC 4.1, including all attachments, appendices, and all documents incorporated by reference therein, and shall include any amendments thereto.
  - (d) "Contract Price" means the sum stated in the Agreement representing the maximum, total or estimated amount payable for the provision of the Services.
  - (e) "Day" means working day. "Month" means calendar month.
  - (f) "Eligible Countries" means the countries and territories eligible as listed in the SCC.
  - (g) "Foreign Currency" means any currency other than Uganda Shillings.
  - (h) "GCC" means the General Conditions of Contract.
  - (i) "Local Currency" means Uganda Shillings.
  - (j) "Lump sum contract" means a contract under which the Services are performed for an all inclusive fixed total amount.
  - (k) "Member," where the Consultant consists of a joint venture of more than one entity, means any of these entities; "Members" means all these entities; and "Member in Charge" means the entity authorised to act on all the Members behalf in exercising all the Consultants' rights and obligations towards the Procuring and Disposing Entity under the Contract and named in the SCC.
  - (l) "Party" means the Procuring and Disposing Entity or the Consultant, as the case may be, and "Parties" means both of them.
  - (m) "Personnel" means persons engaged by the Consultant or by any Sub-contractor as employees and assigned to the performance of the Services or any part thereof; "Foreign Personnel" means such persons who at the time of being so engaged had their domicile outside Uganda; "Local Personnel" means such persons who at the time of being so engaged had their domicile inside Uganda; and "Key Personnel" means those Personnel that are regarded by the Consultant as essential to the successful completion of the Services and related tasks.

- (n) "Procuring and Disposing Entity" means the entity purchasing the Services, as specified in the Agreement.
- (o) "SCC" means the Special Conditions of Contract.
- (p) "Services" means the professional or specialised Services to be performed by the Consultant as described in the contract and shall include consultancy Services.
- (q) "Subcontractor" means any natural person, private or government entity, or a combination of the above, including its legal successors or permitted assigns, to whom any part of the Services to be provided is subcontracted by the Consultant.
- (r) "Time based contract" means a contract under which the Services are provided on the basis of fixed fee rates and payments are made on the basis of time actually spent.
- (s) "Tribunal" means a Tribunal established under the PPDA Act, 2003
- 1.3 The word "Government" shall mean the Government of the Republic of Uganda.
- 1.4 If the context so requires it, singular means plural and vice versa.
- 1.5 Nothing contained herein shall be construed as establishing a relation of master and servant or of principal and agent between the Procuring and Disposing Entity and the Consultant.

#### 2 Corrupt Practices

- 2.1 It is the Government of Uganda's policy to require that Procuring and Disposing Entities, as well as Consultants under Government financed contracts, observe the highest standards of ethics during the procurement and execution of such contracts. In pursuit of this policy, the Government of Uganda:
  - a) defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
    - (i) "corrupt practice" means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value, to influence the action of a public official in the procurement process or in contract execution; and
    - (ii) "fraudulent practice" is any act or omission, including a misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;
    - (iii) "collusive practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;
    - (iv) "coercive practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party;
  - b) will suspend a firm, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, from being awarded a Government funded contract if it at any time determines that the firm has engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive or coercive practices in competing for, or in executing, a Government funded Contract.
- 2.2 The Consultant shall permit the Government of Uganda to inspect the Consultant's

accounts and records relating to the performance of the Consultant and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Government of Uganda, if so required by the Government.

2.3 In pursuit of the policy defined in GCC Clause 2.1, the Procuring and Disposing Entity may terminate a Contract in accordance with GCC Clause 15 if it at any time determines that corrupt, fraudulent, collusive or coercive practices were engaged in by representatives of the Procuring and Disposing Entity or of a Consultant, during the procurement or the execution of that contract.

#### 3 Confidential Information

- 3.1 The Procuring and Disposing Entity and the Consultant shall keep confidential and shall not without the written consent of the other party hereto, divulge to any third party any reports or data, or other information furnished directly or indirectly by the other party hereto in connection with the Contract, whether such information has been furnished prior to, during or following completion or termination of the Contract. Notwithstanding the above, the Consultant may furnish to its Subcontractor such documents, data, and other information it receives from the Procuring and Disposing Entity to the extent required for the Subcontractor to perform its work under the Contract, in which event the Consultant shall obtain from such Subcontractor an undertaking of confidentiality similar to that imposed on the Consultant under the Contract.
- 3.2 The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall not use such documents, data, and other information received from the Consultant for any purposes unrelated to the contract. Similarly, the Consultant shall not use such documents, data, and other information received from the Procuring and Disposing Entity for any purpose other than the design, procurement, or other work and Services required for the performance of the Contract.
- 3.3 The obligations of a party under GCC Clauses 3.1 and 3.2 shall however not apply to information that:
  - (a) the Procuring and Disposing Entity or Consultant need to share with any institution participating in the financing of the Contract;
  - (b) now or hereafter enters the public domain through no fault of that party;
  - can be proven to have been possessed by that party at the time of disclosure and which was not previously obtained, directly or indirectly, from the other party; or
  - (d) otherwise lawfully becomes available to that party from a third party that has no obligation of confidentiality.
- 3.4 The provisions of GCC Clauses 3.1 and 3.2 shall not in any way modify any undertaking of confidentiality given by either of the parties hereto prior to the date of the Contract in respect of the Services or any part thereof.
- 3.5 The provisions of GCC Clauses 3.1 and 3.2 shall survive for a period of two years from completion or termination, for whatever reason, of the Contract.

#### B The Contract

#### 4 Contract Documents

- 4.1 The documents forming the Contract shall be interpreted in the following order of priority:
  - (a) Agreement,
  - (b) Consultant's Proposal as amended by clarifications,
  - (c) Special Conditions of Contract,
  - (d) General Conditions of Contract,
  - (e) Statement of Requirements,
  - (f) Minutes of negotiations if any,
  - (f) any other document listed in the SCC as forming part of the Contract.
  - All documents forming the Contract are intended to be correlative, complementary, and mutually explanatory.
- 4.2 No amendment, modification or other variation of the Contract shall be valid unless an Amendment to Contract is made in writing, is dated, expressly refers to the Contract, and is signed by a duly authorised representative of each party thereto.
- 4.3 If any provision or condition of the Contract is prohibited or rendered invalid or unenforceable, such prohibition, invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provisions and conditions of the Contract.
- 4.4 Any action required or permitted to be taken, and any document required or permitted to be executed, under the Contract by the Procuring and Disposing Entity or the Consultant may be taken or executed by the authorised representatives specified in the SCC.
- 4.5 The Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the Procuring and Disposing Entity and the Consultant and supersedes all communications, negotiations and agreements (whether written or oral) of parties with respect thereto made prior to the date of Contract. No agent or representative of either Party has authority to make, and the Parties shall not be bound by or be liable for, any statement, representation, promise or agreement not set forth herein.

#### 5 Governing Law

5.1 The Contract shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of Uganda unless otherwise stated in the SCC.

#### 6 Language

6.1 The Contract as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the Contract exchanged by the Consultant and the Procuring and Disposing Entity, shall be written in English. Supporting documents and printed literature that are part of the Contract may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages in the language specified, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of

the Contract, this translation shall govern.

6.2 The Consultant shall bear all costs of translation to the governing language and all risks of the accuracy of such translation.

#### 7 Notices

- 7.1 Any notice, request or consent required or permitted to be given or made pursuant to the Contract shall be in writing. Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given when delivered to the authorised representative of the Party at the address specified in the SCC.
- 7.2 A Party may change its address for notice hereunder by giving the other Party notice of such change.

#### **8** Commencement of Services

8.1 The Consultant shall commence the Services within the time period specified in the SCC after the date of signature of the Agreement.

#### 9 Assignment

9.1 The Procuring and Disposing Entity or the Consultant shall not assign, in whole or in part, their obligations under this Contract, except with the prior written consent of the other party.

#### 10 Subcontracting

- 10.1 The Consultant shall request approval in writing from the Procuring and Disposing Entity for all subcontracts awarded under the Contract that are not included in the Contract. Subcontracting shall in no event relieve the Consultant of any of its obligations, duties, responsibilities or liability under the Contract.
- 10.2 Subcontracts shall comply with the provisions of GCC Clauses 2 and 35.

#### 11 Contract Amendments

- 11.1 The Procuring and Disposing Entity may at any time request the Consultant through notice in accordance with GCC Clause 7, to make changes to the Contract by agreement to an Amendment of Contract.
- 11.2 If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the cost of, or the time required for, the Consultant's performance of any provisions under the Contract, an equitable adjustment shall be made in the Contract Price or in the Completion Date, or both, and the Contract shall accordingly be amended. Any claims by the Consultant for adjustment must be asserted within twenty-eight days from the date of the Consultant's receipt of the Procuring and Disposing Entity's notice.
- 11.3 Prices to be charged by the Consultant for any related or additional Services that might be needed but which were not included in the Contract shall be agreed upon in advance by the parties.

11.4 An Amendment to Contract shall be signed by both Parties following agreement to the proposed changes required and shall make adjustments for the impact on the Contract Price, completion period or any other condition.

#### 12 Change in Laws

12.1 Unless otherwise specified in the Contract, if after the date of the Request for Proposals Document, any law, regulation, ordinance, order or bylaw having the force of law is enacted, promulgated, abrogated, or changed in Uganda or where the Site is located (which shall be deemed to include any change in interpretation or application by the competent authorities) that subsequently affects the Completion Date and/or the Contract Price, then such Completion Date and/or Contract Price shall be correspondingly increased or decreased, to the extent that the Consultant has thereby been affected in the performance of any of its obligations under the Contract. Notwithstanding the foregoing, such additional or reduced cost shall not be separately paid or credited if the same has already been accounted for by a contracts amendment or a price adjustment in accordance with GCC Clause 32.

#### 13 Force Majeure

13.1 For the purposes of the Contract, "Force Majeure" shall mean an event or events which are beyond the reasonable control of a Party, and which makes a Party's performance of its obligations hereunder impossible or so impractical as reasonably to be considered impossible in the circumstances, and includes, but is not limited to, war, riots, civil disorder, earthquake, fire, explosion, storm, flood or other adverse weather conditions, strikes, lockouts or other industrial action (except where such strikes, lockouts or other industrial action are within the power of the Party invoking Force Majeure to prevent), confiscation or any other action by government agencies.

#### 13.2 Force Majeure shall not include:

- (a) any event which is caused by the negligence or intentional action of a Party or such Party's Sub-contractors or agents or employees; nor
- (b) any event which a diligent Party could reasonably have been expected to both:
  - (i) take into account from the effective date of the Contract; and
  - (ii) avoid or overcome in the carrying out of its obligations.
- (c) insufficiency of funds or failure to make any payment required hereunder.
- 13.3 The failure of a Party to fulfil any of its obligations hereunder shall not be considered to be a breach of, or default under, the Contract insofar as such inability arises from an event of Force Majeure, provided that the Party affected by such an event has taken all reasonable precautions, due care and reasonable alternative measures, all with the objective of carrying out the terms and conditions of the Contract.
- 13.4 A Party affected by an event of Force Majeure shall take all reasonable measures to:
  - (a) remove such Party's inability to fulfil its obligations hereunder with a minimum of delay; and
  - (b) minimise the consequences of any event of Force Majeure.

- 13.5 A Party affected by an event of Force Majeure shall notify the other Party of such event as soon as possible, and in any event not later than fourteen (14) days following the occurrence of such event, providing evidence of the nature and cause of such event, and shall similarly give notice of the restoration of normal conditions as soon as possible.
- 13.6 During the period of their inability to perform the Services as a result of an event of Force Majeure, the Consultant shall be entitled to continue to be paid under the terms of the Contract as well as to be reimbursed for additional costs reasonably and necessarily incurred by them during such period for the purposes of the Services and in reactivating the Services after the end of such period.
- 13.7 Not later than thirty (30) days after the Consultant, as the result of an event of Force Majeure, has become unable to perform a material portion of the Services, the Parties shall consult with each other with a view to agreeing appropriate measures to be taken in the circumstances.

#### 14 Suspension of Assignment

- 14.1 The Procuring and Disposing Entity may, by written notice of suspension of the assignment to the Consultant, suspend all payments to the Consultant hereunder if the Consultant fails to perform any of its obligations under the Contract, including the carrying out of the Services, provided that such notice of suspension shall:
  - (a) specify the nature of the failure; and
  - (b) request the Consultant to remedy such failure within a period not exceeding thirty days

after receipt by the Consultant of such notice of suspension.

#### 15 Termination

- 15.1 The Procuring and Disposing Entity may, by not less than thirty days written notice of termination to the Consultant (except in the event listed in paragraph (f) below, for which there shall be a written notice of not less than sixty days), such notice to be given after the occurrence of any of the events specified in GCC Clause 15.1 (a) to (h), terminate the Contract if:
  - (a) the Consultant fails to remedy a failure in the performance of its obligations as specified in a notice of suspension of assignment pursuant to GCC Clause 14 within thirty days of receipt of such notice of suspension of assignment or within such other period agreed between the Parties in writing;
  - (b) the Consultant becomes, or if any of the Consultant's Members becomes, insolvent or bankrupt or enters into any agreements with their creditors for relief of debt or take advantage of any law for the benefit of debtors or go into liquidation or receivership whether compulsory or voluntary other than for a reconstruction or amalgamation;
  - (c) the Consultant fails to comply with any final decision reached as a result of arbitration proceedings pursuant to GCC Clause 17 hereof;
  - (d) the Consultant submits to the Procuring and Disposing Entity a statement which has a material effect on the rights, obligations or interests of the

- Procuring and Disposing Entity and which the Procuring and Disposing Entity knows to be false;
- (e) the Consultant is unable as the result of Force Majeure, to perform a material portion of the Services for a period of not less than sixty days;
- (f) the Procuring and Disposing Entity, in its sole discretion and for any reason whatsoever, decides to terminate the Contract;
- (g) the Consultant, in the judgment of the Procuring and Disposing Entity, has engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive or coercive practices in competing for or in executing the Contract; or
- (h) the Tribunal directs that a contract should be terminated.
- 15.2 The Consultant may, by not less than thirty days written notice to the Procuring and Disposing Entity, such notice to be given after the occurrence of any of the events specified in GCC Clause 15.2 (a) to (d) terminate the Contract if:
  - (a) the Procuring and Disposing Entity fails to pay any money due to the Consultant pursuant to the Contract and not subject to dispute pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 23.2 within forty-five days after receiving written notice from the Consultant that such payment is overdue;
  - (b) the Procuring and Disposing Entity is in material breach of its obligations pursuant to the Contract and has not remedied the same within forty-five days (or such longer period as the Consultant may have subsequently approved in writing) following the receipt by the Procuring and Disposing Entity of the Consultant's notice specifying such breach;
  - (c) the Consultant is unable as the result of Force Majeure, to perform a material portion of the Services for a period of not less than sixty days; or
  - (d) the Procuring and Disposing Entity fails to comply with any final decision reached as a result of arbitration pursuant to GCC Clause 17 hereof.
- 15.3 If either Party disputes whether an event specified GCC Clauses 15.1 or GCC Clause 15.2 has occurred, such Party may, within forty-five days after receipt of notice of termination from the other Party, refer the matter to arbitration pursuant to GCC Clause 17 and the Contract shall not be terminated on account of such event except in accordance with the terms of any resulting arbitral award.

#### 16 Cessation of Rights and Obligations or Services

- 16.1 Upon termination of the Contract pursuant to GCC Clause 15, or upon completion of the Services pursuant to GCC Clause 18 hereof, all rights and obligations of the Parties hereunder shall cease, except:
  - (a) such rights and obligations as may have accrued on the date of termination or completion;
  - (b) the obligation of confidentiality set forth in GCC Clause 3;
  - (b) the Consultant's obligation to permit inspection, copying and auditing of their accounts and records set forth in GCC Sub-Clause 2.2; and
  - (c) any right which a Party may have under the Governing Laws.

16.2 Upon termination of the Contract by notice of either Party to the other pursuant to GCC Clause 7, the Consultant shall, immediately upon dispatch or receipt of such notice, take all necessary steps to bring the Services to a close in a prompt and orderly manner and shall make every reasonable effort to keep expenditures for this purpose to a minimum. With respect to documents prepared by the Consultant and equipment and materials furnished by the Procuring and Disposing Entity, the Consultant shall proceed as provided, by GCC Clause 44.

#### 17 Settlement of Disputes

- 17.1 The Procuring and Disposing Entity and the Consultant shall make every effort to resolve amicably by direct informal negotiation any disagreement or dispute arising between them under or in connection with the Contract or interpretation thereof.
- 17.2 If the parties fail to resolve such a dispute or difference by mutual consultation within twenty-eight days from the commencement of such consultation, either party may require that the dispute be referred for resolution in accordance with the Arbitration and Conciliation Act Cap 4 laws of Uganda or such other formal mechanism specified in the SCC.

#### 18 Completion Period of the Services

18.1 The period for the completion of the Services shall be specified in the SCC. The completion period shall be counted from the date of the commencement of the Services.

#### C Obligations of the Procuring and Disposing Entity

#### 19 Provision of Information and Assistance

- 19.1 The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall supply the Consultant with any information or documentation at its disposal which may be relevant to the performance of the contract. Such documents shall be returned to the Procuring and Disposing Entity at the end of the period of the Contract.
- 19.2 The Consultant may request the assistance of the Procuring and Disposing Entity to obtain copies of laws, regulations, and information on local customs, orders or bylaws of Uganda, which may affect the Consultant in the performance of its obligations under the contract. The Procuring and Disposing Entity may charge the Consultant for such assistance.
- 19.3 Subject to the provisions of the laws and regulations on foreign labour in Uganda, the Procuring and Disposing Entity shall make every effort to facilitate the Consultant in obtaining all required visas and permits, including work and residence permits, for the personnel whose services the Consultant and the Procuring and Disposing Entity consider necessary as well as residence permits for their families.
- 19.4 The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall issue to its employees, agents and representatives all such instructions as may be necessary or appropriate to facilitate the prompt and effective performance of the Services.
- 19.5 The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall use its best efforts to ensure that the

#### Government shall:

- (a) facilitate prompt clearance through customs of any property required for the Services and of the personal effects of the Personnel and their eligible dependents;
- (b) exempt the Consultant and the Personnel from any requirement to register or obtain any permit to practice their profession or to establish themselves either individually or as a corporate entity according to the Laws of Uganda;
- (c) provide to the Consultant, Sub-contractors and Personnel any such other assistance as may be specified in the SCC.
- 19.6 The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall make available to the Consultant and the Personnel, for the purposes of the Services and free of any charge, the services, facilities and property described in the Statement of Requirements at the times and in the manner specified in the Statement of Requirement.

#### 20 Provision of Counterpart Staff

- 20.1 If so provided in the SCC, the Procuring and Disposing Entity shall make available to the Consultant, as and when provided in the Contract, and free of charge, such counterpart Personnel to be selected by the Procuring and Disposing Entity, with the Consultant's advice, as shall be specified in the Contract. Counterpart Personnel shall work under the exclusive direction of the Consultant. If any member of the counterpart Personnel fails to perform adequately any work assigned to such member by the Consultant which is consistent with the position occupied by such member, the Consultant may request the replacement of such member, and the Procuring and Disposing Entity shall not unreasonably refuse to act upon such request.
- 20.2 If counterpart Personnel are not provided by the Procuring and Disposing Entity to the Consultant where specified in the Contract, the Procuring and Disposing Entity and the Consultant shall agree:
  - (a) how the affected part of the Services shall be carried out; and
  - (b) the additional payments or time, if any, to be granted by the Procuring and Disposing Entity to the Consultant as a result thereof.
- 20.3 Counterpart personnel are not liable for the poor performance of the Consultant.

#### D Payment

#### 21 Contract Price and Currency

- 21.1 The Contract Price shall be expressed as a specific amount or amounts in the Agreement representing:
  - (a) the total amount payable for a Lump Sum contract; or
  - (b) the maximum amount for a Time Based contract.
- 21.2 Payments shall be made in the currency or currencies of the contract price, unless otherwise specified in the SCC.

21.3 The Contract Price may only be changed as provided for in GCC Clause 11.

#### **22** General Payment Procedure

- 22.1 The provisions of this Clause apply to all contracts subject to these GCC. Additional provisions at GCC Clause 30 or 31 shall apply as follows:
  - (a) the provisions of GCC Clause 30, Option 1 shall apply to Lump Sum contracts;
  - (b) the provisions of GCC Clause 31, Option 2 shall apply to Time Based contracts.

The type of contract applicable is stated in the SCC.

22.2 In consideration of the Services performed by the Consultant under the Contract, the Procuring and Disposing Entity shall make to the Consultant such payments in such manner as is provided by the Contract.

#### 23 Invoice Procedure

- 23.1 The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall receive payment requests made by submission of invoices and all supporting documents and shall certify such invoices for payment. The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall certify or reject such requests for payment within five days from receipt.
- 23.2 Where such payment requests are rejected, the Procuring and Disposing Entity shall promptly advise the Consultant of the reasons for rejection.
- 23.2 The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall not unreasonably withhold any undisputed portion of a request for payment. The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall notify the Consultant of the inadmissibility of a request for payment due to an error, discrepancy, omission or any other reason so that the Parties may resolve such error, discrepancy, omission or other fault and agree a solution to enable payment of the corrected request for payment. Only such portion of the request for payment that is inadmissible may be withheld from payment. Should any discrepancy be found to exist between actual payment made and costs authorised to be incurred by the Consultant, the Procuring and Disposing Entity may add or subtract the difference from any subsequent payments.

#### 24 Documentation to Support Invoices

24.1 Invoices shall be accompanied by the documentary requirements specified in the SCC.

#### 25 Payment Schedule

25.1 All payments under the Contract shall be made in accordance with the payment schedule specified in the SCC.

#### 26 Advance Payment Guarantee

- 26.1 Unless otherwise stated in the SCC, where any payment is made in advance of performance of Services, payment of the advance payment shall be made against the provision by the Consultant of a bank guarantee for the same amount, and shall be valid for the period stated in the SCC.
- 26.2 Should the advance payment guarantee cease to be valid and the Consultant fails to re-

validate it, a deduction equal to the amount of the advance payment may be made by the Procuring and Disposing Entity from future payments due to the Consultant under the contract.

26.3 If a Contract is terminated for any reason, the guarantee securing the advance may be invoked in order to recover the balance of the advance still owed by the Consultant.

#### **27** Payment Terms

27.1 Unless otherwise specified in the SCC, payments shall be made by the Procuring and Disposing Entity, no later than thirty days after submission and certification of a request for payment by the Consultant.

#### **28** Final Statement and Payment

- 28.1 A final payment shall be made against submission by the Consultant of a final statement, identified as such and approved by the Procuring and Disposing Entity. The final statement shall be deemed approved by the Procuring and Disposing Entity ninety working days after receipt by the Procuring and Disposing Entity unless the Procuring and Disposing Entity, within this period, gives written notice to the Consultant specifying in detail deficiencies in the Services, the deliverables or the final statement.
- 28.2 Any amount which the Procuring and Disposing Entity has paid or caused to be paid which is in excess of the amounts actually payable in accordance with the provisions of the Contract, shall be reimbursed by the Consultant to the Procuring and Disposing Entity within thirty days after receipt by the Consultant of a notice thereof. Any such claim by the Procuring and Disposing Entity for reimbursement must be made within twelve months after receipt by the Procuring and Disposing Entity of a final statement approved by the Procuring and Disposing Entity.
- 28.3 Upon termination of the Contract pursuant to GCC Clauses 15, the Procuring and Disposing Entity shall make the following payments to the Consultant:
  - (a) fees for Services satisfactorily performed prior to the effective date of termination;
  - (b) except in the case of termination pursuant to GCC Clauses 15.1(a) to (d) and 15.1(g) to (h) reimbursement of any reasonable cost incidental to the prompt and orderly termination of the Contract including the cost of the return travel of the Personnel and their eligible dependents.

#### 29 Accounts

29.1 All payments under the Contract shall be made to the accounts of the Consultant specified in the Invoice.

#### 30 Option 1 - Payments in respect of Lump Sum remunerated Contracts

- 30.1 The Contract Price shall be a fixed total lump-sum including all Personnel costs, Sub-contractors' costs, printing, communications, travel, accommodation, and all other costs to be incurred by the Consultant in carrying out the Services described in the Contract.
- 30.2 Total payments under this Contract shall not exceed the Contract Price.

30.3 The Contract Price shall be claimed in lump-sum instalments against deliverables specified in GC Clause 25 and in accordance with the documentary requirement stated in GC Clause 24.

#### 31 Option 2 - Payments in respect of Time Based remunerated Contracts

- 31.1 The Consultant's total remuneration shall not exceed the Contract Price stated in the Agreement.
- 31.2 The Consultant shall notify the Procuring and Disposing Entity as soon as cumulative charges incurred for the Services have reached 80% of the Contract Price.
- 31.3 Separate invoices shall be submitted for fees and for reimbursable expenditure.
- 31.4 Fees for the Personnel shall be claimed in accordance with the documentary requirement stated in GC Clause 24.
- 31.5 Fees for the Personnel shall be determined on the basis of time actually spent by the Personnel in the performance of the Services after the date determined in accordance with the Commencement Date of the Services or such other date as the Parties may agree in writing. Personnel time spent in the performance of the Services shall include time for necessary travel via the most direct route, at the rates detailed in the Contract and subject to such additional provisions as are set forth, in the SCC.
- 31.6 Reimbursable expenditures shall include costs actually and reasonably incurred by the Consultant in the performance of the Services and are specified in the Contract.

#### 32 Price Adjustments

32.1 Prices charged by the Consultant for the Services performed under the Contract shall not vary from the prices quoted in the Contract, with the exception of any price adjustments authorised in the SCC.

#### **Taxes and Duties**

- 33.1 Except as otherwise specifically provided in the SCC, the Consultant shall bear and pay all taxes, duties, and levies imposed on the Consultant, by all municipal, state or national government authorities, both within and outside Uganda, in connection with the provision of the Services to be supplied under the Contract.
- 33.2 If any tax exemptions, reductions, allowances or privileges may be available to the Consultant in Uganda, the Procuring and Disposing Entity shall use its best efforts to enable the Consultant to benefit from any such tax savings to the maximum allowable extent.
- 33.3 For the purpose of the Contract, it is agreed that the Contract Price specified in the Agreement is based on the taxes, duties, levies, and charges prevailing at the date twenty-eight (28) days prior to the date of proposal submission in Uganda (called "tax" in this clause). If any tax rates are increased or decreased, a new tax is introduced, an existing tax is abolished, or any change in interpretation or application of any tax occurs in the course of the performance of the Contract, which was or will be assessed on the Consultant, its Subcontractors, or their employees in connection with performance of the

Contract, an equitable adjustment to the Contract Price shall be made to fully take into account any such change by addition to or reduction from the Contract Price, as the case may be.

#### **E** Obligations of the Consultant

#### **Obligations of the Consultant**

- 34.1 The Consultant shall perform the Services under the contract with due care, efficiency and diligence, in accordance with best professional practices.
- 34.2 The Consultant shall submit to the Procuring and Disposing Entity the reports and other deliverables, specified in the Contract.
- 34.3 The Consultant shall respect and abide by all laws and regulations in force and shall ensure that its personnel, their dependants, and its local employees also respect and abide by all such laws and regulations. The Consultant shall indemnify the Procuring and Disposing Entity against any claims and proceedings arising from any infringement by the Consultant, its employees and their dependants of such laws and regulations.
- 34.4 The Consultant shall treat all documents and information received in connection with the contract as confidential in accordance with GCC Clause 3.
- 34.5 The Consultant shall obtain the Procuring and Disposing Entity's prior approval in writing before taking any of the following actions:
  - a) appointing any member of the Personnel that are not named in the Contract;
  - entering into a subcontract that is not specified in the Contract, for the performance of any part of the Services, it being understood that the Consultant shall remain fully liable for the performance of the Services by the Subcontractor and its Personnel pursuant to the Contract;
  - (c) any other action that may be specified in the SCC.

#### 35 Eligibility

- 35.1 The Consultant and its Subcontractors shall have the nationality of an eligible country. A Consultant or Subcontractor shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if it is a citizen or constituted, incorporated, or registered, and operates in conformity with the provisions of the laws of that country.
- 35.2 The Consultant and its Sub-contractors shall provide Personnel who shall be citizens of eligible countries.

#### **Joint Venture, Consortium or Association**

36.1 Unless otherwise specified in the SCC, if the Consultant is a joint venture, consortium, or association, all of the parties shall be jointly and severally liable to the Procuring and Disposing Entity for the fulfilment of the provisions of the Contract. The joint venture, consortium, or association shall designate one party to act as the Member in Charge with authority to bind the joint venture, consortium, or association and to act on their behalf in exercising all the Consultant's rights and obligations towards the Procuring and Disposing Entity under the Contract, including without limitation the receiving of instructions and

payments from the Procuring and Disposing Entity.

36.2 The composition or the constitution of the joint venture, consortium, or association shall not be altered without the prior consent of the Procuring and Disposing Entity. Any alteration of the composition of the joint venture, consortium or association without the prior written consent of the Procuring and Disposing Entity shall be considered to be a breach of contract.

#### 37 Code of Conduct

- 37.1 The Consultant shall at all times act loyally and impartially and as a faithful adviser to the Procuring and Disposing Entity in accordance with the rules and/or codes of conduct of its profession. It shall, in particular, refrain from making any public statements concerning the Services without the prior approval of the Procuring and Disposing Entity, and from engaging in any activity which conflicts with its obligations towards the Procuring and Disposing Entity under the contract. It shall not commit the Procuring and Disposing Entity in any way whatsoever without its prior written consent, and shall, where appropriate, make this obligation clear to third parties.
- 37.2 For the period of execution of the contract, the Consultant and its personnel shall respect human rights and undertake not to offend the political, cultural and religious practices prevailing in Uganda.

#### **38** Conflict of Interests

- 38.1 The Consultant shall refrain from any relationship which would compromise its independence or that of its Personnel. If the Consultant fails to maintain such independence the Procuring and Disposing Entity may terminate the contract in accordance with the provision contained in the GCC Clause 15.
- 38.2 The Consultant shall after the conclusion or termination of the Contract, be limited in its role in connection with the project and shall not be permitted any further involvement in the provision or procurement of works, supplies or further Services other than a continuation of the Services, for any project resulting from or closely related to the Services.
- 38.3 The Consultant shall not engage, and shall cause their Personnel and Subcontractors not to engage, either directly or indirectly, in any of the following activities:
  - a) during the term of the Contract, any business or professional activities in Uganda which would conflict with the activities assigned to them under the Contract; and
  - b) after the termination of the Contract, such other activities as may be specified in the SCC.
- The payments to the Consultant under the contract shall constitute the only income or benefit it may derive in connection with the contract and neither it nor its personnel shall accept any commission, discount, allowance, indirect payment or other consideration in connection with, or in relation to, or in discharge of, its obligations under the contract.
- 38.5 The Consultant shall not have the benefit, whether directly or indirectly, of any royalty, gratuity or commission in respect of any patented or protected article or process

used in or for the purposes of the contract or the project, without the prior written approval of the Procuring and Disposing Entity.

#### 39 Indemnification

- 39.1 At its own expense, the Consultant shall indemnify, protect and defend, the Procuring and Disposing Entity, its agents and employees, from and against all actions, claims, losses or damage arising from any act or omission by the Consultant in the performance of the Services, including any violation of any legal provisions, or rights of third parties, in respect of patents, trade marks and other forms of intellectual property such as copyrights.
- 39.2 At its own expense, the Consultant shall indemnify, protect and defend the Procuring and Disposing Entity, its agents and employees, from and against all actions, claims, losses or damages arising out of the Consultant's failure to perform its obligations provided that:
  - (a) the Consultant is notified of such actions, claims, losses or damages not later than 30 days after the Procuring and Disposing Entity becomes aware of them;
  - (b) the ceiling on the Consultant's liability shall be limited to an amount equal to the contract value, but such ceiling shall not apply to actions, claims, losses or damages caused by the Consultant's wilful misconduct;
  - (c) the Consultant's liability shall be limited to actions, claims, losses or damages directly caused by such failure to perform its obligations under the contract and shall not include liability arising from unforeseeable occurrences incidental or indirectly consequential to such failure.
- 39.3 The aggregate liability of the Consultant to the Procuring and Disposing Entity shall not exceed the total contract value or such other amount specified in the SCC.
- 39.4 The Consultant shall have no liability whatsoever for actions, claims, losses or damages occasioned by:
  - a) the Procuring and Disposing Entity omitting to act on any recommendation, or overriding any act, decision or recommendation, of the Consultant, or requiring the Consultant to implement a decision or recommendation with which the Consultant disagrees or on which it expresses a serious reservation; or
  - the improper execution of the Consultant's instructions by agents, employees or independent contractors of the Procuring and Disposing Entity.
- 39.5 The Consultant shall remain responsible for any breach of its obligations under the contract for such period after the Services have been performed as may be determined by the law governing the contract.

#### 40 Insurance to be taken out by the Consultant

- 40.1 The Consultant shall take out, maintain and shall cause any Sub-contractors to take out and maintain, at their own cost insurance coverage against the risks and on terms and conditions approved by the Procuring and Disposing Entity as shall be specified in the SCC.
- 40.2 The Consultant shall at the Procuring and Disposing Entity's request, provide evidence to the Procuring and Disposing Entity showing that such insurance has been taken

out and maintained.

#### 41 Accounting, Inspection and Auditing

The Consultant shall keep accurate and systematic accounts and records in respect of the Services hereunder, in accordance with internationally accepted accounting principles and in such form and detail as will clearly identify all relevant time charges and costs.

#### F Performance of the Services

#### 42 Scope of Services

- 42.1 The Services to be provided shall be as specified in the Statement of Requirements in the Contract.
- 42.2 The Services shall be performed at such locations as are specified in the Contract and, where the location of a particular task is not so specified, at such locations, whether in Uganda or elsewhere, as the Procuring and Disposing Entity may approve.

#### 43 Specifications and Designs

- 43.1 The Consultant shall prepare all specifications and designs using accepted and generally recognised systems acceptable to the Procuring and Disposing Entity and taking into account the latest design criteria.
- 43.2 The Consultant shall ensure that any specifications and designs and all documentation relating to procurement of Works, Supplies and Services are prepared on an impartial basis so as to promote competitive tendering.

#### 44 Property of Deliverables

- 44.1 All reports and data such as maps, diagrams, drawings, plans, designs, specifications, calculations and software containing data and information compiled, prepared and furnished by the Consultant for the Procuring and Disposing Entity under the Contract shall become and remain the absolute property of the Procuring and Disposing Entity. The Consultant shall deliver all such documents to the Procuring and Disposing Entity on completion or termination of the Contract. The Consultant may retain a copy of such reports, data and software and any restrictions about the future use of such reports, data or software shall be specified in the SCC.
- 44.2 Equipment and materials made available to the Consultant, or purchased by the Consultant with funds provided by the Procuring and Disposing Entity, shall be the property of the Procuring and Disposing Entity. Upon completion of the Contract, the Consultant shall make available an inventory of such items and shall dispose of such equipment and materials in accordance with the Procuring and Disposing Entity's instructions. While in possession of such equipment and materials, the Consultant shall ensure the items are insured at the expense of the Procuring and Disposing Entity in an amount equal to their full replacement value.

#### 45 Extensions of Time

45.1 If at any time during performance of the Contract, the Consultant or its subcontractors should encounter conditions impeding timely completion of Services pursuant to GCC Clause

13, the Consultant shall promptly notify the Procuring and Disposing Entity in writing of the delay, its likely duration, and its cause. As soon as practicable after receipt of the Consultant's notice, the Procuring and Disposing Entity may at its discretion extend the Consultant's time for performance, in which case the extension shall be ratified by the parties by amendment of the Contract.

#### **46** Consultant's Personnel

- 46.1 The Consultant shall employ and provide such qualified and experienced Personnel and Sub-contractors as are required to carry out the Services. The Consultant shall be responsible for the quality of the Personnel.
- 46.2 If required by the Contract, the Consultant shall ensure that a resident project manager, acceptable to the Procuring and Disposing Entity, takes charge of the performance of the Services.
- 46.3 The Services shall be carried out by the Personnel specified in the Contract for the period of time indicated therein. The title, job description, and estimated period of engagement of each of the Consultant's Key Personnel shall be listed in the Contract.
- 46.4 The Key Personnel and Sub-contractors listed by title/position and by name in the Contract are hereby approved by the Procuring and Disposing Entity. In respect of other Key Personnel which the Consultant proposes to use in the carrying out of the Services, the Consultant shall submit to the Procuring and Disposing Entity for review and approval a copy of their biographical data. If the Procuring and Disposing Entity does not object in writing stating the reasons for the objection, within twenty-one days from the date of receipt of such biographical data, such Key Personnel shall be deemed to have been approved by the Procuring and Disposing Entity.
- 46.5 The Consultant may with the prior approval of the Procuring and Disposing Entity make minor adjustments to the periods of input for Key Personnel as may be appropriate to ensure the efficient performance of the Services, provided that such adjustments do not cause the payments made under the contract to exceed the Contract Price.
- 46.6 Adjustments with respect to the periods of engagement of Key Personnel which shall cause the total contract payments to exceed the Contract Price shall only be made with the Procuring and Disposing Entity's written approval.
- 46.7 If additional work is required beyond the Statement of Requirements specified in the Contract, the estimated periods of engagement of Key Personnel set forth in the Contract may be increased by agreement in writing between the Procuring and Disposing Entity and the Consultant, provided that any such increase shall not, except as otherwise agreed in writing, cause payments under the Contract to exceed the Contract Price specified in the Agreement.

#### 47 Working Hours of the Personnel

47.1 Working hours and holidays for Key Personnel are set forth in the Contract. To account for travel time, foreign Personnel carrying out Services inside Uganda shall be deemed to have commenced or finished work in respect of the Services such number of days before their arrival

in or after their departure from Uganda.

47.2 The Key Personnel shall not be entitled to be paid for overtime nor to take paid sick leave or vacation leave unless otherwise specified in the SCC. Except as specified in the Contract, the Consultant's remuneration shall be deemed to cover these items. All leave to be allowed to the Personnel is included in the staff-months of service set forth in the Contract. Any taking of leave by Personnel shall be subject to the prior approval by the Consultant who shall ensure that absence for leave purposes will not delay the progress and adequate supervision of the Services.

#### 48 Replacement of Personnel

- 48.1 The Consultant shall not make changes in the Personnel without the prior written approval of the Procuring and Disposing Entity. The Consultant must on its own initiative propose a replacement in the following cases:
  - a) in the event of death, illness for an extended period or in the event of accident of a member of Personnel.
  - b) if it becomes necessary to replace a member of Personnel for any other reasons beyond the Consultant's control (e.g. resignation, etc.).
- 48.2 The Procuring and Disposing Entity may request a replacement with a written and justified request if in the course of performance, it considers that a member of the Personnel does not perform its duties satisfactorily under the contract.
- 48.3 Where a member of Personnel must be replaced, the replacement must possess at least equivalent qualifications and experience, and the remuneration to be paid for the replacement cannot exceed that paid for the member of Personnel who has been replaced. Where the Consultant is unable to provide a replacement with equivalent qualifications and/or experience, the Procuring and Disposing Entity may either decide to terminate the contract, if the proper performance of it is jeopardised, or, if it considers that this is not the case, accept a replacement with lesser qualifications, provided that the fees of the latter are reduced to reflect the appropriate remuneration level.
- 48.4 Additional costs incurred in the replacement of Personnel are the responsibility of the Consultant. Where the expert is not replaced immediately and it is some time before the new expert takes up its functions, the Procuring and Disposing Entity may ask the Consultant to assign to the project temporary personnel pending the arrival of the new personnel, or to take other measures to compensate for the temporary absence of the missing personnel. The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall make no payment for the period associated with the Personnel's absence while the position is not filled.

#### 49 Medical and Insurance arrangements

49.1 For the period of execution of the contract, the Consultant shall obtain medical insurance for its Personnel. The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall be under no liability in respect of the medical expenses of the Consultant.

#### 50. Performance Security / Performance Securing Declaration

50.1 Within twenty-one (21) calendar days after signing of the contract, the successful bidder shall where applicable, furnish to the PDE a Performance Security in the amount / Performance Securing Declaration stipulated in the SCC and in the form of an on demand Bank Guarantee as stipulated in Section 9, denominated in the type and proportions of the currencies of the Contract.

The Performance Security shall be issued by a Bank located in Uganda or a foreign Bank through correspondence with a Bank located in Uganda.

50.2 Failure of the successful bidder to submit the above-mentioned Performance Security shall constitute sufficient ground for annulment of the contract award decision. In this case, or where the successful bidder fails to sign the contract as stated in ITB Clause 21.5 (b) iii.2, the conditions of the Bid Securing Declaration shall be executed. In that event, the PDE may award the contract to the next best ranked bidder whose bid was evaluated at the financial comparison stage.

# **Section 8. Special Conditions of Contract**

The following Special Conditions of Contract (SCC) shall supplement the General Conditions of Contract (GCC). Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in the GCC.

| GCC clause reference | Special Conditions of Contract   |  |  |
|----------------------|--|--|--|
|                      | The Procurement Reference Number is: KCCA-GKMA/CONS/2025-2026/00004  |  |  |
| GCC 1.2 (e)          | The Eligible Countries are those listed in Section 5 of the Request for Proposals Document.  |  |  |
| GCC 1.2(k)           | Member in Charge: The Member in Charge is: The person granted the Powers of Attorney   |  |  |
| GCC 4.1(f)           | Contract Documents: Other documents forming part of the contract are:  a) Agreement, b) Consultant's Proposal as amended by clarifications, c) Special Conditions of Contract, d) General Conditions of Contract, e) Statement of Requirements, f) Minutes of negotiations if any, |  |  |
|                      | <ul><li>g) Pre-Proposal Minutes</li><li>h) any other document agreed upon by the Parties</li></ul>   |  |  |
| GCC 4.4              | Authorised Representatives: The Authorised Representatives are: for the Procuring and Disposing Entity:  The Executive Director, Kampala Capital City Authority  Plot 1-3, Apolo Kaggwa Road  P.O Box 7010, Kampala  Info: info@kcca.go.ug   |  |  |
|                      | Attention: Facsimile: E-mail (where permitted):  |  |  |
| GCC 5.1              | Law: The Contract shall be governed by the Laws of Uganda.   |  |  |
| GCC 7.1              | Notices: The addresses for Notices are: for the Procuring and Disposing Entity: Attention: The Executive Director, Kampala Capital City Authority Street Address: Plot 1-3, Apolo Kaggwa Road Floor/Room number: First Floor Block B, Room B117                                    |  |  |

| GCC clause reference | Special Conditions of Contract   |  |  |
|----------------------|--|--|--|
| Tererence            | Town/City: Kampala   |  |  |
|                      | PO Box No. <b>7010, Kampala, Uganda</b>  |  |  |
|                      | Country: <b>Uganda</b>   |  |  |
|                      | Electronic mail address: <a href="mailto:procurement@kcca.go.ug">procurement@kcca.go.ug</a>  |  |  |
|                      | For the Consultant Street Address:   |  |  |
|                      | Facsimile number: Email:   |  |  |
| GCC 8.1              | Commencement: The Period within which the Services shall have commenced is: To be communicated in the Commencement Order  Confirmation of Key Experts' availability to start the Assignment shall be |  |  |
|                      | submitted to the Client in writing as a written statement signed by each Key Expert.   |  |  |
|                      | CVs of Non-Key Experts shall be submitted to the Client for approval prior to deployment to site of the experts.   |  |  |
| GCC 17.2             | <b>Dispute settlement:</b> Dispute settlement shall be in accordance with the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, Cap 4 Laws of Uganda.  |  |  |
|                      | The Appointing Authority for the Adjudicator is: <b>President of Uganda Institution of Professional Engineers. (UIPE).</b> The Adjudicator shall be a team of three (3) members.                     |  |  |
|                      | Fees and types of reimbursable expenses to be paid to each Adjudicator: <b>UGX 200,000 Per Hour</b>  |  |  |
|                      | Arbitration shall take place at: <b>Kampala, Uganda</b>  |  |  |
|                      | The Appointing Authority for the Adjudicator is: <b>President of Uganda Institution of Professional Engineers. (UIPE)</b> ,  |  |  |
|                      | Adress:  |  |  |
|                      | Kyambogo-Gloucester Ave  |  |  |
|                      | Tel: +256414287292   |  |  |
|                      | Email: <u>info@uipe.co.ug</u>  |  |  |
| GCC 18.1             | Completion of the Services: The Period within which the Services shall have been completed following commencement of the Services is: Ten Months from date of Receipt of fully signed Contract       |  |  |
| GCC 19.5(c)          | Further Assistance: The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall provide the   |  |  |

| GCC clause | Special Conditions of Contract   |         |   |                      |                       |
|------------|--|---------|---|----------------------|-----------------------|
| reference  | following further assistance: N/A  |         |   |                      |                       |
| GCC 20.1   | Counterpart Staff: Counterpart Staff shall not be provided   |         |   |                      |                       |
|            |  |         | <u> </u>  |                      |                       |
| GCC 21.2   | Payment currencies: Payments shall be made in the currency or currencies of the contract price. Uganda Shillings  The exchange rate for purposes of payment shall be the Bank of Uganda exchange rate prevailing at the time of financial proposal opening |         |   |                      |                       |
| GCC 22.1   | The 0  | Contrac | ct is a Lump sum contract.  |                      |                       |
| GCC 24.1   |  |         | tion for Payment: The fo<br>support invoices requesting   | •                    | tation shall be       |
|            |  | No.     | Deliverable   | Duration in<br>Weeks | Percentage of Payment |
|            |  | 1       | Inception Report – A comprehensive report including the Digital Twin Model (GIS+IoT), aligned with KCCA systems. The report will outline the detailed methodology, legal/policy review, stakeholder engagement plan, and a realistic implementation schedule  | 4                    | 20%                   |
|            |  | 2       | Situational Analysis and Draft Plans – This includes topographic and cadastral surveys, slum profiling, 1m- resolution climate risk maps (flood and heat island), infrastructure and land use diagnostics, TOD typologies, and draft parametric development plans. Also includes 10 Al-generated LVC revenue scenarios and Corridor-Based Action Plans for Ten Road Corridors, with land use guidelines, zoning overlays, and | 20                   | 40%                   |

| GCC clause reference | Special Conditions of Contract  |   |                 |              |
|----------------------|---|---|-----------------|--------------|
|                      |   | development control<br>measures   |                 |              |
|                      | 3   | Final Detailed Plan, Action Plans for 10 Road Corridors and Completion Report – This deliverable comprises the Final Detailed Physical Development Plan with zoning by-laws, proposed LVC ordinances, and a climate adaptation toolkit. It also includes an Open Source data Portal linked to KCCA GIS, final feasibility validation, and a Completion Report summarizing methodology, challenges, stakeholder contributions, and a roadmap for phased implementation and | 40              | 40           |
| GCC 25.1             | Paymen  | sustainability  t Schedule: The payment sched   | ule shall be    |              |
| GGC 23.1             |   | ocumentation for payment  | Percentage of T | otal Payment |
|                      | 1. Inc  | ception Report  | 20%             | 6            |
|                      | 2. Sit  | tuational Analysis and Draft Plans  | 40%             | 6            |
|                      | <sup>3.</sup>   10  | nal Detailed Plan, Action Plans for<br>Road Corridors and Completion<br>eport   | 40%             | 6            |
| GCC 26.1             | Advance Payment Guarantee: An Advance Payment Guarantee Shall not be required.  The period of validity of the Advance Payment Guarantee shall be:N/Acalendar months after effectiveness.  The following provisions shall apply to the advance payment and the advance bank payment guarantee:  (1) An advance payment of <i>N/A of the Contract Price</i> shall be made |   |                 |              |

| GCC clause  | Special Conditions of Contract   |
|-------------|--|
| reference   |  |
|             | within <u>30</u> days after the Effective Date. The advance payment will be set off by the Client in equal instalments against the statements for the first <u>8 months</u> of the Services until the advance payment has been fully set off.  (2) The advance bank payment guarantee shall be in the amount and in the currency of the currency(ies) of the advance payment.  Uganda Shillings                                  |
| GCC 27.1    | Payment Period: Payment shall be made by the Procuring and Disposing Entity within thirty (30) days of receipt and certification of the invoice accompanied by supporting documents and within fifty-six (56) days in the case of the final payment.   |
| GCC 31.5    | Additional provisions: The additional provisions for Personnel time are:N/AN/A   |
| GCC 32.1    | <b>Price variation:</b> The Contract Price including the remuneration rates is not subject to price variation for fluctuations in market, commodity or other variable rates.   |
| GCC 33.1    | Taxes and duties: The Consultant shall not bear and pay all taxes, duties, and levies imposed on the Consultant, by all municipal, state or national government authorities: Taxes under this contract are deemed paid by the Client   |
| GCC 34.5(c) | The Procuring and Disposing Entity's prior approval: The Procuring and Disposing Entity's prior approval is also required for:  i) Changes in key consultants not specified in the Contract  ii) Changes in project scope and cost  iii) Extensions of contract timelines  iv) Entering into a subcontract that is not specified in the Contract, for the performance of any part of the Services                                |
| GCC 36.1    | Joint Venture requirements: The individuals or firms in a joint venture, consortium or association shall be jointly and severally liable.  |
| GCC 38.3(b) | Additional activities prohibited: The following activities are prohibited: Except with the prior written consent of the Employer, the Consultant and the Experts shall not at any time communicate to any person or entity any confidential information acquired in the course of the services, nor shall the consultant and the experts make public the recommendations formulated in the course, or as a result of the service |
| GCC 39.3    | <b>Total Liability:</b> The total liability under the Contract shall be the total contract value.  |
| GCC 40.1    | Insurance taken out by Consultant: The risks and coverage shall be:  |

| GCC clause reference | Special Conditions of Contract  |  |  |  |
|----------------------|---|--|--|--|
| reference            | i) <b>Professional liability insurance</b> , with a minimum coverage of a minimum of 100% of the Contract Price.  |  |  |  |
|                      | <ul> <li>ii) Third Party motor vehicle liability insurance in respect of motor<br/>vehicles operated in the Client's country by the Consultant or its<br/>Experts or Sub-consultants, with a minimum coverage<br/>permissible under the laws of Uganda</li> </ul>   |  |  |  |
|                      | iii) Third Party liability insurance, with a minimum coverage permissible under the law of Uganda   |  |  |  |
|                      | iv) employer's liability and workers' compensation insurance in<br>respect of the experts and Sub-consultants in accordance with<br>the relevant provisions of the applicable law in the Client's<br>country, as well as, with respect to such Experts, any such life,<br>health, accident, travel or other insurance as may be appropriate;<br>and |  |  |  |
|                      | v) insurance against loss of or damage to (i) equipment purchased in whole or in part with funds provided under this Contract, (ii) the Consultant's property used in the performance of the Services, and (iii) any documents prepared by the Consultant in the performance of the Services.   |  |  |  |
| GCC 44.1             | Restrictions on the use of Deliverables: The future use of deliverables are restricted as follows: The Consultant and the Key staff are prohibited from using reports, maps and deliverables of this assignment for any other use, other than that related to the assignment  |  |  |  |
| GCC 47.2             | Personnel entitlements: The Key Personnel shall be entitled to payment for:(N/A)  |  |  |  |
| GCC 50.1             | The successful Consultant shall be required to submit a Performance Security equivalent to 5% of the total contract   |  |  |  |
|                      | amount  |  |  |  |

# **Section 9. Contract Forms**

# **Table of Contract Forms**

| Agreement                | 111 |
|--------------------------|-----|
| Advance Payment Security | 114 |

# Agreement

# For Lump Sum/Time Based Contracts

| KAM<br>Kam <sub>l</sub> | 1PALA<br>pala   |  | <b>THORITY</b> of <b>Plot</b><br>ed the "Procu | <b>1-3 Apolo Kaggw</b><br>Iring and Dis <sub>l</sub> | , 2025, betweer ra Road, P.O Box 7010 posing Entity") and tant").      |  |
|-------------------------|---|--|--|--|--|--|
| WHE                     | REAS  |  |  |  |  |  |
| (a)                     | the Procuring and Disposing Entity has requested the Consultant to provide certain consultancy services (hereinafter called the "Services") as defined herein and attached to this Contract; viz; Procurement of Consultancy Services for preparation of a detailed Physical Development plan for Kawempe Urban Center and Action Plans for Ten Strategic Road Corridors under GKMA-UDP |  |  |  |  |  |
| (b)                     | the Consultant having represented to the Procuring and Disposing Entity that it has the required professional skills, personnel and technical resources, has agreed to provide the Services on the terms and conditions set forth in this Contract.   |  |  |  |  |  |
| NOM                     | / THER  | <b>EFORE</b> the parties h   | ereto agree as follo                           | ows:   |  |  |
| 1.                      | The documents forming the Contract shall be as stated in and in the order of priority stated in the General Conditions of Contract.   |  |  |  |  |  |
| 2.                      |   | The mutual rights and obligations of the Procuring and Disposing Entity and the Consultant shall be as set forth in the Contract, in particular:  (a) The Consultant shall carry out the Services in accordance with the provisions of the Contract; and |  |  |  |  |
|                         | (b)   | Price of   | or such  | other sum as may                                     | Consultant the Contract  become payable under  me manner prescribed by |  |
|                         |   | S WHEREOF, the Panames as of the day   |  |  | act to be signed in thei   |  |
| Signe                   | ed by _   |  | (Authorised F<br>and Disposir                  |  | he Procuring   |  |
| Nam                     | e:  |  | Ро   | sition:  |  |  |
| In the                  | e prese   | ence of:   |  |  |  |  |

# Part 3: Section 9: Contract Forms

| Name:               | Position:                                     |
|---------------------|---|
| Signed by           | (Authorised Representative of the Consultant) |
| Name:               | ,   |
| In the presence of: |   |
| Name:               | Position:                                     |

## **Appendices**

#### 3.1 APPENDIX A STATEMENT OF REQUIREMENTS

[Detailed descriptions of the Services to be provided, dates for completion of tasks, location of tasks, etc.]

#### 3.2 APPENDIX B KEY PERSONNEL AND SUB-CONTRACTOR

- B.1 Team Composition Technical/Managerial Staff: Names, (where available), positions, assigned tasks and staff-months for each (Section 4 Table 4.1.5).
- B.2 Team Composition Support Staff [Names, where available], positions, assigned tasks and staff-months for each. (Same as B.1 for Key foreign Personnel to be assigned to work outside Uganda). (Section 4 Table 4.1.5)
- B.3 List of Sub-contractors (where available); same information with respect to their Personnel as in B.1.
- B.4 List of Sub-contractors (where available); Same information as B.1 for Key local Personnel.]
- B.5 Time Schedule for Professional Staff (Section 4 Table 4.1.7). Specify working hours, holidays and travel time, etc. in accordance with GC Clause 48.

# 3.3 APPENDIX C BREAKDOWN OF CONTRACT PRICE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

[List here the elements of cost used to arrive at the breakdown of the lump-sum price—foreign currency portion:

- C.1 Breakdown of Contract Price (summarising the main elements of the contract price detailing fees, reimbursables and miscellaneous expenses (Section 4 Table 4.2.2):
- C.2 Breakdown of Fees into the monthly rates for Personnel (Key Personnel and other Personnel) (Section 4 Table 4.2.3).
- C.3. Breakdown of Reimbursable (Section 4 Table 4.2.4)
- C.4 Breakdown of Miscellaneous Expenses (Section 4 Table 4.2.5)

This appendix will exclusively be used for determining remuneration for additional services.]

# 3.4 APPENDIX D BREAKDOWN OF CONTRACT PRICE IN UGANDA SHILLINGS

[List here the elements of cost used to arrive at the breakdown of the lump-sum price—local currency portion:

- D.1 Breakdown of Contract Price (summarising the main elements of the contract price detailing fees, reimbursables and miscellaneous expenses (S. 4 Table 4.2.2)
- D.2 Breakdown of Fees into the monthly rates for Personnel (Key Personnel and other Personnel) (Section 4 Table 4.2.3).

- D.3. Breakdown of Reimbursable expenditures (Section 4 Table 4.2.4)
- D.4 Breakdown of Miscellaneous Expenses (Section 4 Table 4.2.5). This appendix will exclusively be used for determining remuneration for additional services.

The Advance Payment Security should be on the letterhead of the issuing Financial Institution and should be signed by a person with the proper authority to sign documents that are binding on the Financial Institution]

# **Advance Payment Security**

Date: [insert date (as day, month, and year) of Advance Payment Security]

Procurement Reference No.: [insert Procurement Reference number]

To: [insert complete name of Procuring and Disposing Entity]

In accordance with the payment provision included in the Contract, in relation to advance payments, [insert complete name of Consultant] (hereinafter called "the Consultant") shall deposit with the Procuring and Disposing Entity a security consisting of [indicate type of security], to guarantee its proper and faithful performance of the obligations imposed by said Clause of the Contract, in the amount of [insert currency and amount of guarantee in words and figures].

We, the undersigned [insert complete name of Guarantor], legally domiciled in [insert full address of Guarantor] (hereinafter "the Guarantor"), as instructed by the Consultant, agree unconditionally and irrevocably to guarantee as primary obligor and not as surety merely, the payment to the Procuring and Disposing Entity on its first demand without whatsoever right of objection on our part and without its first claim to the Consultant, in the amount not exceeding [insert currency and amount of guarantee in words and figures].

This security shall remain valid and in full effect from the date of the advance payment received by the Consultant under the Contract until [insert day and month], [insert year].

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees, ICC Publication No. 758, except that subparagraph (ii) of Sub-article 20(a) is hereby excluded.

| Name: [insert complete name of person signing the Security]                                      |                |
|--|----------------|
| In the capacity of [insert legal capacity of person signing the Security]                        |                |
| Signed: [signature of person whose name and capacity are shown above]                            |                |
| Duly authorised to sign the Security for and on behalf of: [insert comple Financial Institution] | te name of the |
| Dated on day of, [insert date of signing]  |                |